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May 20, 2004

CERTIFIED MAIL
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Securities and Exchange Commission
1934 Act Filing Desk

450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20549

RE: SEC File #82-3354

Gentlemen:

Michelin (;ZCGEM”), pl\e\ase find enclosed herewith the following:
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- Letter to Stockholders dated March 2004.
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- English translation of CGEM's annual financial statements as published in the
Bulletin Des Annonces Legales Obligatoires ("BALO") on April 5, 2004.

- Notice of Mixed General Meeting of Stockholders dated April 5, 2004. Portions of
this information were also published in the BALO on March 19, 2004 and April 5,
2004.

- Press Information dated April 26, 2004.

- Consolidated sales figures for the first three months of 2004 and 2003, as published in
the BALO on April 30, 2004.

- CGEM's Annual Report for 2003.

If you have any questions regarding these documents, please feel free to contact me at
(864) 458-5513.

Very truly yours,
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William J. Guzick

Vice President, Secretary 7, (0

N . and General Counsel
Michelin North America, Inc.

One Parkway South

PO. Box 19001

Greenville, South Carolina 29602-9001
Tel: 864/458-5000
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Dear Sir or Madam,

Dear Stockholder,

2003 was marked by a sharp rise in external costs, especially in raw materials,
and a strong appreciation of the euro against all other currencies. Michelin was
| nevertheless able to maintain its operational performance and boost sales.

On the back of significant volume growth (+3.7%), productivity gains and sustained
| product added value, the Group was practically able to maintain its operating margin:
7.7% with a constant business scope. In other words, this means the Group “absorbed”
 a 20% raw material price increase in US dollars plus the consequences of a 17% increase
of the euro against the dollar.

it was this sound performance that enabled us to finance completely an investment
 program up 30% on 2002, while generating substantial free cash flow for the third year
running.

Among all the investments we made to enhance the competitiveness of our plants, further our
focused growth strategy and expand our market presence worldwide, | would like to highlight
the importance for Michelin of the acquisition of the Viborg distribution group.

This acquisition will strengthen Euromaster’s European network with the addition of 465 new
sales outlets, most of which are located in Germany, Europe’s largest tire market. As you know,
this acquisition weighed down on our operating margin, which edged back from 7.7% to 7.4%.
It translated into €306.5 million of goodwill which was fully amortized over the financial year,
and thus accounts for the drop in our net earnings.

In 2003 the Group made headway in the area of international expansion: in Asia the Group set up
an Indian joint venture; we developed our presence in Eastern Europe, and the first tires rolled out
of our newly built plant in Russia. We also launched new ranges of products and innovative services.
Another achievement fully deserves my mention here: by halving the accident frequency rate
within the Group, we made a major step forward in occupational safety, thanks to a concerted
effort from all our 125,000 employees whom | would like to warmly congratulate.

To sum up, 2003 was an eventful year for the Group with significant headway in key areas
although a string of circumstances, including an exceptional increase in the prices of raw
materials, prevented us from further improving on our financial results. At the Annual
Shareholders' Meeting, we will recommend a €0.93 per share dividend distribution, unchanged
from last year.

The economic environment may well remain difficult in 2004. Nevertheless our sustained efforts
enable usto look forward confidentlyto a tangible improvement in our operating margin.

Michelin tires are designed to “swallow” all obstacles!

Edouard Michelin
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Confronted with unprecedented external cost increases,
Michelin absorbs the shock and strengthens
its international presence

~ Operational margin stands at 7.4%. With a constant business scope,
that is excluding the consolidation of the Viborg group over a nine-month period,
the operational margin appears to be practically stable at 7.7% against 7.8% in 2002.

" In line with the Group's decision as previously published, goodwill in connection
with the Viborg acquisition was amortized in a single operation, and its impact
alone accounts for the net earnings shortfall.

— Net financial debt decreased for the fourth year in a row, and the improvement
in the operating cash-flow has enabled us to ensure the funding of a financial
investment program up by 30% and establish a positive free cash-flow.

In millions of euros December 31, Variation December 31,
2003 2003 /2002 2002

Net sales 15,370 (1.8%) 15,645

Excl. impact of curréncy fluctuations +5.0%

Operating income 1,143 +6.7% 1,225

Operating margin as a % of net sales 7.4% + 0.4 pt 7.8%

Net income 329 +96% 614

The rules and methods applied for the establishment of the consolidated accounts at December 31, 2003 are in accordance with the accounting rule 99-02

of the French Comité de la Réglementation comptable.

Operating income eroded

by the weight of towering external
costs and unfavorable exchange
rates

One of the main factors behind the drop
in operating income is the additional
€320 million compared with 2002 spent on
raw materials consumed.

While Michelin is relatively insulated from
currency variations, owing to the well balanced
geographical spread of its operations between
commercial and production sites, the dramatic
rise of the euro against most other currencies,
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Michelin was nevertheless able to absorb part
of these adverse conditions through sheer
operational resilience:

B price/mix improvement for the third year
running amounted to 1.6% at constant
exchange rates and volumes. Over and above a
product mix improvement, 2003 benefited from
firm pricing worldwide, as all price increases
held out.

B productivity rose significantly, as reflected
by:

" a 3.7% volume growth in tons in 2003 ‘after
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1 efficient cost control that helped cap rises
in many external expenses including energy,
transportation, insurance and employee
benefit charges and obligations.

Positive €19 million
non-recurrent income

This income is generated from the following
operations:

W reorganization provisions amounting
to €192 million, mostly in connection with
the measures announced in January 2003
concerning Spanish operations and
recorded in the Company accounts

at 30 January 2003 ;

W a €307 million positive
impact resulting from root-and-
branch reform of benefit
obligations, in particular in
North America and Japan. .

Goodwill accounting
for €306.5 million drop in net
earnings

The goodwill in connection with Viborg's
acquisition was amortized over the year.
Being achieved in a single operation,
as opposed to spreading it over several
accounting periods, is the reason for
the €328.9 million drop versus 2002 net
earnings of €614.5 million.

For the third year running, Michelin
generated a positive free cash-flow*,
although it significantly stepped up
its investment program

Michelin was able to finance all of its

Results
2003

the third year running. Selective capacity
increases were made in Mexico, Brazil,
Asia and Eastern Europe. The Group also
expanded its global footprint through the
buyout of minority interests in Poland and
China, and strategic agreements in South
Korea and India.

At the end of 2003, the cash-flow accounted
for 9.2% of Michelin sales (against 7.8%
in 2002). This is stated after payment of
€357 million to the different pension funds
and unfunded defined benefit plans. As was
the case in previous years, the cash-flow
largely covers payment obligations to
unfunded benefits (pension funds,
healthcare costs). Contributions
made in 2003 amounted to
€133 million, in line with
Group estimates.

Net financial debt:
down €378 million

Michelin's debt decreased for the forth
year in a row and stands at €3.4 billion.
Gearing “net financial debt / stockholder
equity” has been brought down to 78%
compared to 85% at the end of 2002.
In mid-November 2003, Michelin further
strengthened its financial structure with a
€500 million, 30-year, deeply subordinated
note issue, repayable in cash. Both French and
other European investors subscribed to this
highly successful operation. It has enabled the
Group to increase its financial flexibility and
extend the maturity of its debt, at a time when
the economic environment is increasingly
volatile.




Business segment information

Operating income

Operating margin
(as a %
of net sales)

2003

Millions in%

2002 Variation 2003 2002
03/02 '

Millions in %

of euros of total ofeuros of total '
Passenger Car/Light Truck 664.0  58.1% 765 624% -13.2% 8.9% 9.6%
Truck 5215 45.6% 485  39.6% +7.5% 13.1% 123%
Other activities (42.4) (3.7%) 24)  (2.0%) NS (0.9%)  (0.5%)
Total Group 1,1431 100% 1,225 100% -6.7% 7.4% 7.8%

While the Passenger car - Light truck
segment'’s operating margin jumped 2 points
between 2000 and 2002, its 0.7 drop in 2003
stems from North American operations.
A lack-luster tourist activity in North America,
combined with external cost inflation, led to
a relative reduction of the operating margin.
Indeed, neither the positive effect of exchange
rates nor progress posted on other world
markets were able to offset these negative
factors.

The picture is much brighter in the Truck
segment, which, after a marked erosion
of profits in 2001 caused by a slump in the
North American sector, now posts an 0.8 point
increase, confirming the upward trend noted
in 2002.

This substantial improvement is the fruit of
a successful sales strategy coupled with cost
structure improvements.

With a constant business scope, the operating
margin from Other activities, is almost stable.
As in 2002, a number of these businesses
:including Earthmover in particular- were hit
by the appreciation of the euro against a large
number of currencies, including the American
dollar. They also had to cope with steep
increases in raw material prices.

Although both Euromaster in Europe and TCl
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improvement measures has yet to be fully
reaped. Moreover, the 9-month consolidation
of Viborg told against operating income to
the tune of €15 million.

At our current business scope, therefore,
the operating margin of Other Businesses
edges back 0.4 point.

Prospects

Michelin is more than ever geared to
expanding its global footprint, and improving
performance and its global competitive edge.

The Group, however, remains cautious. It does
not expect its markets to outstrip its historic
long-term 1% to 2% average growth trend.
What is more, external inflationary pressure,
arising in particular from raw material costs,
should remain high, as should the euro versus
the dollar.

The Managing Partners will recommend
a €0.93 per share dividend distribution,
unchanged from last year, at the forthcoming
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held
on Friday May 14, 2004 at Clermont-Ferrand.
Notwithstanding a drop in net earnings,
this decision reflects, in what remains a volatile
environment, the Group’s confidence in
its global expansion, in its ability to upgrade
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Consolidated statement of income - Year ending December 31, 2003

In thousands of euros 2003 2002

OPERATING REVENUE
Net sales 15,369,820 15,645,074
Reversal of allowances 28,208 10,982
Other operating revenue 576,621 455,099
15,974,649 16,111,155

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchases used in production 5,372,669 5,290,864
Payroll costs 4,996,925 5,152,143
Other operating expenses 3,360,310 3,255,493
Taxes other than on income 244,355 231,713
Depreciation and amortization 818,526 891,383
Charges to allowances and provisions 38,792 64,360
(14,831,577) (14,885,956)
OPERATING INCOME 1,143,072 1,225,199
Net interest expense (224,887) (260,257)
- OPERATING INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 918,185 . 964,942
Net non-recurring expenses 18,679 75,209
Income taxes (261,435) (382,455)
NET INCOME OF FULLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES 675,429 657,696
Income (losses) from companies accounted for by the equity method (8,750) (11,570)
Amortization of goodwill (337,817) (31,641)
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 328,862 614,485
Minority interest 11,330 33,682
NET INCOME 317,532 580,803
Basic earnings per share 2.23 428
Diluted earnings per share 2.23 4.28

Simplified balance sheet
In millions of euros 2003 2002

Fixed assets 6,601 6.730
Current assets 9,565 9,581
» of which inventories 2,769 2,860
» of which cash equivalents and cash 1,774 1,209
TOTAL ASSETS 16,167 16,311
Stockholders’ equity 4,327 4,329
Minority interests 82 173
Provisions for contingencies and charges 3,006 3,444
Liabilities, deferred income and accrued expenses 8,751 8,365
¢ of which subordinated debt 500 0
e of which long and short-term debt 4,714 5,027
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 16,167 16,311




Michelin, a trustworthy company

Each year, Edelman (the world's largest public
relations firm) measures the credibility of
corporations, institutions, NGOs and the media
through its Trust Barometer. The survey, which
interviewed 1,200 opinion leaders between
December 2003 and January 2004, ranked Michelin
second among Europe’'s most trustworthy
enterprises and organizations.

In the United States, Michelin is in 6" place, ahead
of Coca-Cola, Microsoft and Ford. Michelin
is the highest-ranking non-American company
in this rating.

According to this study, customers place their trust
in companies that have “a history of delivering top
quality products and services” and who are known
for “listening to customer attitudes and opinions on
satisfaction”.

Honda and Nissan choose
Michelin's PAX System

At the Detroit auto show, Michelin announced that
in 2004, two of the world’s largest manufacturers
would present one of their models for the North
American market fitted with Michelin PAX System.

“We are delighted to include two new car industry
giants in the portfolio of manufacturers who are
PAX System customers, a portfolio that is constantly
expanding,” said Tom Chubb, of Michelin's North
America Car and Light Truck marketing department.
“This decision by Monda and Nissan will
significantly increase the presence of PAX System
in North America and will play a key role in
the growth of PAX System in the other market
segments. "

In Europe, Renault has reaffirmed its confidence in
Michelin's PAX System, making it available as optional
equipment on the new Scenic as of this summer.

Michelin Group tires equipped all of the 2004 Dakar winners

All the colors
of the publishing arm

The Michelin Red Guide 2004, with its latest crop
of stars, has just been released, accompanied by
“The Saga of the Michelin Guide”, a little book
recounting the adventures of a world-renowned
guide that has stood the test of time.

Michelin is also launching a number of new
products in early 2004: the Green Guide for Croatia
and three new titles in the collection of special-
interest guides, taking walkers on itineraries with
a sporting, cultural or purely fun focus, as they
discover major cities and their surroundings,
not forgetting a selection of recommended
establishments.

In the United States, Michelin is launching a new

collection known as the “Must Sees”, indicating the

essential things every visitor should do or see in a

particular town in America, depending on schedules.
)
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Michelin and Apollo Tyres
join forces in India

In November 2003, Michelin signed a partnership
agreement with Apollo Tyres, a key player in India's
tire industry and leader in the Truck segment.
The two partners formed a new company, Michelin
Apollo Tyres Ltd, in which Michelin holds a 51%
stake. The new company will produce, sell and
distribute radial Truck and Bus tires on the Indian
market, and will also commercialise other ranges
of tires. The agreement also stipulates that Michelin
will provide technical assistance to Apollo Tyres for
the production of Car tires under the Apollo brand

This agreement stems from the recently
initiated changeover to radial technology
in India’s Truck market and strong growth in its
motor vehicle market.

This is an important step in Michelin’s strategy
towards establishing the company and expanding
its business in India.




On January 20th, 2004, for the fourth year
running, Michelin convened its shareholders
to a meeting in Paris, attended by some
2,600 shareholders. Under the chairmanship
of Mr. Edouard Michelin, the meeting

was punctuated by a number of round tables
animated by operational managers.

These centered on a number of Group key
strategic orientations: international
development, the environment and
innovation.

Economic and financial performance

Mr. Michel Rollier, Group Financial Director, underlined
that, with one of the best profitability levels in

the tire and automotive industry, Michelin .
continues to extend its lead over its main
competitors in markets which remain
difficult.

Raising financial markets’'
awareness of Group chailenges,
so that its good economic §
performance is fairly reflected in the §
share price, requires significant ¢
effort. This has been underway for

several years now and hinges
on stressing three main points:

B Michelin should not be classified in the
automotive equipment sector, which has significantly
lower margins;

& Michelin’s activity is not cyclical: three quarters of
its sales are in the replacement market which enjoys
continuous growth: this market is relatively immune
to automotive production cycles, dependent on the
level of economic activity;

B Michelin has the resources to finance its growth:

with a level of debt considerably reduced since 1993,
it benefits from a healthy financial structure.

Mr. Rollier also reiterated Michelin's wish to preserve
direct contacts with its shareholders that resulted from
Michelin's registered shares. Positive trends in the
Michelin share price since 2002, observed in spite of
extremely volatile financial markets, show that
investors are beginning to appreciate the quality of the
Group's balance sheet, its prudent and rigorous
accounts and management as well as the solidity of
its fundamentals. In mid-December, out of 25 financial

analysts who foliow Michelin worldwide, 11 had
“Buy”, 13 “Hold" and only 1 “Sell” recommendations.

International development

Today, 85% of Michelin’s business is in Europe and
North America, regions that experience growth capped
at 2% per year. Michelin therefore actively pursues its
worldwide expansion policy in growth areas such as
Eastern Europe and the Middle East but also further
afield, with South America and Asia for example, due
to account for 20% of Group sales by 2005.

China - with its particularly buoyant automotive
market - can be viewed as a notable achievement of
Group international development strategy. Through
a series of joint ventures in which Michelin has

a majority stake, the Group quickly and successfully
established a strong foothold on this market
with a workforce of 4,500 producing
7 million Passenger Car or Light Truck
tires, to become China’'s Number
1 original equipment manufacturer.

Together with Messrs. Christian
Tschann, Director of the Europe
B zone and Mr. Pierre Desmarets,

¥ Director of the African and Middle
East zone, Mr. Edouard Michelin
discussed the different facets of
international development such as the
recent partnership with Apollo Tyres in India,
another promising market for the future.

How s Michelin developing in Africa and the
Middle East?

The Group's long-standing presence in these regions
gives it strong legitimacy.

Group product offering is differentiated according to
the zone, as customer expectations in Africa are not
the same as in the Middle East, which is more added
value orientated.

What is Michelin's policy concerning delocalization
of its production sites?

Michelin is strongly committed to the longevity of
its plants and believes that production remains viable
in higher wage cost countries. On the other, hand,
new factories are being set up in high-growth
countries where labor costs are indeed lower.
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but a positive impact on the cost of raw materials.
In a stabilized environment, Michelin is not particularly
sensitive to euro/doliar exchange rates, but should
the euro remain at its current level for too long, this
would damage European business growth and
competitiveness.

The environment and recycling of end-
of-life tires

Protection of the environment is part of the everyday
implementation of responsibility as Michelin
understands it. To speak about the processing of
end-of-life tires and recycling, Mr. Michelin called
on Miss Patricia Le Gall, Environment Manager,
and Mr. Joél Pouget, the Chairman of Aliapur. This
entity has been set up jointly by Michelin and its
competitors to collect 100% and recycle 70% of
end-of-life tires per year. They can be used as a non-
polluting energy source in cement works or
as components in asphalt road surfaces which are
more long-lasting than traditional surfaces. Michelin
actively promotes improved product recycling
opportunities.

What effect does the cost of reprocessing have
on the price of tires?

The cost of reprocessing, spread evenly over collection,
storage and recycling, accounts for around 2% of
a tire's price.

What are you doing in terms of noise reduction?

The contact of tires on the road generates noise.
Enormous progress has already been made in this area
where Michelin R&D is very active, while always
bearing in mind that we will never compromise safety
or grip to reduce noise.

Innovation

Mr. Michelin used this occasion to praise the
commitment of the 4,000 or so Group R&D employees,
for whom innovation is a daily motivation. He stressed
that innovation has always been the key to Michelin's
growth, and reflects our view that progress and vehicle
development go hand in hand. He indicated that the
tires of the future will increasingly communicate with
vehicles and motorists, relaying their “reading” of the
road, for example alerting the driver if the road
is slippery.

Mr. Pierre Menendes, head of Technical
Communication, retraced the innovation process from
anticipation of customer requirements through
to marketing, using the example of the Energy tire,
which has sold over half a billion units to date.

Mr. Pedro Costa, head of "Extended Mobility” products

~ T

larger trunk, third row of seats, more interior space.
This advance modifies the consumers' relationship
with their vehicle.

What devices are you developing to warn drivers
their tires are under-inflated?

The Group designed and offered automotive
manufacturers the EnTire Solution pressure monitoring
system. This has been approved for the Renault
Laguna. Michelin is currently developing a new
generation of automated pressure monitoring systems.
Michelin runs awareness campaigns on motorways.
it is worth recalling that 60% of vehicles have at least
one dangerously under-inflated tire.

Discussion and conclusion
by Mr. Edouard Michelin

In your opinion, what are Michelin's current
weaknesses?

At the moment, Michelin is still insufficiently Asian,
South American, African or Middle Eastern and
s striving to increase its presence in these countries.

The operating margin needs to be raised, particularly
on certain specialty tires and on wheels, for example.

Product time-to-market needs to be improved,
particularly in the top of the range.

Mr. Edouard Michelin brought the meeting to a close
by stating that the Group clearly stands out as
a healthy and dynamic company, which posts
satisfactory results. But “nobody’s perfect”, and
building a company is an ongoing process.

He underlined the Group’s ambitious economic and
progress target of 10% mid-cycle operating margin
based on quality growth and products that make
the difference, all over the world, stating this was a
good “ground clearance” level for Michelin, before
concluding with these words:

“ Today, more than one in four new vehicles worldwide
is fitted with Michelin tires. The road remains one
of the finest instruments of individual freedom and
we will continue contributing to improving the
mobility of goods and people. You can count on us
to do our utmost.”
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Sébastien Loeb with Citroén-Michelin: first driver from southern Europe to win the Swedish rally!

Publication of Michelin’s first
Performance and Responsibility
Report

The Michelin group has published its first
Performance and Responsibility Report (available
in English and French). The report is a
comprehensive appraisal of the way the Group
is putting its values into practice to serve the
cause of sustainable mobility. It presents a very
concrete description of the steps taken to ensure
respect for customers, respect for people, respect
for shareholders and respect for the environment,
guided by a constant concern for respect of the
facts. It explains how the Michelin Performance
and Responsibility approach is deployed across
the Group and sets out the key progress objectives
adopted. :

The publication of this
document (a world first
among tire manufacturers!)

| MICHELIN :

will be of interest to all oo
those eager to find out more
about the Michelin Group
and the way it assumes its
responsibilities towards all o R il

of its partners, both internal and external.

The document can be found at www.michelin.com
Icorporate; it is also available on request from the
Individual Stockholder Relations Department.

Successful deeply-subordinated
debt issue

In November 2003, Compagnie Générale des
Etablissements Michelin issued 30-year deeply-
subordinated notes to the value of 500 million
euros, with a call option on the tenth anniversary.
The issue was an undeniable success,
with applications ocutnumbering the offer by
ftwao to one, confirming the positive image Michelin
enjoys with investors.

This issue is part of Michelin’s ongoing effort
to improve its financial profile. By issuing notes with

“a "lowest-ranking debt” status and extending
the average maturity of its debt, Michelin increases
its ability to anticipate and respond to changes in
its financial environment.

EnTire Solution
on the road to success

Only a few months after its official launch at
the Tokyo motor show, EnTire Solutions LLC,
a 50/50 joint venture between Michelin and
TRW Automotive, has just recorded its first
commercial successes: both Fiat and Honda
will shortly equip a2 number of their vehicles
with the innovative tire pressure monitoring
system.

The system relies on
pressure sensors located
inside each wheel in the
valve area and which are
in constant communication
with an onboard control unit. Unlike the majority
of systems already on the market, EnTire Solution
uses more advanced technology to inform drivers
sufficiently early of any slow leaks, giving them the
time to remedy the situation without compromising
their peace of mind.

Other customers with EnTire Solutions LLC include
a number of Hyundai and Kia platforms, together
with General Motors, who will mount the sensors
on one of its 4x4 platforms.

"From desert sands to Artic
snows” competition

The year is off to a good start for Michelin's
racing teams.

On the sand and rocky terrain of the Dakar,
the Michelin Group’s tires carried drivers to a clean
sweep in all categories: Roma in motorbikes with
KTM-Michelin, Peterhansel in cars with Mitsubishi-
BFGoodrich and Tchaguine in trucks with Kamaz-
Michelin.

In the World Rally Championship, Sebastien Loeb
and Citroén-Michelin carried off the season’s two
winter rallies (Monte-Carlo and Sweden), putting
an end to fifty years of exclusively Scandinavian
victories on Sweden's snow-clad roads!




Key DATES IN THE FUTURE
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The Michelin Share

In spite of healthy fundamentals, the Michelin share
experienced volatility under the influence of external
events including currency fluctuations and raw material
price increases. Against this difficult background, the
Michelin share continued on its upward trend begun
3 years ago, with a 10.7% rebound in the year,
and extreme variations of some 52%.

Last minute news flash...

Our Internet site has been completely revamped, and now
has a section called the “Stockholder's space”, which
has been purpose-designed to ensure that you can
obtain a quick answer to your main questions:
www.michelin.com/corporate

In order to further improve relations and exchanges with our
Stockholder Services, the following E-mail address is also now
operational: actionnaires-individuels@fr.michelin.com

Variation of CAC 40 index and the Michelin share price

29/12/2000 27/02/2004 Variation over 31/12/2002 27/02/2004 Variation over

the period . the period
CAC40 592642 3,725.44  -37.14% 3,063.91 3,72544  +21.59%
Michelin share price 38.55 33.80 + 0.65% 32.86 3380 +18.08%
Difference between '
Michelin and CAC 40 +37.79 - 3.51
Highest stock price in 2003: 38.11 € September 3 120
Lowest stock price in 2003: 25.02 € April 1
Average daily volume of transactions in 2003:
797,844 shares 100
Listed on the Paris “Premier Marché”
Euronext deferred payment service
ISIN Number: FR0000121261 80
Indices: CAC 40 - Euronext 100
Par value: 2 euros 60
Number of shares: 143,387,025
wemeem  Michelin = World automobile index A0 Lt i i e e
= CAC40 World tire index 01/2002 01/2003 02/2004

B Publication of 1st quarter net sales figure:
April 26, 2004 after closure of the Paris Stock Exchange
B General Assembly:
May 14, 2004 at 9 a.m. at Polyd6me - Clermont-Ferrand (France)

B Publication of 1st half results:
July 30, 2004 before the opening of the Paris Stock Exchange

TOCKHOLDER RELATIONS

INANCIAL COMMUNICATION

NTERNET ADDRESS

www.michelin.com/corporate
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- Michelin . . ey mmr s
Identity Card Michelin’s Mission

A driving force behind
sustainable mobility

S Michelin’s mission is to contribute to the
[ <1 progress of personal and goods mobifity and,
A beyond this, the development of society

Michelin operates in:
eTires and wheels

e Mobility assistance systems: Pax System, etc.

e Travel assistance services: ViaMichelin, GPS,
Travel Guides, Road Maps, etc.

EMICHELIN:FACT-BOOK 2003
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Identity Card Michelin’s Values
’f;'i-_ P Implementing our five values

R " eRespect for Customers

o eRespect for People

| eRespect for Shareholders

e Respect for the Environment

eRespect for Facts

Is at the very heart of the Michelin
- Performance and Responsibility approach
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Identity Card Michelin Performance and
. 7.;".”»;.:"? o

Responsibility Charter

e %k
Implementing our values,
assuming our responsibilities

® Published in May 2003,
this document spells out our
values to facilitate their
implementation within the
framework of our mission.

S ® It is an ongoing indicator

l  of our progress.

Chiste Pt re 0 ¢t
Hespest o Mretwehin
M el
Bregen

<l

in

-

.

T e
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" Michelin.' .. . -
Ideritity € g[ld Michelin Performance and

Responsibility Report

PP
('4“-'1 )/J . . .\
o /- s In the Charter, we explain our intentions,
o Y. m-" in this Report, we show our actions and first results

>

® |n our « Performance and Responsibility Report »,

NN . . .
A published in January 2004, we explain how we
How we - have striven, since our origins, to go from the
‘translate

expression of our five values to actions.

@ We expose our convictions, our results,
our improvement plans in every aspect
of our activities and values.

® Our objective: to achieve a high level of
performance, technically and economically,
with responsibility, always considering
the long term consequences of our decisions.

g"mn:nsum
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—* GROUP EXECUTIVE COUNCIL —————

B -
Thierry Hervé Bernard Didier Jean-Marc |} Christian Jim Michel Jean
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ldentlty Card

and techmcal .
éxpértise'

A Technology Center

across 3 continents

S/

Ihe Tech: é%‘%“k(z

S G

ioi:ihe.iutune. é/\v b\:\é“)’;\k
e : C)N RS Europe
< Research into’ Ol’th Amerlca

rew products ;/‘!

and processes \ -
: Scrent:flc \\{{7

Mlchelm, - .
Jdentlt' Card Organization
5 Geographical Zones
y oy
Coogaptica 40 _
Zones._y ” RS urope
AT ?y\i “ 5\
- Represent North\ Amerlca .
the Group . \ _( Asia
worlded - NG
A x ') : .
-Steermrldmde
' expansion at\ South America {
Group Ievel o
> ‘ . Africa
Middle-East
micheuiFACBOOK 2003
Pagel -6
Mlchelm, S . .
: Organization

@ Asia
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“Michelin =
rldent:t' Card

Y% 18,000 -
-4

16,000

14,000

12,000 -

10,000 -

4,000 -

+5 % *I 2002

(at constant 2,000

8,000 -

6,000 -

Key figures

Net sales growth (in € million)

scope ‘and. -;

]

‘MICHELIN-FACT-BOOK 2003

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

North America
(incl. Mexico)

O Other areas

Yo

Europe

Pagel-7

Mlchelln

EMICHELINFFACT-BOOK 2003

-

Key figures

2003 net sales by region

O Europe

B North America
(ind. Mexico)

O South America,
Asia, Middle-East
& Africa
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~Michelin.-
Identlty Card

Key figures

A worldwide presence

United Kingdom

’ ?-l-eaf:lqu.;rriered
'in Clermont: -,
‘ Ferrand (France)

China
Japan

74 product:on/
"Sités: m, 1 8
countnés«

;/‘

in some 170
i 'tnes .

AMICHELING FACI'-BOOK 2003

Page | - 8

France: UK: 1 plant Canada: 3 plants
8 plants Dundee Bridgewater
Bourges Kitchener
Cholet Poland: 1 plant Pictou
Clermont- Olsztyn
Ferrand (2)
Lille Russia: 1 plant
Montceau Davydovo
-les-Mines
Roanne
Toul

USA: 8 plants

Laem Chabang

Spain: Phrapadaeng

3 plants
Lasarte . ¢
Valladolid, o GErmany3 ‘Brazil: 1 plant
) fants Resende

Colombia: 1 plant
Cali

Manufacturing plants
(as of 12/31/2003) .
Italy: 2 plants

Cuneo Passenger Car &
Turin Light Truck rroduct Line

S MICHELIN
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France: 6 plants
Avallon (Retread)
Clermont-
Ferrand (2)

La Roche | Yon
Poitiers

Tours

France: 14 plants
Bordeaux

Bourges
Clermont-Ferrand (3)
Epinal

Le Puy en Velay
Montceau-les-mines
Poitiers

Troyes (2)

Vannes

Tours

Canada: 1 plant
Waterville

UK: 2 plants

Ballymena USA: 2 plants
Stoke on Trent Spartanburg
(Retread) ' Covington

s
Poland: 1 plant
Olsztyn

“Nongkae
Phrapadaeng

Brazil: 2 plants
Campo Grande
Resende (Retread)

Colombia: 1 plant
Karlsruhe Bogota

Manufacturing plants
(as of 12/31/2003)

..(Retread) = Retread only Tr UCk Product Line

Pagel-9

Canada: 2 plants
Waterville
Bridgewater

Poland: 1 plant
Olsztyn

Hungary: 1 plan
Nyiregyhaza

Colombia:
1 plant
Bogota

Brazil: 1 plant
Resende

Manufacturing plants
{as of 12/31/2003)

Specialties
Product Line Division

MICHELINM
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he pl. j
PLANTATIONS ;,35;";?;:;;';;
(as of 12/31/ 2003) Michelin’s natural

rubber needs

Page I - 10

" --Michelin .- - :
i;{qen;ityi‘eg;‘q Main investments in 2003

e Passenger Car & Light Truck:

further converting European and North American Passenger Car & Light
Truck production lines to manufacture higher seats (17" and over)

e ot E ¢ Investments in Eastern Europe: Russia (Davydovo), Poland (Stomil) and
IR E N Romania
I\!éti . .. * Capacity increases in Thailand (Laem Chabang facility), and
A 5'nvestn'1ents‘:< modernization of Shanghai Michelin Warrior facility in China
“(net CAPEX & * C3M Investments
";net‘financcial ® Truck:
' investments): . « Restructuring in France

- € 125‘,,;;,0,7, * Modernization of Stomil facility (Poland)
in2003: " - * Capacity increases in Asia
¥, » Investments in North America: Spartanburg facility (X-One)
Colombia: radialization of Bogota facility
investments in steel cords facilities in Europe, Brazil and China
e Distribution: acquisition of Viborg distribution network
e Acquisition of minority stakes: Stomil (Poland) and Shen Yang (China)
e Acquisition of 2.7% of Hankook (Korea)
e Creation of a joint-venture with TIGAR (Yugoslavia)

LRI P A
€ 0:87 billion”
in 2002; A,
€107 piltion. *
in 200%: =

-MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003

-
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- ~Michelin..

JAdentity Card

;Afbalan‘qéhl
) brandu o
- portfoia

To support .
“our global -
| multi-brand' ;
strategy -

- + N

A e
Kileber

l Reason }:

S 4

Brands & Brand Awareness

Our most valuable assets: our brands

:} Passion |

BUNIROYALE

TETAURUS

P&A Brands & kormoren

T, [ AETTTERT S, N

il

[=cot

g

Pagel- 11

" <Michelin.- :;
identity Card Brands & Brand Awareness
Identity-Cara
* e s ., 7
L A T Tst COMPETITOR
[» P . MICHELIN in Market Share
' S . Quality . Quality
&2 ,‘_: EUROPE Last update Equity ranking Equity ranking
e / France Q2-2003 7.1 No. 1 3.9 No. 2
Tu s i = - Germany Q2-2003 6.4 No. 1 5.1 No. 2
e UK Q2-2003 6.2 No. 1 5.5 No. 4
U Italy Q2-2003 6.6 No. 1 58 No. 2
i ffv:. . Spain Q2-2003 6.3 No. 1 3.9 No. 4
/. Eq‘-."ty - Belgium Q2-2003 84 No. 1 7.4 No. 2
LT .= T Greece Q2-2003 7.4 No. 1 5.3 No. 2
L T Paland Q2-2003 6.8 No. 1 6.1 No. 2
+Salience Russia Q2:3003 54 No.1 5.2 No.2
PR N Sweden Q2-2003 5.7 No. 1 4.4 No. 2
BN o Switzerland Q2-2003 5.4 No. 1 3.9 No. 2
-Per CE;!VEd. [CsA 1 June2002 | [ 761 FNoi |72 | WNe.z |
Y 7 iy |canada [ 32002 J[ 76 1 Neo.1 65 | No.3 !
. Quality — i,
FES [Brazil I w2002 [ 60 ] WMoz [ 74 [ Noz |
Japan Q3-2002 5.1 No. 2 8.4 No. 1
Thailand Q3-2002 7.9 No. 1 7.8 No. 2
Australia Q3-2002 5.9 No. 2 6.3 No. 3
China Q3-2002 6.4 No. 1 4.5 No. 8
: Ranking from 1 to 10 (10: optimum)
A - Source: Michelin
"MICHELIN:FACT-BOOK 2003 “MICHELIN
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Part Il

Tire basics

"How to read a tire
Tire components
Tire technology
Tire production

Fact-book 2003
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How to read a tire?

The "Bils” lagn ondientas the yuaar wgiaatize ladmten

Fezrared 1rugs mark

S5 . R

;rhe markings:

_an international
“obligation

“MICHELIN.FACT-BOOK 2003 g'\n"cusl.lm

- &

Page ll - 1

How to read a tire?
Sidewall

How to Reosd o Sidewetl

1. 205 - HIMth of The Yire it miimerers, 6. ¥+ D MaRing (el vira oound
2. 55~ Acpeit radG (This siiewall’s height SUStIN spLeds up 19 143 mpi),
is roughly $5% (f the titg widih), 7. 26T V- Manutaciurers name fur treag
3 R FurRad SNSEMICHIon, gesgn &g architiacture.
& 16 - Gimneter of the wheel lin inthss)
an which the 2ire fits M
5. 88 fiumerk sl CGite asseckited with ize aesigaztions may be orevedsdt

. e rmRsimus IGEHs a Lirg SR CHTy. v o TR sigaifying Paisenger.

e S o)
‘MICHELIN:FACT-BOOK 2003 ) -

MICHELIN
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R How to read a tire?

Speed ratings
Speed | Maximum Speed
Rating Km/h MPH
T - M 130 a1
M N 140 87 Passenger Car Speed
) 4 150 93 Segments Rating
" Y, Q 160 100 Mass-market S, T
PR R 170 106 Performance H V,2Z
EE S 180 112 of which
T 190 118 High Performance V, ZR
H 210 130
v 240 149
v 240+ 140+
w 270 168 ZR**
Y 300 186 l
300+ 186+
(W and Y speed ratings are

sub-categories of 2)

iMchEL_lﬁfFAtr-Boox 2003 E@

Page Il - 2

Tire components

Structure of a tire

) Tread band and tread groove design
Crown reinforcement:

Nylon belt plies f::l::“on
Steel belt plies &3
Sidewall

Casing ply _ 4
Casing
ply turn-
up

/Plam I;:;king
. on the ‘outside

g

Sophisticated
on‘thé, igside

Rim flange
‘- in the form

-

S of a bead
< heel
Reinforcement
Airtight rubber Bead wire
" i ol interior
wiceukmcsoocs ™ Y

- T - &

MICHELIN
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N Tire technology
ol < Product development (1/2)
Dry and Comfort
| eSS wetgrip
_Tires.are - \ The performance
des:gned Endurance compromise
*Jo L Wear
i ;ACarry,‘;:‘ .
2 - G d g ‘v ~
T Rolli Handling
L ansmlt ) :si :t‘agn & ( e Architecture and
L Absorb tread design
- Roll and i e Components:
B 3 adjustment J ¢ rubber mixes
areas s reinforcements
o Tire pressure
fnﬂcisk[ig SFACT- sopx ;_003 ‘ L '*MlanLlnl

Pagell - 3

Tire technology
Product deve/opment (2/2)

=
e Architecture @ .‘ g@t and
S 7 Tread design rygn’np
The product T
development

~ Rubber mixes
: Reinforcements

A > [Fueiu%' Bumption
MICHELIN FACT- BOOK 2003 ) N
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Tire technology

Cross-ply architecture (1/2)

A casing made up of
alternate cross plies, a
technique derived from
bandages used in medicine.

&_é__tru_étui,'e: the
-leadirig tire

“standard R .

“from the 20s ®S€veral textile plies are Jaid

to the 60s.  °bliquely running from bead to
AR, bead in alternate directions.

S

e Ply number depends on a tire’s
size and load bearing capacity.

® The number and thickness of

. plies is the same at the crown as

- - - on the sidewalls.

“MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003

Page Il - 4

e Tire technology
" Cross-ply architecture (2/2)

. Limited service life and poor value
- . - for money are due to:
Cross-ply ... o Excessive rigidity

.Structure: - , ..

Mo e Superimposed ply friction
‘the leading caused by repeated flexion
“tire’standard yrep

e overheating
e Poor lateral grip:
4;'7.}? ST * causing the tire to slide
. : heavily on the road
¢ quick wear on winding roads

from the.120s

‘MICHELINFACT-BOOK 2003

Y S
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<
4

-Radial .

“structure:

. today’s tire
standard .-
-inyented by
Michelin, in
1946 . .

£ a;:f v Tire technology

“ | Radial architecture (1/2)

® The Radial unfolds its secrets:
parallel carcass arches and a
belt reinforced with steel wires
e Total separation of the functions
of the sidewalls and crown.
® Reinforcement:;

» fabric carcass arches forming
a kind of tube

* surmounted by two layers of
metal cords crossed at an
appropriate angle (around 20°).

® A morphology ensuring that the tire sits
completely fiat on the road surface.

Page ll - 5

-Radial __
“structure:

standard -

Tire technology

today’s tire’

lngenfEd by disruptive transversal factors
-Michelin,in.

‘MICHELINFFACT-BOOK 2003

Radial architecture (2/2)

A revolution in tire design:

e Extensive pliability of a Radial’s sidewall:
* tremendous vertical flexibility
* high level of ride comfort.

e Extra wide road contact surface

enables enhanced:

* Direct steering
* Direction control when tackling

(sharp banking, gusts of wind)
* Wear resistance
e Sharply reduced heat build-up:
* Enabling riding at far greater speeds

5
S “MICHELIN

o
7 {(
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Tire technology

g -7EieE LI A key benefit of silica:
ey lowering tire rolling resistance
Lo ',",' Energy ‘

- B 7. absorbed

© . 7 bythetire

. \;’! Lo =_\‘ 2 ——— —.Qo—-s-'\,a—-

/f; Lo

““Green X" tire BT

(1993) by’ ’

Michelin:

- less rolling
resistance for
:the.same high
rubber.grip

 propertiés. et TR
BRI a 1 Rolling resistance 1000 Grip bracket Frequency 1
' bracket M Hz
........ High grip rubber compounds
low rolling resistance rubber compounds
. . New-generation silica compound combining
MICHELI I‘\lFACI'B 00K 2 003 low rolling resistance and good grip E%‘MICHELIM

Page ll - 6

o Tire production
The standard production process
-constant.
“quality tires
-calls fora'’
complex, .-
delicate "
andslow:,
mahufacturing
‘process.prior.
‘to cuking<- .
Joe T T
f@\nlé}iggl@:ﬁ;\qﬁsyox}oo3

A
5,

“IMICHELIN
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e

&
7L



Michelin Fact-Book 2003
Tir»e» Basics

February 2004

al Tire production

The production stages

® Preparation of

R semi-finished
N products
: ® Assembly
K e confection
o finishing
® Curing

wE - @ Control

:MICHELIN-FACT-BOOK 2003
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_World Tire: Key elements
- Market.. =
LA e Tires: a US$71bn market in 2002
L A R, )
S G
A e,
< : 70 /
I L 60 -
‘Along:term 5, |
“growth trend .
:‘;.-n‘ £l i :.’%._’ 40 4
In20years,, 301
the tife market
moré.thar.» . *°
" doubled in. ;'t 10 |
“dollaF-terims:..
¥ - 2 ".\— s o} - —
: S5 L 83848586 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02
;M';é“ELIKI"FRCiTBOOK L2003 Source: Rubber & Plastics News - September 2003 E@

Page Il - 1

Key elements

World Market by Product Line

[ Passenger car / Light truck

~~ L = Truck
Passenger Car

;&'VLighij:;Trucl.( O Earthmover
- :t [r"u.":k =t 51.1% 0 2-Wheels

close 10 85%
- . of-total>* W Agricultural
TR N
- "?irkﬁf,.l} 0 Aircraft

Source: Michelin estimates

SR \%‘Mlcnsum

“FACT-BOOK 2003

EMICHELIN
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2
&
€

)
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World T:re‘) Key elements

A global and geographically
balanced market

, R South
A T America
AT Middle East 6% North
o PR & Africa America
:1. - 7% 29%
Europe +
North Amerlca Asia

(exd. Japan)
21%

Close lto 70%
of‘ the\mfrket

Japan
9% Europe
28%

Source: LMC 2003, Michelin estimates

2002 passenger car, light truck and truck tires sales volumes (in tons)

1 Truck tire ~ 6 Passenger Car and Light Truck tires

:MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Page

1 -2

World Tlrex Key elements

Original Equipment (OE)
and Replacement (RT) markets

Original Equipment

makers
: - Manufacturers

Tlre makers have
2 sales channels

Orlgmal R
Equlpment (OE)

>and . _e,'-"' :'.7,_

Replacement (RT)
also,calledx _.; .
After-market

Consumers
End-users

‘m:cneunl

ég
([P

A
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|- World Tire:~
- Market. —

N AT

i

b
Worid m:-_J'rk.é_t :
(2003 . -

-

127 million tires
(Radial + Bias);,

3 out of 4 tires are replacement tires

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Key elements

O Passenger car and Light trudk
Original Equipment

B Passenger car and Light truck
Replacement

14%
O Heavy trudk
Original Equipement

# Heavy truck
Replacement

86%

Source: Michelin

Page Il - 3

R W i .
“materials:

S

netsales
g A
37% of cost.
of goods sold

i B

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Raw materials

Breakdown of raw material needs

Textile and
Steel Cords Natural
17% Rubber

24%

Chemicals
11%
Synthetic
Rubber
Carbon black 23%
and Silica
25%
At December 31, 2003
~ ?E‘MICHELIM

7
S
&

!
13,

“MMIICHELIN
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‘ch)rld Tlre‘ 2

Ol’ (brent, US$)
+ 15%, 200372002
-'{5%, Jan. to Dec. 03

¥ Biltad:ene (in USS):
# 37%, 2003/ 2002

,+4%’ ‘.toDec 03

Styrene- (m U$$)
#+ 32 %;: 2003/ 2002
+ 22%,e.lan to Dec. 03

Carbon blaxck b

(m US$I us- quallty)
F 16%, 2003/ 2002

“ 25%, .lan to Dec. 03

=MICHELIN FACI' BOOK 2003

Raw materials

Oil by-product prices are weakly
correlated to oil barrel prices

Comparative evolution of oil and monomer prices
(base 100 = January 2002)

20 ,
200 :
180 -
160

140

120 8- Brent US$/BL

‘/ \/’ T

Butadiene UScents / LB
100 - ={.~Styrene UScents / LB
=¥ Feedstock US
80 T -
» <] $
& »@ @1’ Sf& d& dt'& < o*'& *& Sy 4‘&
@ Y e Y
B ?{‘M’CHELIIII

Page lll - 4

MICHELIN FKCI’ BOOK 2003

250
7
R Natural Rubber 200
.,p icé up 35%
~ih 2002/ 2001 2 150
and agam 25% S
“in 2003[ 2002 2 100
{sing. $ { kg),
50
0

Raw materials

Natural Rubber

Evolution of Natural Rubber prices
since January 1993

EFEFL LSS S

— Natural Rubber RSS3, annual averages

%i‘MICHELIIII

54,

&

2
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4
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Raw materials

Natural Rubber: world demand expected to
grow with China as the main driving force

. . Natural Rubber consumption
T o 10,000 -

e E » 8000
P '. . 5 6,000 - m World
2 40 )
. Although =z 2 Dg: %: 20% 0% 1 China
i~supply is.
: forecasted to 1995 2003 2004 2005 B
‘bein balance Naturat Rubber production
With demand 10,000
— ,000
the sentiment World <000 |
mayJemaln C— Thailand .
. £ 6,000 |
. 2
T indonesia é 4,000 |
N Malaysia 2,000 d
=& China 0 j
consumption 1995 2003 2004 2005

5Mi§HE!.FN“F’ACT-BOOK 2003 Source: IRSG (International Rubber Study Group) g"MICHELIIII

R
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' World ‘.7;',;’9 The competitive landscape
| A concentrated industry

184% 17.4%

O Goodyear
f R O Sumitomo
- 1.8%

oL L . . . 37% O Michelin

.3 global . 19% : - O Bridgestone
Pléyers; :’59% 20% \ m Continental
’ e 24% o Pirelli

o c 0 Yokohama
7 m:d—s:ze o~ 33%

0O Cooper
players 22% 192% mKumho
- 38%
h O Toyo
- Others‘ local: O Hankook
and fiche . N 2 Others
-players); 18
Sl 191%
- L . . Source: Rubber & Plastics News
‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 - September 2003 }%‘-Mlcnsum

e
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World T'ref The competitive landscape
Market = P P

The 10 major tire makers in 1981
and the market structure in 2003

- GOODYEAR = = — = — $ GOODYEAR +
AR MICHELIN DUNLOP
A " FIRESTONE 'l BRIDGESTONE
' K - BRIDGESTONE (Firestone)
concentratmg DUNLOP
\industiy - Ly MICHELIN
S b PIRELLI ——M (Uniroyal-Goodrich)
BF GOODRICH :
CONTINENTAL "> CONTINENTAL
(General)
UNIROYAL
GENERAL .|~ PIRELLI
(Armstrong)

MICHELIN FACT BOOK 2003 )

Page lll - 6

World T'fe The competitive landscape

2002 tire sales in % of the major
tire manufacturers’ net sales

.The 3 global tire

N . Close to
Bridgestone, 100% g9%

3 80%
gires ES 80% of

net sales,\ ’ 45% 45%

Tires are thelr
core busmess

\

Michelin Bridgestone  Goodyear  Continental Pirelli

- L ) C - Source: 2002 Annual reports ’ié
‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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i World Tlref

The competitive landscape

% breakdown of net sales by region

of the major tire manufacturers in 2002
(all business fines except for Goodyear and Pirelli: tires only)

A T 9
i 13% 19% 9% "
B 46% ' 26% o
39% 3%
54%
] . 44% 65% 60%
b
Europe (48% » 27%
A 1M1%
Bndgestone
ASIa, (46%h : Michelin Bridgestone Goodyear  Continental Pirelli

Goodyear : (tires) (tires)

North Amenca (54%) U Asia - South America - Middle East & Africa

O North America (incl. South America for Bridgestone)
O Europe

=MICHEL|N FACT-BOOK 2003 Source: 2002 Annual reports

= e

%‘MICHELIM
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World Tlfe‘“ The competitive landscape
Market 2 P P

% R&D costs / net sales per
manufacturer (global players)

4.6%

3.0% 2.9%3.0% 2.9%

02000
82001
02002

02003

Michelin Bridgestone

Goodyear

Source: Annual reports

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E@
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World Tlre

:MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

oy * Passenger RT
. : Worth of ST

* " the world
market )
X (in euros) Radial

En try Truck
barr,ers for Passenger OE

h’ gh'mar g’n Bias Truck Passenger VZ

'se ments . fas Truc

g : . Agricultural Earthmover
ias Bias Radial Radial
Bicycle Motorcycle Aircraft  Motorcycle Aircraft

The competitive landscape

Market value and R&D content
by tire segment

>

+

R&D content

%‘*Mlcnﬁ;lm

Source: Michelin

Page il - 8

World Tlre
Market =

- intensive
industry.. .

MICHELIN FACT BOOK 2003

The competitive landscape

% capital expenditures / net sales per
tire manufacturer (global players)

" —e—Michelin (incl. the
creation of SMW joint
stock company in 2001)

' =O»Bridgestone

—t—Goodyear

2000 2001 2002
Source: Annual reports

Published accounts restated to ensure
:omparison with Michelin accounts

&#
o

[
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 World 'Tire: The competitive landscape

+ Market. P P

1.+ Operating margin per manufacturer
(tire business)

. ; —— Michelin
‘;“ - -~ Bridgestone
’ j’ L | =i~ Goodyear
-~ Continental
! == Pirelli
2000 2001 | 2002 Cooper

Source: Annual reports, Michelin estimates

Operating margin = net sales - cost of sales - S, G & A expenses
- & Published accounts restated to ensure comparison
EM]C’HEI'.IN

FACT-B00K 2003 withMichlinaccouns
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Part IV

The passenger car & light truck tire market

World market
- Most dynamic market segments
- Growth rates by geographical zone
~Innovation
RT & OE market shares
- Meeting consumer expectations
Building brand equity
Meeting carmaker expectations
Meeting dealer expectation
Product innovation
. Continued mobility
Tire pressure monitoring systems

Fact-book 2003 : MICHELIIII
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2003 World tire market
breakdown (in units)

ﬁ O Europe
“ . , = & North America
- Est:3003; o Asia
;;,,,'Q",",{éﬂ; L O AfricalViddle East
994 miltion u South America

N :A;ﬁ‘e.r"i_'tar\;; : O Original
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Original Equipment
market growth
Mainly driven by Asia

Million tires
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Replacement
market growth
Balanced across the world
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The 2003 world tire market
by product segment (OE+RT)
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The most dynamic
market segments

139 M Tires in 2005
Year 2002:
Base 100 in

Total Segment volume
{OE+RT Worldwide)

SUV: 135 M in 2005

R e i e i

SUV: Sport Utility Vehicle
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The most dynamic
market segments

Winter

T Japan accounts for 90%
Europe ' ™ - Asia | ©f volume sold in Asia
_{incl. CEl) = 19%
- accounts”: 2002 Worldwide
~for 72% of Market: 78 m tires
"total 2002
Winter.Tire North
~salesiand ‘America
- SO - 9% 1| Germany accounts for 77%
will post, - of volumes sold in Europe

- growth, ...
‘over the

in 2002 and 69% in 2008

Europe

) 72%

RPN Market seasonality: in Europe, 80% of Winter
‘ tire sales are made in the second year-half,
due to weather conditions

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 Source: Michelin EE@
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The most dynamic
market segments
T Winter
P 5’3;“-'1 Main reasons explaining winter market growth:
o . eConsumers are attracted to winter tires owing to

poor adherence of larger tires on ice and snow

*Drivers more and more conscious of safety aspects
owing to Insurance company awareness building
efforts

« External prescription (Consumer reports, ADAC,
Medias)

«Tire manufacturers built up their winter product
offering and marketing drives
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The most dynamic
market segments
: Performance
e Asia
o pgr e 3% 2002 Worldwide
9 -
Y sf’ {:'a i | Performance tire Market:
;- gloi a.’}'f_ . ; 242 Million tires
_growth for.
. 2Q02 ©2 0 Europe
v;‘. - 4.‘5 in*‘, . North 57%
Eerformance America
SRRt 20% Asia
I8 210/0
2008 Worldwide
Performance tire Market: }
380 Million tires | Europe
: 55%
= North
America
24%
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45 % p.a.';‘f Europe 71%

global™. &%
“growth in
+SUV, OEXRT
‘ : . Asia
21%
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- ,:Nof;_\t B - 10%
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2008 Worldwide
SUV tire market:
149 million tires

Asia
19%
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Source: Michelin
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SUV tire market:
114 million tires
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The most dynamic
market segments
e SUV
' w\_’ North
oy ~ America 2002 Worldwide
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The most dynamic
market segments
Tires tend to evolve towards the
higher speed index bracket

Increasmgly
heavy ‘ ; e 100% T‘ -
platforms - v
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spec:fla tlre - - - — ==
expertlse ] H ‘ nwvz
requrremqnts ' ﬂ o
from'the - . 1 2°"th_ 0% ‘ ot

_\) . merica H
g,utq‘q:llq_t {Vf. (OE market) zov/ﬂ P ‘ ‘ =P
Industry. . + oo LU AL b i
[ - = 1998 1399 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
A . - y

N S OE S ed ind E luti LMC 2003 e

NI‘ICHE—E.‘IJ EASEOOK 2003 Oulfﬁ- pe naex evolution - E“m

PagelV - 6

The most dynamic
market segments
Tires tend to be larger

100%

_ - -

Newcar .~ FEEEE] v ¢
poimsge-. T ERRRR e,
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larger and - a0% I I oo | | ‘ i
L] 13

ﬁeewer from 0% I I I . .
one generatlon - Seat diameter
to the next, 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 in inches
requmng; . 100 ,
larger fimsto?-
‘bear the oad . 8o% " ai
and:" ‘) had North. 60% b
correspondmg _ America nis

(OE ° 14
larger braklng~
systems market) 0%

. 0% +
"“.1 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

- The worldwide trend matches consumer demand
o driven by Europe and North America
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! World tire market:
healthy balance between
mature & emerging markets
et MATURE MARKETS
R MATURE MARKETS:
S e Japan 02002 Slow growth (+1.7%) offset
S Western Europe m2006p by huge volume base
- T drives a 47m tire sales
o - Canada . .
o o increase in 4 years
c USA

0 200 400 600 800

EMERGING MARKETS

EMERGING MARKETS: Russia
Low base offset by BUMGK 02002
huge growth rate (+9% p.a} cCentral Europe = 2006P
.. drives 44m + increase Mexico
- .%- in tire sales in 4 years
: China

BUMGK: Bielorussia+ i
Ukrenia+Moldavia+ 0
Georgia+Kasakstan

o

5
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Asia, as a whole, will enjoy
significant growth (+4.5% pa)
from 2002 to 2006
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Roll out of .~
Silica as key
"‘component’
‘to‘improve

resistance
héih.taih!;\ng '

wet,
performance

/

rolled out

Silica

" ../ A striking feature of the tire business:
\ innovation is rapidly integrated and

Weight of silica production
in total Michelin production
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Micf;glin: ;
-a.balanced -
‘market share
between
-Europe and':-

‘North ",f, .
A PP SRR
America .
. v 3

2002
estimated
market
shares in the
European RT

market
(exeel. Russia + BUMGK)

2002
estimated
market
shares in the
North
American RT
market
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landscape
17%
18%
9%
22%

28%

6%
2%

26%

Tire manufacturer competitive

Replacement market shares

24%

10%

22%

16%

O Michelin
Group

m Bridgestone
Group

0 Goodyear
Group

o Pirelli Group

o Continental
Group

m Others
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Tire manufacturer competitive

7
i landscape
o Original Equipment market shares
; 4%
S T 2002 28%
Rl estimated 27%
el market
Michelin: - - shares in the
ra balanced - European OE
‘market.sh market
Z,eat’!‘/ll(/:te-lsjhare {excal. Russie + BUMGK) 11% 13%

-Europe and":-

O Michelin

Group

2002 m Bridgestone
estimated Group

market 1 Goodyear

hares in the Group
shares - Pirefii
North Group

o American OE O Continental
ST market Group
’ = Others
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~ Tire manufacturer key challenges:
Meeting consumer expectations
. ,~ Car Park Segmentation 2003
,'W’.vdéhlj-( RS Medium ?
::g{ffere‘pt car pickup |
f’eSt - ‘ fekup oy
“characteristics suv CiNerth
S N America
Per: -+ . Minivan ® Western
geo_gr a.p ICQI MPV Europe
zone g .
Ry R Sporty 0 Asia
Luxury
Small
-’:«. 0% 20% 40% 60%
MICHELINFACTB00K 2003 _Source: Michelin [[Renicnseim|
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“»* Meeting consumer expectations
o Meeting moving expectations
. ) . 1
€ dsto‘in"ers : Mud Traction —— B HP (Sport)
expectatlons Ice Traction ————_ 4x4
.are moving  Customers Noise /——— OSuUV
even, w:thln expedat"'"ss,,ow Traction JBroadline
.the same .. by product $_,__f“—““‘_‘:’
| h l segment in Comfort w e,
geograp lca North TR s
“ America  Hydroplaning t:—:=
(2003) Handling — —
Wet Braking — e —
< Tread Life ,,,,, TR
” 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Source Mlchelln

W rscnecin
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Meeting consumer expectations

Driver annual mileage (km)

Big differences from one zone to the
other

Flat occurrence (%)

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003  Source: Michelin

t‘

RERAE North America | 19500 | [North America | 32%
it Europe 14 000 Europe 15%
. 0,
Ownership of of Germany: 760/0
winter tires: Japan  :26%
USA <5%
%
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% Meeting consumer expectations

A product offer adapted to local markets

Pesnel T with different requirements
"% T North America (OE+RT) Europe (OE+RT)

Lo e T (MAFTA)

el g L O Perform, H
Significant. 1% anee 22%
Ségméﬁif - - Performance _
RS vz v
g&;@ﬂ?{ﬂS = Light Truck 49%
’ ,e 3 @@W 52%
‘geographical B SuV B 199%
ZOW@ Mass-market T 39 7%

9%

Asia (OE+RT)

2003 market
breakdown 48%
(OE + RT)

Yiezzzm)

:MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003  Source: Michelin
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© “¥ Meeting consumer expectations

A product offer adapted to local markets
with different demands

| BRI *w A Morth America
). R (OE+RT) (NAFTA) Europe (OE+RT)
s : o 2% i
. 3%, - & Summer 22% g
. R Seasons &
£ Winter
75%
95%
Q,
6% 7%

Asia (OE+RT)
2003 market
breakdown
(OE + RT)

- PR "=
FVIICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 Source: Michelin 87% i}@}
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=3~ Meeting consumer expectations
-~ An answer to an unexpressed market
b expectation: a tire, service included

o  _.’_' - OnWay program :
Successful launch in France in September
' - 2003 Next step is Germany (2004)

- . i B Michelin OnWay: 3 services offered free for each Michelin car or
: ’( passengercar tire purchased
.. 9 A Tire Damage Warranty
~ % ' in case of puncture, shock, theft, vandalism, if the tire can be repaired,
matorists will have it
repaired free of charge. If it cannot be repaired, they will be compensated
accordmg to the degree of tire wear.

Tire assistance

Even if a puncture occurred in the middle of the night, assistance would be at
hand within an hour!
If the spare tire is in good condition, the repairman wilt mount it free of charge.
If nat, the vehicle will be towed and/or passengers put up in a hotel ar brought
back free of charge.
$06 Direction: if you are locking for a service station, a hotel, a restaurant ar
—pooTT = anitinerary anywhere

["hm in Europe, just call in and Michelin will solve the probiem for you with one of

i - the Michelin Red Guide

and Via Michelin salutions.

Plus useful advice on purchasing and use of tires.

All Michelin OnWay services are available throughout Eurc}e round the clock

M|CHEL|N FKCT BOOK 2003 and ail year-round on telephone request. e

- [ i

A
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.-+, Tire manufacturer key challenges:
‘ Building Brand Equity
e ¥ OE/RT Loyalty
- ; - Michelin
OF Loyalty-.. . Comp1
figurés ey Wiroyal
(foyalty at first Average loyalty | ™"
replacement) rate: 32% USA 2003 OE/RT
-.show Mlchelm o3 Loyalty Rate
"stands out as compm[ |
"'best of. class ” BFGoodrich Michelin
o e ——
.manufacturer ‘ verage loyalty
’n North - 5% 15% 25% 35% 45% 55% Carp.#1 rate: 56.5%
America "d OE Business gives come 2|
. end-consumers an e | Europe OE/RT
opportunity to Comp. 4 Loyalty Rate
test an_d Comats
appreciate our
products. ‘ g N
= 35% 40% 45% 0% 55% 60% " o
iMICHELIN FKCT BOOK 2003 Source Lleberman 2003 {(USA) / CSA 2002 (Europe) E‘:@l
>, 5

4
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A Buiiding Brand Equity
N Gty End Consumer
R Country | Date Michelin | Michelin
o Equity Quality

. s T Ranking | Ranking

- . : Fi 2-2003 | N°1 N°1
Consu rance Q

N Germany Q2-2003 | N°1 N°1
I a context
L UsA 2-2002 | N°1 N°1

of swff ey @

competgfgon, R Canada 03-2002 N°1 N°1
end-users- Brazil H1-2002 | N°4 N°2
acknowiedge " "

Mscheim o Japan Q3-2002 |N°5 N°2

hugh qualsty China Q3-2002 | N°1 N°1
sfandards :

Equity = Salience x Perceived Quality
(R ; Ranking from 1 to 10 (10: optimum)
; Source: Michelin £
LMICHELIN FACI‘ Bq(&gn; o o o i?@ﬂ
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Building Brand Equity

Racing activities

Competition
reflects our-.
pnde in our
techmcalw .
expertgse
amd '

' pmwdes an
opp@rwmiy

passmn For
excceﬁ@me '

with M‘ne
m@si’ St .
demandmg 3
e

T

ol
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Tire manufacturer key challenges:
).~ Meeting carmaker expectations

Support Carmakers:

ein their research efforts to improve
performance

ein their mission to adapt to new legal
standards

ein their mission to better meet end-user
expectations

- V'.i‘ N . ’ : -
“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E‘@
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;. -7~ Meeting carmaker expectations

“More car per car” Trend

’ *Handling 4  Pollution
e b sCrash avoidance . * Road infrastructure
ZOEMIS ru’es o All weather * Noise

*No rolling over * Recyclability

'of the game

|

"« Purchasing / Leasing
- & Fuel consumption

» Maintenance

* Repair

* Services

Extended home

*Comfort
*Roominess

el ess noise
eCommunication

R & o ) i £
CMIICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 EM
S e e T - 42

=
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" .-« Meeting carmaker expectations
How does this affect the tire business?
o Tires contribute to the “more car per

SEE AT ___car” trend

R . *Extended mobility e Pallution ~
- L *Electronic tire p * Road infrastructure
* _-.,:_'4‘ . [ -Tjre Pressure RegUIBtIOnS « Noise E

Monitoring Systems
sEndurance
sWinter

» Recyclability

Extended home
* Wear / mileage

sComfort N ¢ Rolling resistance
*Extended Mobility » Customer Relationship
-Incregsmg = Management/assistance
of vehicles * Warranty

sincrease seat

Page lV - 15

Tire manufacturer key challenges:
Meeting carmaker expectations

Distribution
>

Inventories”

- #5él-in
S ;sales =‘£-" Tire

e
o -

“Sell-in" sales =
Tire manufacturer sales

manufacturers

“+Sell:out”

i

trade organizations
such as ERMC or RMA

“Sell-out” sales =

5 Dealer sales
A Replacement

varigtions Market Market falloveup:

- i, dealer : organizaﬁon marketing surveys such as dealer

flowchart panel or market feed-back
Consumers
End-use

L e e S =
{MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003 !EM%J

A
J—h

£y
FZ MIICHELIN
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- Meeting dealer expectations
B Distribution is the link between our
T < product offer and the end-consumer
e China 2003
e ) % of Channel Weight in
Distribution: Sell-out the Market
muﬁiplic‘itff - market Tire Specialists | 82%
of - R USA 2003 Car Dealers | 3%
‘distribution Channel Weight in Car shops 6%
p’ayersand ‘ the Market Garages 7%
i ﬁrofi] es “ i Mass Merchants 16% N Others %
across thel. | | T f;/ Germany 2003
worl(j?:‘y 2 . s;f;ganu scturers 0 Channel Weight in the
e Market
e a3 Independants 44% - —
- - Tire specialists 55%
Large/Media Dealers| 18% Cor Dealers 3%
Car shops 4% Car shops 1%
Car Dealers 3% Others 2%

‘MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003  Source: Michelin
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) o

'Mi'c:helinfs:j '

to-énsure ' .
distribution .
through the
‘best partners
in terms of

challenge is~".

loyalty;to our
products-and-...

7 Meeting dealer expectations

Michelin ‘s Missi is Distributi
Partners:

¢ Develop Brand advocacy
» Offer and monitor best supply-chain solutions

* Promote and monitor top notch point of sale
professionalism

* Ensure point of sales staff training

¢ Build joint marketing operations with dealers

» Introduce/develop e-business solutions to
improve efficiency

¢ Ensure adequate support to the smaller players
through partnership arrangements
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Tire manufacturer key challenges:
Product innovation

"+ Main research axes:
5 eSecurity
eHandling
eEnvironnement
ePleasure

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E@}

Page lV - 17

Product innovation
European end-user expectations
T
T 2 L . o Road-holding performance on a wet surface -{L 1 879
;ﬁeﬁ@rma{nce Road-holding on a snowy or icy surface || 7 78%
5@ . We?"i' Road-holding performance at high “‘L 172%
SU"f acé‘i's Abllity to maintain constant performance ::::: J‘{ 171%
,k@y to ’[_ oF T Tire's ability to wi d shocks [ 70%
Eurbp@an Ttire’s ability to do lots of mileag 7 — 1 68%
end—u%@ r # (/ priving comfort | 168%
exﬁief?a Hons Fuel efficiency | 157%
' ?” ta Keep driving in case of a flat ]T i56%
Environmental protection Al‘ﬁ 150%
Aesthetic aspect ([ "120%
L e R £
‘MICHELIN FACT-BODK 2003 Source:Research Intemational 2003 Yz

e
) gg "-WVIHHCHELIN
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. Product innovation
S North American end-user expectations
Tire, ©
Performance
wet surface’ Treadiife | «‘] 21%
is the ;
second -most Wet Braking i 18%
:mportant -
criterion’in’ Handling - 14%
Northi ... .~ Level of
Amenca, i Hydroplaning 11%  importance
Weli beh'nd F North America
tread l:fe - Comfort »110%
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%
igﬂl;‘ﬁ’gg.g?l"i{.dngonfizoos Source: Michelin / Lieberman 2002 E;M

PagelV - 18

: Tire of grip on wet roads
g:t:‘:r atic °" Performance {hese 100 NXT tira)
on wet
‘Generatjon, surface is ENERGY 3
Michelin . - 140 )
the first
aims’ af~ : end-
impr ovmg consumer 3 ENERGY
adher ence:” expectation AT
P —i
126 ENERGY 2
107 st
| 1 1 1
1988 1992 1997 2003

‘MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003 Source: Michelin

Product innovation

Improving tire performance
on wet surfaces

Evolution of Michielin passenger car
firz performance in terms
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Product innovation

Improving environmental
impact of tires.

Radnctien in Ervd-it-lite vire vrogelivey raie i 2001 - -

an Michishy) {58 & pErCOnIRGE;
oo
-
B
te -
ot preyaain P Lo
thre g2
15 o 1
P
. el
Wewern  bxpai B aiaa
05 faikat T Arienita
i Sehertilanditlhy,
5
0
1437 1305 RECCTE
NG
MECHELIN FACT BOOK 2003 Source: =

Michelin
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Tire manufacturer key challenges:
Continued mobility

is the . carmakers and drivers:
sz’ ty fo > Mobility

P - Greater safety, more freedom, enhanced driving
dmw@@ m comfort

>Environment protection
>Vehicle redesign

- Increased passenger and cargo space
- Enhanced power steering

>New services

HELI FACI' BOOK 2003

[
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e Continued mobility
N\ L A budding worldwide market
Carmaker expectations

. .~ ®Spare wheel elimination accelerates and
R opens the road to innovation in rethinking
A vehicle design.

® Carmakers demand a “tire based” solution
and pull innovation beyond Run-Flat in the
market place.

® Today:

2 Multiple solutions with different potentials are
under evaluation in the market.

2 Demand is growing significantly but technical
trade-offs may limit the pace of development.

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 i~M
Lo — e L3
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Continued mobility
A budding worldwide market
Consumer expectations

Attitudes towards vehicle downtime

L {5‘?:—. (extremely or very important)
ey o Be able to keep driving to a repair location
-CO“S_";me."§ without damaging the rim or wheel Bafety 2%
EXpress - A tire that can be ff;si?:; - fter (Safety + Peace of Nind ] 66%
their rneeds
ior - Receive an assistance on location [Comfort + Peace of Mind ] 52%
increaséd;“ " Not to have to change the tire by myself[Comfort _————_147%
MObﬂlf_}{.ai]‘fi Get a courtesy vehicle immediately 42%
h ML

Get information on the repair locations [Comfort + Peace of Mind| 41%
¥ Turnonanalertsystemsolcanbelocated___ 141%
Get advice on the steps involved in changing a 34%
B tire {US: how to change a tire myself) °
Base: 4 countries

Noneofthese[ | 12% (Japan / USA /
: France / Germany)

.. Source Michelin: Research Internationat

;MI—C‘I-IEL"I;I"FACE'BOOK 2003 Extended Mobility Study 2003 iﬁ@ﬂ
L e - &L
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Continued mobility
A budding worldwide market
Consumer expectations

e N Flat tire-associated issues are viewed as

T very or extremely serious
Consimers
,expresfs Ce Losing control of the vehicle, 77%
thejr heeds
for - i Having a flat in an isolated or - - — T g
s in@reaﬁd;“f,; unsafe place - i
mobility _@md Being unsafe while changing the ————~—
safety’: " % flat tire: |HEe

Having a flat at night [ii _‘ ) _;47%
None of these | ' 15% Base: 4 countries
b (Japan / USA /

France / Germany)

MlCHELINFACT—BOOK 2003  Source: Research International 2003 s?m
Figis) savie e tnt PRt bblodd . S & |
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Continued mobility
Multiple solutions with different
potentials under evaluation

. . 2. e Solution without continued mobility capability
Continued . » Tire fit + Assistance

Mmhm L e Puncture resistant solution (Kleber Protectis)

is the ability

‘to keep < Solutions without extended mobility do not fully
fdﬁving: in address carmaker and consumer expectations:

: Ry ST * are inefficient in case of sudden air pressure loss

od) jﬁgﬁ @'f s require driver stop and intervention in non-convenient
o st,e - situation (rain, night, highway...)

Press RO ,;;;_,_ * require a “spare” solution in the vehicle

losg” -

@ Tire based solutions with cantinued mobility
capability
» Self Supporting Tire (55T):
example: Michelin ZP (Zero Pressure)
* PAX System: a potential new standard

L e - £,
‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 i‘@
it ot S - e
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< Continued mobility
Self Supporting Tire technology

Reinforced sidewalls for

. T run-flat conditions
An.entry reduce inflated tire
fevel . .. A T performance
f;?‘;g.zz : ® Main performance trade-offs:

Wii‘h “a @ Increased tire mass (ca. +25%)

; d:fferenf i o Higher fuel consumption (ca. +10%)

: Y o Increased structural tire stiffnesses impacts comfort
ba!aqm of e The concept limits run-flat capability:
performance 80 km at 80 knvh*

® Michelin ZP’s Approvals:

o Chrysler Viper (2002)
e Cadillac XLR (2003)

" 4. . -':‘ - _r_;
IMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003* Run-Flat capability measured on Michelin Run-Flat testing protocoi:@
L s _— 4

\S

Page IV - 22
Continued mobility
PAX System
"' N, - Improved Mobility
) LT Inflated Run-Flat without Security
T - T, Performances anyPaﬁurMmanoe
L e Tra
The g(eafgst — Environment
:,,;;po.te;nt:al + " Reductimcffuel * \_ Protection
-...fo meet o mstea
. market Higher Load PAX System ‘
expectations | cepcty S e
- T Redesign Design of
b e e I ~_ Vehidle
A - New Services for
Mobility
Undisputed Run- New
Flat Perfcrmance Services
MicHELNFACTBOOK 2003 [Ronricnerrn’
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Continued mobility

PAX System

The greatest potential for enhanced
Performance, Mobility and Safety

1- Asymetrical

A blg step wheel
forward for 2- Run-Flat
. the “t,re o Insert Ring
'"dUStry‘ 3- Optimized
" and unseatable
tire

4- Tire pressure
monitoring

: : ~ system o e
MICHELINFACTBOOK2003 V@@J
Page IV - 23
Continued mobility
N . PAX System
2 A market reality

Lo m_ A growing presence on all vehicle segments

Renault Scénic !
2001

Bugatti 16/4 Veyron
2003

, Audi A6 - 2003
Renault Scénic Il
2004 i J

“MICHELIN
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RPRINE Continued mobility
N PAX System
235 The innovation of PAX System:
’ Decoupling of Inflated
& Deflated Performance

inflated . Handling

Mode ) ~ Comfort \
‘.. ..  Rolling Resistance ¢ -3
Mass

Handling

" Speed
S i Autonomy

200 km at 80 kmh*

M H'ELl;‘d”FKCT'-BOOK 2003 * Run-Fiat measured on Michelin Run-Flat testing protocol i‘-;

Page IV - 24
Continued mobility
PAX System
A potential new standard
e Vehicle Design
- o Brake Space/
'-‘O—H'Siandard*tire g;y""'g Tireload
C e Chassis impact - 20 . (}:\apacity},:"
PAX System ; o
e e, Chassis fati ue - & . Tire mass
.y Self- R 9 e Cost of
+ Supportmg .............. . ) Ownershim
* Tire ¥ . Runflat Performance_ -5 % | -~ Roliing
Bend1mark (Handling+braking) #— : Resistance
MmhelmZP
) i Runflat endurance - — ... - Wear
S (mnleage-rspeed) ...........
““ e Run Flat . Vertical comfort ..
R Capablllty Bead unseating/ .-
e J-Turn
| B‘?‘"’g-_’m‘. Handlmg © - . _ - - Harshness {comfort)
- |:impravement . Rumble noise
ticm o | Driving pleasure _
-"Mlcuzun FI-(CT BOOK 2003 E@

g"‘MICHELIN
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e Continued mobility

13 Environmental impact and
' cost of ownership of
the two tire-based solutions

PAX Systerm . .

Y - Standard tire |Selfsupporting] PAX System
.offers o tire

continved - {benchmark:
:m@biﬁﬂ'ty - Michelin ZP)
| Whiﬂ@ <y Raw materials

e e 2 . consumed index 100 130 100
r“em aﬂ@ﬁqg . (standard tire: base 100)

enwvir qnmgnt

ang cost of |

Ty . End-user cost

Owne_fsiz'!? X of ownership index 100 145 109
c@n’sci@aﬁs b (standard tire: base 100)

w e

S Analysis of the environmental impact and end-user
o cost of ownership throughout a vehicle life time

o [[rucucem|

{MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003  Source : Michelin

Page 1V - 25

Continued mobility
0L Michelin’s
LT AT view of the market

»v. @ PAX System has the greatest potential for
- . =._ 7 mobility, safety and innovation in car
RS design
T » PAX System is the only solution that offers
I simultaneously enhanced performance and
EA ayt driving comfort, greater safety and more mobility
while preserving the environment

@ Self-supporting tires such as Michelin ZP
offer run-flat capability. Trade-offs limit
their range of application:

* Comfort, Fuel consumption, End-User Cost of
ownership

* Limited deflated capability

- 2

MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 JnercreLin
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> Tire manufacturer key challenges:
2O=LY - Tire Pressure
Su e e Monitoring Systems

a.\‘

Growmg -

awar eness Tire Pressure Monitoring Systems (TPMS):
about' .. promising market

safety and

the’ key TPMS future growth prospects depend on a
fole- number of key factors:

played b.V e Favorable legal environment like the TREAD Act
tlres ‘ ,’K:'.J ‘ ¢ TPMS induced changes in tire pressure and motorist
S * behavior

¢ Technological progress enabling significant cost

‘EN‘E D-E i reductions

L Solution e Carmaker and tire industry strategy

I
MICHELIN FACT BOOK 2003 LM

Page IV - 26

.~ ~*  Tire Pressure Monitoring
Systems

Market-specific features

® North America:

RS e Largest growth market driven by the TREAD Act
s e To peak by 2007

i o ® Europe:

: e Absence of mandatory legal requirements

e Competitive edge opportunity for carmakers

e Growing impact of environmental issues for this
market

® Asia / Pacific and ROW:
¢ Absence of mandatory legal requirements

1’ # Restrictions on radio signal emissions in Japan and the
> | -{HU M . Far East could lead to the development of local systems

‘ Solution ¢

MlCHELIN FACT- BOOK 2003 ‘ m
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~ — Solution

EMIICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Tire Pressure Monitoring
Systens

Michelin / TRW
Automotive partnership

* A 50-50 JV specializing in direct TPMS for passenger cars
and light trucks.

e Honda, HyundailKia and Fiat are in its portfolio of
leading OEMs

» Several car models already available in North America

Page IV - 27

' - Solution

SMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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\

. Diline

7 - solution

2“2 Tire Pressure Monitoring Systems

23 B Market growth scenario

P
K s

(N
.

T - . - £
“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 lm
. . T |55

3 phases

1. Current: pressure/temperature monitoring by valve-
mounted sensors sending radio signals to a
receiver/ECU (possibly shared by other on-board
functions). A Tire Monitoring Software processes the
data and manages the driver interface.

2. Next: separate battery-free sensors/transmitters
mounted on the valve reduce radio signal emission.

3. Future:
« Multiple-function (RFID, tire gages) tire embedded
sensorsftransmitters

+ R&D on active pressure monitoring systems will open
new avenues for vehicle manufacturers.

Page IV - 28
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Part V

The heavy truck tire market

Key elements
~ World tire market
Original equipment market
- Replacement market
Retread market
- European market
North American market
South American market
Asian market
Chinese market
Indian market
‘Products and service strategy
Environment

Fact-book 2003 : ICI.I
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Road Transportation ...
A Winning Mode

Tyl , GDP growth and transport demand are obviously linked, but

- S GDP is not the only driver:

A e With GDP growth, transport volume increases in ton x km,
, e and at the same time, the demand structure changes with
A an increasing share of high-value goods.

e ' e This affects in turn the choice of transport mode.

e High-value goods have indeed high inventory costs
but marginal transport costs, for these products,
therefore, truck shipments are favored because
they are fast in comparison to rail or barges.

e Logistic changes, Just In Time, higher quality service
requirements and adequate infrastructure all contribute
to road transport attractiveness.

_ All these factors boost the road’s share of the transport
= market against a background of growing consumer demand.

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 %:mcnsum

Page V - 1

Market Segmentation
by Business

e Michelin identified different
SR e market segments characterized by
< 7T specific product, service and information needs

IR Road freight segments include:

e * Liquid bulk (petroieum products)
T gy » Solid bulk {ores, building materials,
basic chemicals,)

* Isothermal (refrigerated goods)

¢ Volume (high-value goods,
such as electronic equipment)

» Containers

« Cattle

¢ Logging

* Motorized & other vehicle transport

= o etc.

"MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003 ) B = micHELIN
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| e Market Segmentation
LRGN by Business

/"" S
o

' Liquid bulk

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

.
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Vehicle Configuration

Comparison Western Europe/ North America

12 tires

i | 2 sizes: Tractor &
trailer

| trailer

18 tires
1 size: Tractor &

J Noveh America

A FACT-BOOK 2003
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s

RS

.. Truck.tires:

- specialty tires =
AT -
- -, On-and-off road use
T S - | o7 i - # Road surface
N _M 'p’e B : - ! Aggressiveness
customer needs i Wational or
i . Regional
{1
) Nééd,foiia-
T2 s
‘comprehensive
-~ -offering
’ e . Long haul on motorways, highways
Source: Michelin
S ’%‘_wm*mm

Page V - 3

Multiple Truck Tire Duties

While all tires must bear the load, depending
"/;;,) on their function, they also will:

e Steering axle tires:
- Keep the vehicle on its trajectory

- - Resist drift forces | Heavy strain on

the shoulders

L - C — Withstand centrifugal forces on bends
For optimum

perfor"lance' » road surface irregularities, a must to ensure minimal
- tire properties *» mechanical disturbances mechanical unbalance, etc.

‘and functions
vary ag;cﬁfdiﬁg
. to axle type

Drive axle tires:
- Transmit the drive and brake torque
Wear in a regular way

Sustained fongitudinal
stresses

e Trailer axle tires:

~ Resist side slippage and scrapping ‘
(because they are fitted on a rigid axle) J Shearing due to

}
Ensure driver comfort, while transmitting: }High level of uniformity
3

« during mangeuvers, side slippage
on motorway slip roads

MIEH IR FI-\‘CT-BdOK 2003 Source: Michelin

MICHELIN
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For the Trucking Industry,
Tires Impact:

', “~-_ ®The bottom line and competitiveness

L How?
' A,*’ LT ® Grip >> vehicle performance, safety
R e Profile >> volume transported
:/{ =y e Load index >> payload

® Cost savings and productivity

How?

e Tread life & retreadability >> cost per mile
& Endurance of the casing >> less down-time
e Rolling resistance >> fuel consumption

%‘M’C HELIN

Page V - 4

Truck Tires:
a Vital Piece of Equipment

"7“-\”1 o , - ® Tires are "consumable investments” for a transportation
o ’ . h company
he ® Fuel accounts for 15% - 20% of a truck’s running costs,
f T B ’ and tires only 2% to 3%.
S ® But 2% - 3% is the operating margin bracket in such

a highly competitive industry as trucking!
Significant tire cost per mile savings can be achieved
through professional tire management.
Air pressure monitoring is crucial, as underinflated tires
have a poor mileage and fuel consumption performance.
Overall cost of use, therefore, is more relevant than price
(purchase cost):

® Quality, Performance and Retreadability are key

o together with Maintenance and Service, to cut costs
and optimize vehicle uptime.

‘MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003 E%
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" Truck Tire Purchasing Process:
the Transport Company is

TR the Decision Maker
request for quotation/bid, with
.| selection of brand/products, the brand /
partners & dealers, etc. ’ sales force / dealer
7. L. - Transport company:
L Need Identification &
ST TR definition
special rebates,
Various factors sales force visits,
cash situation, new products
. product availability, Product Product
SpeleIC tire regu|atlons specific- and service
) : ations offering
v
Dealers

Deliver comprehensive
tire services = on site service,
casing collection, retreading, etc.

"WMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 \%m:cnsum
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Replacement Market
Customer segmentation (size)

p CUSTOMER EXPECTATIONS

LARGE FLEET mainly in Europe,
L ke North America, Japan, Australia, Taiwan...
‘.: = » high productivity gains (wear life,
T fuel saving & retreadability)
S0 » complete « cradle to grave » tire
management program
» full tire cost reporting (tires & services)

SMALL FLEET: different types of
procurement behavior

» buying for price or investment
L » product or service oriented

i o e Source: Michelin
‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 S
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Retread Market

Retreading is key

® At the end of its first life, a

then retreaded,
and regrooved again !

® This multiplies tire life by 2.5
and cuts cost by 36%,
compared with the purchase
of 2 new tires.

Michelin tire can be regrooved,

MICHELIN FACT-8OOK zuos Source: Michelin

Page V - 6

Retread Market

Four lives* for substantial savings

N ‘,’4 : - ; ) i o 9

-?,_, ;43 B Lifespan (%) O Cost (%) 250
Up to’ 36%

savmgs 160

_Q; .

* For tlres that 100 100 100

are retreaded 50

twice onthnge, 25 25

:savings'are ™ ‘ 5 3

(alculated, . -=- -:=-
::pm!eymgr::e'e; New tire Regrooved Retreaded Regrooved Total
as fore-\ew tF:res\' Michelin  tire Michelin tireRl\éI':’cl:';?lin tireRhélr:;:;(elin

'M HELIN FACT BOOK 2003 Source: Michelin MICHELIN
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Retread market

o o Truck tires can be regrooved
) o to optimize mileage performance
(up to 1/4 longer life span)

Source: Michelin

:MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Retreading
IHlustrations

Retded
(after cure)

Source: Michelin

‘MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003 }%«mxysum
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-3003 'vdld}ﬁes
= 127 mllhon tires

,J_

World Tire Market
Regions & Markets in 2003

O Europe

North America

O South America

O China + Hong Kong

W India

D Rest of Asia

@ Middle-East and Africa

- 3% rad:al %
: o 14%

\_.'r.' KN & Truck Original Equipment

Truck > 5 T \
-or Class 4 m~the USA

@ Truck Replacement

{Source: Michelin estimates)

:MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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World Tire Market
~ % Truck steel radial tires by area in 2003
100%
93%
82% ™
70%
f- e 59%
- 50%
Growth
opportumt:es 23%
for truck 10% D
il L] 1%
*in the! CIS N . . @ W .0
_Asia’ and “’6&:&& 3&6 v“é& & .{.0& & &o‘\?" &
SouthA _'erlca S N X & & 5
: & g‘é @G&\z@f \\é& Hﬁ & &z@é
¢ R £ & &
I g N
i i HELIN FACT BOOK 20*03__A (Source: Michelin estimates) N

!
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World Tire Market

Market evolution by region

02002
2003

“World truck
tire maiket".
up 3.5%- |
+in.2003: 7
T s
 RT: +4:5% ;.
OE: 5%

f
in thousands of units

. As the definition of the Asian and African/Middle-Eastern markets was revised in 2003,
... comparisons with previous fact-books are not refevant for these areas.

ZMICEELIN'FACT.BC;OK‘ZOOB (Source: Michelin estimates) E’jm

Page V - 9

T Original Equipment Market

® 15% of new tire market

® Radialized at 70%

SL ® Very concentrated and dominated

i PR by European truck manufacturers

",'z‘do"éao{};‘i;rkeu ® Michelin’s world market share: 30%

17:3 million:tires . ® Michelin’s customer portofolio of OF truck
) brands:

¢ DAIMLER — CHRYSLER {Mercedes, Freightliner)

e VOLVO AB (Volvo, Renault & Mack trucks)

® SCANIA, IVECO, MAN, PACCAR (Paccar, Daf)

o INTERNATIONAL (ex-Navistar)

(SOufo:.e: Michelin est:mates)r o ‘ggm ICHELIN

BAS
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o
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Replacement Market

Michelin replacement market share
by region in 2003 (new tires)

21%
”_— 19%
Y. 15%
-'2002.RT market = 119
104.6 million_tires 10% °
Est. 20Q§ RT market
1=109.3'million tires
5% L [_3“/1
Europe North South  Middle East Asia Total

America America & Africa

Saurce: Michelin estimates
Michelin sales = Michelin Group: all brands

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003  Market = radial + bias im
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Replacement Market

Customer segmentation by price sensitivity
in North America, South America and Asia

it A
s C_ost per CUSTOMER MICHELIN
» kilometer EXPECTATIONS offering
SO . . HE l
R ) “Premium” product and service ggf"MICHEL o
At » The best cost per kilometer GRS
A-brand
- portfolio to: Value”
fulfillall " . Y ot . B :
L » Good performance at an FGoodrich
5uiton?er _"/" affordable price (North America) T
} equdat{qns
“Entry” line 'llﬂllfﬂ”’l'
» The lowest purchase price STAMTYRE
Price ¥ @
EICOI.[ANTAS

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003  Source: Michelin §m
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Replacement Market

Customer segmentation
by price sensitivity in Europe

. CUSTOMER MICHELIN
Y A EXPECTATIONS offering
h; T U “Premium” product and service ‘%’é‘
e " ) S MICHELIN
A .b"ran&;“ » The best cost per kilometer 5 A ———]
portfolio to. -
fulfiliall” *
customer-. ..
' Good Value” ~X kormoran

» Good performance at

an affordable price m-” m
URUS

Price ¥

%‘Ml" HELIN

"MICHE|;|;|"'F ACT-BOOK 2003 Source: Michelin

Page V - 11

Retread Market

oy ‘” 2003 Retread and Replacement markets
')f-:”*‘, (in million)

. Where markets
.are radialized
~{Western Europe,

North 8 South
America), - -
Retreading.
‘is'key for. v -
'PﬁrfEFMi?QFe- Europe North South Middle East Asia
e R America America & Africa
O Retread RT market

Source: Michelin estimates

I Yoz

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Retread Market

Michelin, The “Key Player”

® Astruck tire purchases are increasingly viewed as

an investment, Michelin casing retread technologies
. and know-how enjoy ever growing demand from
I transportation companies.

® Michelin is the major worldwide manufacturer
with a direct and substantial retreading activity.

® Michelin R&D concentrated on developing
superior quality casings, undisputed market
references in terms of endurance and reliability,
and able to be retreaded once, twice and more.

=+ ® Michelin’s strategy fully integrates retread into

0o its tire offering.

) %\Mlcusum

Page V - 12

Retread Market

A segmented retread offer

Depending on the needs and expectations
of its customers, Michelin offers:

3 E e Michelin industrial “re-manufactured” tires with
‘,',,.—*t:: ey performance levels equivalent to the new tire.

e Superior quality Michelin “retread” tires,
which are the reference on the retread markets
throughout the world.

e High quality "retread” components (treads &
retreading industrial equipment) to supply
professionals with equipment to retread
competitors’ casings.

EMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E@
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Retread Market

Retread partnerships with dealers

® Considering retread markets growth and
potential, tire dealers are keen to propose
their own retread services.

® Michelin is in a position to propose licensing
contracts to selected partners including:

® An exclusive process for Michelin casings;
prior training of dealer teams and comprehensive
monitoring of the production process.
This induces a significant expertise.
e Michelin retread technologies and equipment
to enable dealers to retread all kinds of casings.

"MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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The European Market

"« .- ®\Western Europe:

s © 380 million people

e 3 million kilometers of roads

i ® 1,482 billion tons x kilometers by road
PR ©413,000 transport companies

L 6.3 million heavy duty trucks (over 15 tons)

® Central & Eastern Europe:
¢ 304.5 million people
0 0.85 million km of asphalt roads
® 366 billion tons x kilometers by road
® 140,000 transport companies (only Central Europe)
® 3.3 million heavy duty trucks (over 15 tons)

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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N ‘/' ~T)v,_-,‘:~ 9%

e g’,ﬁorld market 7
R .N"Nj
:!;‘Y';{ \;! . o ) -

SRR
of S

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E@

The European
Truck & Bus Tire Market

o Score card

@ 24.7 million Truck & Bus new tires
or 19% of world market
® 18% original equipment; 82% replacement
® 55% radial (world average = 53%)
(Western Europe: 100%, Central Europe: 90%,
Eastern Europe: 10%)
® Western Europe: 14.3 million new tires
(4.3 in original equipment, 10 in replacement)
® Central Europe: 2.4 million new tires
® Eastern Europe: 8 million new tires

@ 7.8 million Truck & Bus retreads
or 13% of world market

Page V -

14

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

The North American
Road Freight Market

@ 3 countries:
e Unjted States
e Canada
e Mexico

@ 400 million people

@ 7 million kilometers of roads

® 2,200 billion tons x kilometers by road

@ 550,000 transport companies

@ 8.3 million heavy duty vehicles (over 15 ton)
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The North American
Truck & Bus Tire Market

Score card

® 22.3 million Truck & Bus new tires
or 18% of world market
® 21% original equipment; 79% replacement
® 94% radial (world average = 53%)
8 17.3 million Truck & Bus retreads
or 30% of world market
e Unjted States: 80%
e Canada: 10%
e Mexico (only 60% radial): 10%

Page V - 15

s -
8% of |
-, world
- i--:" market

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

The South American
Truck & Bus Tire Market

Score card

® 9.9 million Truck & Bus new tires
or 8% of world market

® 9% original equipment; 91% replacement
® 46% radial (world average = 53%)

® 12.5 million Truck & Bus retreads
or 17% of world market

I o o \%‘Mlcnsum
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The South American
Truck & Bus Tire Market

A contrasted market

PN / © Others .
R 23% 7T
4 .

T \
- : e / \ ® Brazil accounts for
sy ! | more than half of
. : Venezuela! j the South American

i i

A g% /o Truck & Bus market
. N\ / Brazil N )
L o tj,g_lomb:a)\ / 51% e The Brazilian market is
i . 8% : P 2/3 radialized already
Chile : - (South Am. average = 46%)
4%  Argentina

6%

"%, Weight of the 5 largest
.= South American tire markets

:MICHELIN'-FACT-BOOK 2003

Source: Michelin

D S MIcHELIN

Page V - 16

The Asian Market

® 58 million new truck tires
or half of world truck market

® Only 33% radialized (world average = 53%)

® Very contrasted in size, maturity and
growth potential:
® 3 huge truck & bus markets:
* Japan (6.3 million tires) - 100% radialized
* China (36 million tires) - 20% radialized
¢ India (8.8 million tires ) - 1 to 2% radialized
¢ 3 big markets:
+ Korea (2.1 million tires) — 75% radialized
« Thailand (1.8 million tires) — 19% radialized

¢ Australia + New Zealand (1.3 million tires) -
96 % radialized

e Many small markets

IMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 \%’x,mamu”
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The Chinese Market
: ,:/} ® China:
e “a continent” of 9.6 million square km
e population: 1.3 billion
" eGDP Growth: 8- 12% per year
e but huge differences between
 rural and urban regions
» costal and land-locked regions
® China entered the WTO in 2001
‘ e yet jts economic, commercial and legal identity
7 has yet to be forged
fﬁjbﬁﬁg}_@r@q—f{box:zoosr . ) - o ‘%*m:cnsum
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The Chinese Road
Freight Market

> @ World’s largest freight market:
2,800 billion tons x km, of which 600 by road
® and 5% annual growth
® the highway network expands at the rate of
2,000 km per year

® On-going development of infrastructure and
legislation to improve
® safety and productivity,
® introduction of modern and advanced vehicles,
® new JV with major world truck manufacturers

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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The Chinese Truck Market

~ /ﬁ ® Truck fleet: 5,000,000

g o jij:,- ® Old market, low technological content
-~ j“ ® Severe road conditions, generalized truck
P e e overloading

A ® Mainly private individual « Mom and Pop »

owning 1 to 5 vehicles

® Truck market: 900,000 in 2003
® 6% growth in the past few years
® Mainly monopolized by Chinese building
contractors (Dong Feng, FAW,...)

e Booming public and charter bus market
(17% growth in recent years).

iMchELli‘\IT‘FA'Cr-BooK 2003 \;%\Mlcnsulv
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28%of - @ 36 million tires

[ worl ket
-W:';f' mar e:( or 28% of world market
f ) ,_;«‘r"vr’-'

19% Original Equipment; 81 % Replacement

i
[

Only 20% Radialized (world average = 53%)

Radial market tire strongly led by
heavy vehicles (>14t)
® accounting for 15% of today’s fleets
® posting impressive growth
(50% over the last few years)

(
(1 {
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The Indian Market

® Population: 1.03 billion (2002¢}
® GDP Growth: +6.5% (2002)
® Vehicle fleet {Truck + Bus) = 2.4 million (2002¢)

@ Tire market (Truck + Bus) = 8.8 million (2003e)
or 7% of world Truck & Bus market

CAo Ay ® 1 or 2% radialized

%‘MI:HELIM
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Road Transport in India

T

- - Northsouth 3 @ Road network: 3.3 million km,
ANt TEastllest g including 58,000 km of National highways
ton and 137,000 km of State highways.

@ Still very difficult but improving road
conditions. Many damaged roads result
in an average speed of only 30 - 40 Km/h.

® National Highways Development Project
(NHDP): 4-laning of close to 20,000 km
over a 3-year period, of which Golden
Quadrilateral and NS/ EW corridors

® 70% of freight is road freight,
road accounts for 85% of passenger traffic

sg‘wrmvz:l.lm
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Freight Transport in India

® General and extreme truck overloading:

e more than 50% of vehicles are 20%+ overloaded
compared to authorized load

e up to 60% overloading ratio!

e

,;,; (),,\\/’f‘}f ® Small and barely concentrated transport
companies:

0 80% of fleets are 1-4 trucks

e A thousand fleets > 40 trucks

® Radialization 1% - 2%

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 :%im:cnsum
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Michelin Products
and Service Strategy

L
S “ " Thanks to the guality of its teams, products and services
R and building upon its innovation power,
LA - Michelin is the worldwide truck & bus tire manufacturer
; =5 which proposes to the transportation industry:

best of class market offering,
delivering the highest return on investment,
constantly striving to improve
road transport safety,
goods and people mobility

and respect for the environment.

{MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Defining customer needs
Constant innovation

@ By definition, an innovative tire solution
must beat the performance criteria
previously achieved.

safety @ Forinstance, an improvementin
tire tread life must not be made
at the expense of grip and safety or
noise emission or fuel consumption.

® In addition, it must be accompanied by
a corresponding increase in service life
of the tire casing.

Page V -

“MICHELINFACT-BOOK 2003 =\ MICHELIN

When it comes to Safety...

® End users do not spell out performance criteria
such as safety, which they take for granted;
At Michelin, safety truly comes first.

@ The quality of our products, carefully controlled
at every stage of production, is unwavering.

@ At every level, we drive innovation to improve
all aspects of safety:
e tire grip, endurance and fatigue resistance,
o tire shock and cut (or road hazard) resistance,
e tire ageing resistance ...

® In recommended conditions of use, the performance
of our tires makes a significant contribution to safety.
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When it comes to Safety...

G E e Product / service innovation example:
| ~— Antisplash

s
@ o ® Trucks travelling on wet or flooded
. - surfaces eject water that causes loss
of visibility for motorists.
® Road users have pointed this out as
a key concern.
® Derived from aeronautic applications,
Michelin’s antisplash system uses a new
profile that features a bead at the junction
between the tread and the tire sidewall.
® This deflector cuts by 3 the height
of the tire splashes.

CT-BO

0K 2003

Page V - 22

Antisplash

e i Visibility on flooded roads

7 WITHOUT
Splashiitg height # 1.2 - 1.5 m Splashing height # 0.3 - 0.4 m

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Better Mobility

[ TN

LT 70 - e Transportation companies are looking for competitive
R advantages such as:
SRS i“‘"l ® Productivity (load range, speed rating),

e o Reliability,

A o Cost of use,

& Driving comfort,

to enhance operational efficiency and competitiveness,
in a very tough and oversupplied market.

Example: volume / payload transported

® Starting back from the customer,

e Legal limit to overall height of the vehicle

e Technical and legal limits to overall payload
g e Customer’s needs for higher volumes & lighter vehicles
~. ® The technical answer: ultra low profile tires

'MiCHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 E@
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Better Mobility

Product / service innovation example:
ultra low profile tires for European trucks

Strict ..
European
transport .°
volume - .7
.regulations:
.prompt .~
“innovative
‘tire design:.

Lowering.tire
“ratio is;the-.

. oply‘-’j(u}ay‘a‘fbf; _
‘gaining- .. ¢
Bt ST 3
volume o £ bt
o e g 60 series ! ‘f
N Py o
S5 series < 45 series = g

o 3 %‘Ml{:ﬂs&lm
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The Heavy

‘MICHELIN

Better mobility

Product / service innovation example:
The eTire system

Air pressure monitoring is a key issue for truck fleets.

Detecting any slow leak in a tire before the truck sets off
or scheduling timely tire service upon return of a vehicle,
all this obviously has a significant impact on cost and
down-time reduction.

Transportation companies are deterred from improving
their pressure maintenance practices by high manpower
costs. For this reason, automated pressure monitoring
addresses fleet concerns and needs.
Since 2003, Michelin successfully distributes the eTire system
in North America. This consists in:
® a batteryless in-tire sensor, which reports temperature,
pressure and ID
e hand-held or drive-by readers, which give instant equivalent
cold pressure and store datas & transmit them to

o . ® a tracking system (the Bib Track database)
FACT-BOOK 2003 \%‘Mlcnsuﬂ
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e ey ® By outsourcing their tire management, fleets expect:

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Better mobility

Product / service innovation example:
the Product, Service & Information offer

SR ® Service is paramount to support tire quality and return

5 on investment. However, in most cases, tire maintenance
is neither a focal point nor a core competency for the
transportation industry.

s downtime reduction
e streamlined operations and cost control
e safety & peace of mind
® This new business model offers high added value for
customers, mobility gains and streamlined operations
® The market has already moved towards managed contracts:
around 50% of Europe’s large fleets are managed.
® Michelin is leader in the successful implementation of
Product, Service & Information solutions in Europe and
pioneer in North America.
%MICHELIM
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Environment

P

N ® Michelin's stated mission is to contribute to progress
e in the area of people and goods mobility and,
beyond this, to the development of society.

4 & The transport sector (overall) is of major economic

S importance to nations, but its development leads to

et my growing conflict between increasing demand for

c mobility and worsening congestion, environmental
damage and safety issues.

® To contribute to sustainable development of mobility,
we depend on our capacity to innovate, which is key to
our ability to progress.
This, in turn, enables us to improve truck safety and
comfort at the lowest possible cost, while minimizing
the negative environmental impact of freight transport.

[micheuieacrook 2003 o |
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Environment

- Product / service innovation —
i a case in point: the Energy range

3 ® With 30% lower tire rolling resistance,
Energy tires translate into a 6% cut in
truck fuel consumption.

3

‘-{" ® For customers, the Energy line generates
extra revenue through cost reduction outside
the tire bill (a straight 6% cut on fuel expenses).

@ For the environment, Energy products mean
6% cut in engine emissions (proportionate
to fuel consumption).

Much more than the benefits brought by
a new engine generation!
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e

Environment

Product / service innovation example:
X-One

® Specially designed to achieve unheard-of fuel and
weight efficiency

® Replacing conventional dual assembly radial tires on
drive and trailer axles and weighing significantly less
than a set of dual tires and wheels, Michelin X-One has
significantly greater payload capacity, translating into
increased income per trip (with total weight reduction
of 350-600kg on a tractor-trailer combination).

® Compared to Michelin Energy dual fitments, X-One
delivers up to 3% more fuel savings on the tractor
alone and up to 5% for the entire vehicle.

® Over and above these benefits, X-One’s Infini-Coil
technology optimizes the contact patch for a
worldclass riding experience.

"MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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X-One, the great revolution
in tire technology

454 Sevassee
i
;: ‘l‘ [

g 0 ll'
n

'FACT-BOOK 2003 %’*Mlcusuu

i
IMICHELIN

-

&t‘
®

i

NMICHELIN

{

{
&

Gl

h((



Part VI

Specialty tires

Agricultural
- Aircraft

Earthmover

Two wheels
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- Spacialty-

<

= A specialty market undergoing profound changes...

Agricultural

. [ncreasingly

- sophisticated

“and powerful

"agricultural.

- équipment to
.match the trend
for increasingly
largé.farms-and

' agricultural
sector: - v -

‘prodiictivity .

- requirements. -

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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- Specialty-

i, Tires?

...Varied and highly specialized uses

-

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Agricultural
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- Specialty- >~ Agricultural
Tires: . =

‘Michelin - .
_Group is- .
-Europe’s
-leader and

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Long-term trends are for increasingly sophisticated
markets characterized by product mix
improvements and gradual radialization

market (in millions| Western Eastern North Emerging
of drive wheels) Europe Europe America countries
OE +RT >2 >2 <2 >3
| % radialization 74% 15% 25% 10% |
j j Varies from
Michelin Group RT > 10%
Market share >35% | Central > 50% OE > 5% ) c::::g,;o .
" Radial market
__trend + + + +
(Source: Michelin) )
R . MICHELIN

Page VI - 2

7 million
farmers

North America:
2.7 million
farmers

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Agricultural

Two main segments
with marked characteristics

® Europe:
e Highly sophisticated equipment
e Mainly “radialized” tire market (74%})
e Agricultural subsidy policy (CAP)
e A market hit by exceptional c/imatic conditions in 2003

Michelin's radial tire

. market share in
® North America North America

e Very powerful machinery 18%
e Buoyant radial market

e Michelin radial tire: +8.7%
2003/ 2002 in North America 1%

e Agricultural subsidy policy

(the Farm Bill) 1997 2003
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Agricultural

our customers: equipment
manufacturers, distributors and farmers

@ Manufacturers:

Michelin works in close collaboration
with different manufacturing partners
afl with a common goal:

improve productivity, yield and
equipment ergonomy

4 e Distributors and farmers:

Michelin offers a world-class, global

after sales service thanks to its distribution
network and sales forces who are in
permanent contact with farmers

EMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 %*:mcnsum
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XeoBib and the

7 \
(. WrrAFLEX ) Technology

the Michelin XeoBib with ULTRAFLEX
technology is on the verge of transforming

e With this new technology applied to Michelin tires,
farmers enjoy the benefits of low tire inflation
pressures to protect crops while retaining maximum
safety and comfort on the road

e XeoBib is the first range to apply ULTRAFLEX
technology, others will follow suit

PR AN

_‘;);(:é'qﬁlb,bég—aljré‘_ady won 3 gold medals for innovation,

he fifsftﬁi‘ﬁdﬁ&"t of the ULTRAFLEX technology generation
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Agricultural

Innovation at the heart of
our growth ambitions

\
with ( ULTRAFLEX) ) technology,
Michelin intends to:

eConfirm its technological leadership
in agriculture for manufacturers,
distributors as well as farmers

eBring significant added value to
farmers both in terms of products
and services

7 i 3
e - \%‘Mlalfum
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Spec:altyr 2
; j} 1Tlresb

Aircraft

Michelin provides tires anywhere in
the world and even out of this world

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

“MICHELIN



Michelin Fact-Book 2003
Specialty Tires

February 2004

-Sp‘ c:altva ~ Aircraft
Tlresa

0 Mifitary
Commercial
O General

O Regional
53%

D Amerlcas

. gEurope CIS - MEA Estimated Market Share

O Michelin
Goodyear
O Bridgestone
0 Others

: - & . ~ : 0 g
'MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 37% E@
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Aircraft

Commercial Airlines:
A Market Facing Challenges

Available Seat Miles
(Source: ATA Worldwide System)

ASM (in Millions)

2000 2001 2002

® As of March 2003, more than 60 airlines have
filed for bankruptcy or disappeared since 09/11
(Source: MRO Conference Lufthansa Airlines)
® The commercial airlines industry is running
at 15% over-capacity

CMICHELIN FACT-BOOK ioos m

ét"
15

h((’ 7
{

f«l{\((

MICHELIIII




Michelin Fact-Book 2003
Specialty Tires February 2004

Aircraft
A market switching to radial technology

1981: 1+ aircraft radial tire introduced by Michelin - Mirage Il

1983: 1taircraft radial tire introduced by Michelin on
commercial aircraft - Airbus A300

2001: 1% new technology NZG™ radial aircraft tire introduced
by Michelin on aircraft - Concorde

2003: 65% of the new commercial aircraft to be delivered could be
fitted with radial tires (46% in 2001)
Michelin NZG™ radial technology has also been selected for
the F16 Block 40, Airbus 380 and Dassault Falcon F7X programs

Product-mix of the market The need to offer a

competitive bias tire
82%

.
P

=technology

though bi.
. tires ,st:l_l

Michelin market share

' 65% in radial tires

R 18% =————— O Michelin
Lo 35% 0O Competitors
D < MBias B Radial

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 (Source: Michelin) E@
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Aircraft

A complex business

Small production runs, a multitude of “part numbers”

and the management of worldwide pools of tires all add up
to make this a highly complex sector.

Furthermore, the switch to radial tires is moderately paced

as it largely depends on the renewal of world aircraft fleets.
This business demands rigorous qualification and certification
processes, and is characterized by 3 sales strategies:

e Straight sales: customers buy new tires
and have them retreaded by suppliers
of their choice

e SUP/Single Unit Price: customers pay an
“average tread price”

e CPL/Cost Per Landing: customers pay on a
price per landing basis

‘MICHELIN FACT-BO0K 2003 o (Source: Michelin) \%‘m,cmum
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Aircraft

A need to rethink tire design
for high gross weight
commercial aircraft

Loads carried by the tires of new generation high
gross weight commercial aircraft keep increasing
while tire size and weight must be kept down

=>» Until now, the solution consisted in adding plies
to the casing, which resulted in:

e additional internal heat build-up
e tire weight increases
e [oss of radial tire structural benefits

o

5MICHE_I_.—I§"FKCi';B OK 2003 (Source: Michel‘in) ;%i‘MICHELIN
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Aircraft

Michelin NZG™ radial technology
will equip the new Airbus A380

Recently developed “High-modulus”
reinforcement technology (thanks to which
the Concorde could fly again) gave birth to
a new generation of Michelin radial tires
characterized by:

e fewer casing and crown plies
(some 20% weight gain)

e better control of structural deformation

e higher resistance to damage due to
reduced stress on tread rubber

(Source: Michelin) Y
o HMICHELIN
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o oopgcian Earthmover
72 Tires:

Michelin, Solutions Provider

The widest range
of radial tires
on the market

® Mines

>y ® Construction
. 7 9
From the ... to the

smallest largest
(5.6kg) (6,300kg)

® 110 tire sizes and 45 tread designs

® Industry and ports

"MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Specialty- - Earthmover

Tires:

® Market: a 9% growth p.a.*
| @ Current mining investment
projects: USD 85 billion**

MICHELINFAGBOOKZOOB Sources: *M‘Bendi ** Mining Journal 7
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Earthmover

Construction

wgi oy
® Cement market average growth:
+4% / year since 1990

Source: Global Cement - international Cement Review

mickeuNeacteook200 || Lasicnesm
Page VI - 9

- F

- Specialty- Earthmover
Tires- . =

Industry and ports

¥ | ® Market: a 15% yearly average growth
* estimated from 2002 to 2005 for

By container traffic in the 50 largest
__  ports in the world

"MIICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

-

Source: miscellaneous international sources
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f-SfP;é._".:fiE%’??y";?"';’“"' Earthmover
<. Tires” . = .

g The largest tire in the world:
the 59/80 R 63 XDR C4 E4R TL

® Diameter: 4.03 meters |
® Width: 1.50 meters
® Weight: 5,300 kg

® Michelin 59/80R63 XDR
technological feat:

equips a 600 ton dumper
(overall rolling weight, 6 tires)

- ICHEI_.I;I”F'I-\'CI‘-BOOK 2003
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Earthmover

Technological leadership
through innovation

® [n 1998, Michelin invented
the 80-series, for very large
earthmover trucks

® \Vith this technology,
tires can carry heavier loads

® A new market has emerged:
the ultra-class dumper
market {(mining haul truck;
load capacity > 350 tons)

® Giant trucks adapted to
mining customers’ specific
needs

\
-9
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Earthmover

OE partnerships

Michelin, working
! hand in hand with

’ ] the manufacturers

e Develop tyres adapted
to each vehicle and
type of use

e Find solutions to
increase vehicle
performance

e Enable manufacturers

to develop vehicles

for the future

“MICHELIN'FACT-BOOK 2003
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Earthmover

Strong growth
in the ultra-class dumper sector

300}/
250

200
1501

1999 2000 2001 2002

B Ultra-class dumpers
O Ultra-class dumpers equipped with Michelin tires

® Michelin 2002 market share: 72%
® Michelin innovation wins full market recognition
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- Specialty- - Two-Wheels
- Tlr e. s

Three product segments

%‘M’CHELIM

Page VI - 12

Two-Wheels

World motorcycle tire market
(in millions)

13 * o "Leisure" segment:

* Countries: Europe
(1st market: Germany),
North America, Japan

3 * Growth: +
1 amm L o
bive -7 ¢ Profitability: ++
\f » Key success factors:
o "Wty T segrments product performance &
» Countries: Emerging countries innovation, competition,
(mainly Asia) OF, press, brand image
« Growth: = * Market leaders: Michelin,
e Tiesn Bridgestone, Dunlop,
* Profitability: +/- Pirelli/Metzeler

. Key success factors: price, brand
—.  » Market leaders: Asian brands

.M'ﬁc‘h«E«LI:N_FAChr__'_B.OBE_‘ZEOB_ o (Source: Michelin) ?‘%"MICHELIN
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Two-Wheels

World motorcycle tire market

The leisure motorbike market

24% O Europe

46% 2 Japan
O North America
12% 0 Others

18%

Market shares in the RT European market

Dunlop
18%
Bridgestone .
23%
Others Michelin
7% 24%
Pirelli /
Metzeller

(Source: Michelin) 28% E‘\@

Page VI - 13

Two-Wheels

World scooter tire market

The scooter tire market by zone

[J Europe

Japan

D North America
0 Asia

N Others

Scooter tire market shares in Europe

Asian
brands
50%

Michelin
25%

Others
25%

L e (Source: Michelin) %,
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Two-Wheels

World bicycle tire market (in millions)

» “Performance &
passion” segment:
» Countries: Europe,

North America, Japan
80 ¢ Profitability: ++

¢ Key success factors:
product performance &
innovation, competition

3 & e “Leisure & convenience”
A segment:
. Countrles Emerging * Countries: Northern Europe,
countries (mainly Asia) Japan
» Profitability: - * Profitability: +
» Key success factors: price » Key success factors:
brand, price

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003 (Source: Michelin) E@
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| sPec’a’ty’ " Two-Wheels
Bicycle tire market shares
In Eurape
Asian brands
60%
53" : Michelin: a strong ‘ Michelin
presence in the — 20%
- "performance & European
- passion” segment brands
. 20%
e Innovative products
e /nvolvement and In the USA (high-end market)
success in competition
Michelin
35%
Others
65%

: (Source: Michelin)
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The other Michelin activities

Distribution
Maps and guides
- ViaMichelin
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Activities

Distribution

-, g

® Michelin has a strategic interest in owning
a tire distribution business

¢ in the field of industrial products, where Michelin

7 i l . is able to provide complete sofutions to meet
/0 complemen customers’ expectations

Euromaster’s . . .
‘ Eiropean (PSI: product, service, information)
‘¢overage, e in passenger car & light truck, with an extensive
- Michelin: "

R coverage of Europe and with its service offering
‘acquired - .- targeted at car leasing companies
Aiborg's™

distribirti ® In the past years, Michelin acquired
tivi several networks

gaff 31,.2003 e forming of the Euromaster network in Europe
: (since the 80’s)

o TCl in the US (1999)
MickeNFACTB0OK 200 R
Page VII - 1
Distribution
Euromaster:

gradual creation of the network

® The Euromaster brand was gradually built through
a series of acquisitions of tire dealer networks:

® £nd of the ‘60s: the ATS network is created in the UK,

e Late ‘80s and early *90s: acquisition of such networks

as Piot Pneu, Central Pneu, Konz Iberica, in other
European countries

® 1991: Euromaster logo created

® 1992: First Euromaster center with a flag opened at
Albertville on the occasion of the Winter Olympics

® 2003: Merger of Viborg, a Northern European network
of 500 centers that extends Euromaster’s foothold in

Europe thanks to its coverage of the German, Danish,
Swiss, Dutch and Austrian markets
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Distribution

Euromaster: Key figures

.~ 7+ @ Upto 1,800 service centers
g \ in 10 countries of Europe:

® Austria: 23

e Denmark: 56

e Finland: 51

e France: 430

e Germany: 344

e Netherlands: 115

e Spain: 116

e Sweden: 51

e Switzerland: 40

e United Kingdom: 530

'FACT-BOOK 2003
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Distribution

Tire distribution and maintenance
services market calls for
proximity and specific expertise...

Market characteristics* PCILT Truck
X . specia/ist tire de'alers 50% 85%
Y ..f;\;x,.A =3 (independent, tire manufacturer
{) EUR'O_MASTER' networks, chains...)
R i ® Car or Truck dealers 10% N.S
® Fast fit centers 20-30% -
e Others 10-20% 15%

* Average figures not reflecting individual country differences in the
Euromaster network of 10 European countries
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Distribution

Euromaster services

A major player in

passenger car and light truck
tire services and routine
vehicle maintenance for:

=

~

® The Retail Market:
* Tires and associated services
(balancing, alignment)
» Oil change, brake, shock absorber
and exhaust maintenance services

e The Light Vehicle Professional
Market:

* Same services as the retail market
plus special services such as detailed
management information,
centralized invoicing, mobile units...

-MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Other +

wtner i Distribution
Activities -,

Euromaster services

=~ A key player in the market
for truck tire services and
tire fleet management:

e e New and retreaded truck,

}’A P

_— 3 RM!\STER agricultural and earthmover

EU
tires, and associated services
(fitting, balancing, alignment,
regrooving, turn on rim...)

e Fieet inspection service,
tire management system,
preventive maintenance,
mobile service, 24-hour
breakdown service in Europe

IMICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Distribution

Brands marketed by Euromaster

’ i.: Euromaster: a multi-brand distribution network
- B to fulfill all customer expectations
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; ,_Other 2 Distribution
<A ctlwtles 2,
' Tire Centers, LLC

@ Purchased by Michelin
in April of 1999,
doing business as
“TCl Tire Centers”
® Headquarters located in
Duncan, South Carolina
® Three primary business
domains:
e Commercial truck &

earthmover sales
and service

o Truck tire retread
manufacturing and sales

e Passenger and light truck
tire redistribution

{MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Distribution

TCI today

f More than 160 Centers in 37 states

L. eOver 110 Commercial Centers (Truck & Earthmover)

® 32 Passenger Car & Light Truck Tire Distribution Centers
e 14 Retread Plants (Michelin “MRT” Process)

® 8 Retail Stores .

vickeuNFacTBOOK2008  Foomrorm
~Page Vil - 5
“Other <~ Distribution
ctivities .

& Total TCI locations and TCI MRT Retread Plants

Teg 1)
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- Other -3 Distribution
- Activities - -
T 7| [@#p Certified Tire Center

In 2000, T3 was launched as a
CRM (Customer Relationship Management)
program to provide marketing and business
support services to independent tire dealers

e 17 dealer support programs are offered

e 73 gperates out of 30 distribution centers
nationwide that service 39 states

e 73 expansion markets included Tampa, FL
and Sacramento, CA

e 24 Dealer Development Managers provide
ongoing business support to dealers

+#- . e 471 independent tire dealers participate
- " = inthe T3 Program

:MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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. “Other == Distribution
-~ ‘Activities =
v R i TCl: Centered on Service

® Commercial Marketing Strategy expanded to include

R 11 core services being offered at all commercia! (truck and
earthmover) centers

® Center upgrades to meet the needs of tomaorrow’s customers

® Continued growth of truck retread activities,
outpacing market trends. New plant opened in Nashville, TN

® Strengthened market presence as one of the few
USA commercial service companies offering tire solutions
and quality service on a coast-to-coast basis, leading to
increased national fleet business

® Market share gains in T3 Passenger Car & Light Truck
distributor marketing program through current customer
share-of-account growth, geographic expansion and
new customer conquest

® Company operating enhancements to include successful
deployment of a new manager training program, accounts payable
centralization, integration of a service accounting protocol and
faunch of an inventory management system
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Maps and Guides

A strategic activity and
a strong market position

® For more than 100 years, an integral part
of Michelin’s offer of travel services

@ A complete range of products and services
to make travel for business or pleasure easier
and more enjoyable:

e maps, atlases, city maps
e travel guides
e hotel and restaurant guides

® That enhance the pleasure of travelling

MiCHELNFACTBOOK 2003 o |
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Maps and Guides

A growing market stimulated
by the development of tourism
and the need for information

® Because of the unique and distinct nature
of each country, adaptation to each market
is a necessity
® Clients’ expectations are more and more varied
(culture, cuisine, recreation and sports,
fitness and health, etc.)
- ® The market offer is growing in size and new niches
are appearing as new players arrive on the scene
(Internet, specialized features in the press,

NFACTBOOK2003 L
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- -Other -++ Maps and Guides
ctivi

Strategic orientations
o " @ The best quality at the best price based on
s s ) , the professionalism of our teams, the objectivity

of the selection process and regular updating
@ International scope with the adaptation
of our products to different markets and
the establishment of new partnerships
-. . ®Innovation and a wider range of collections
' to take full advantage of the wealth of
information in our data bases
. ®Increase the profitability of business through
new financial resources (outside advertisers, B-to-B)

Page ViI - 8

Maps and Guides

Leader in French-speaking countries,
challenger in Southern Europe

and less well known in Northern Europe

and the rest of the world

® More than 650 publications

A ® The Green Guide collection of travel guides
< MICHELIN® is translated into 7 languages

%, X @ 20 million publications sold yearly in more than

~ Ta st“‘““ .
B GREAT BRITAIN 70 countries

&'2"5'6“:" ® A best-seller: the collection “The Michelin Guide”

sells 1,200,000 copies in Europe every year

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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. f Maps and Guides

2004: another year for
innovation and new products

The collection “Michelin Les Guides Gourmands”
will be completed by the end of 2004 with 13 titles
covering atl of France

3 new thematic “Guides Verts” (in French):
weekends around Paris, walking tours in Paris,
weekends around Marseille

“Le Guide Vert Croatie” (Croatia)

and new titles in other languages

("Nurmandia” in ltalian, “Pirineos” in Spanish)
MUST SEES: a new collection of practical trave!
guides for cities in the USA with 6 titles out in
October 2003 and 6 more to come in 2004

17 regional maps of France to be updated

and reissued at a scale of 1:300,000

[ 12 regional atlases for North America in 2003,
l@mem ¢ - with 8 more titles to complete the series in 2004

pareyoneeny
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Other - ViaMichelin
ctivities

|~ ® Ppositioning
® “The multi-channel ROAD COMPANION in Europe”

S . ® to provide mobility services using new technalogies N
.’.Wg_Micﬁelin“. R e on all types of digital supports ﬂ%
c 7 S o for all types of customers - B2C and B28 (w

e across Europe Z.
® Profile

e a fully owned subsidiary of the Michelin Group

e Jaunched in 2001

e over 100 employees

e offices in Paris, London, Frankfurt, Madrid and Milan

e some 150 servers operating H24, capable of delivering
close to 10 million pages per day

® best-in-class technical solutions including

i Websphere architecture, Oracle database,

- Java and Linux programming languages,

S 3rd-party monitoring. of the quality of service

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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ViaMichelin

Services developed around a
unique Europe-wide content

® Extensive top quality cartography T
e Michelin’s digital cartography $
® Map database on more than
40 European countries

® Detailed city maps

e Door-to-door cross-border
route planning

® Hotel & restaurant selections
e 70,000 hotels and restaurants

selected in 20 countries
by the Michelin Guide,
the absolute reference

® Tourist information
e 20,000 tourist sites

from the Green Guide
® Traffic information

R . L - °
fMICHEI_.I;J'iFA"CT-Boox 2003 Weather reports

‘%‘Mu‘uﬁuﬂ

Page Vil - 10

ViaMichelin

Multiple markets

1. Direct Sales to Consumers
e Web site in 5 fanguages
¢ more than 10 million visits per month
e Road Atlas CD-ROM'’s for PC’s
e Software for PDA's:
* navigation and mapping products
¢ all the “Michelin Guides”
(hotels & restaurants)
2. Services on Mobile Phones
e maps, route planning, traffic information,
gas stations, hotels, restaurants
o all technologies: i-mode™, WAP GPRS, SMS...

e available at Vodafone, Orange, Bouygues,
Telefonica, e-Plus, KPN, Base, SFR...
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ViaMichelin

Multiple markets

3. Automotive
o travel guides on CD-ROMs for
on-board navigation systems (GPS)
¢ hotels, restaurants,
tourist information
¢ compatible with Bosch-Blaupunkt,
Siemens-VDO/Dayton, and Harman-Becker
e telematics services with vehicle manufacturers
and device makers
4, Services to Businesses in general
® mapping for web sites of companies with
multiple points of sales
¢ ASP mode
» modular approach
e /ocation-based services and routing for
commercial vehicles
o special projects based on ViaMichelin’s
on-line know-how and unique content

‘MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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Part VI

The environnement

Tire life cycle assessment

- Raw material production
Environmental control of industrial sites
Impact of tire use on the environment
Recycling

. Michelin Performance and Responsibility report
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Llfe cycle
assessment

average

Europ an
passenger
car t:re

5MICHELIN FACI'-BOOK 2003

-

End-of-life processing 2%

* W/‘/I be prohibited in Europe as of 2006. Already prohibited in 11 US States

The impact of tire use
on the environment

Tire Life Cycle Assessment

Contribution of the different stages of tire life cycle
in the global impact on human health and the environment

Production of raw
materials and tire /;
manufacturing k}

11.7%

Tire distribution

})”)d%

o~

Material recovery V’ ¥ Tire use phase

Enerqy recovery (ﬁ se%
- Collecting
Landfill end-of-life tires
<1%

Source : based on a study by PréConsuitant B.V., 28,
May 2001 (ln ecopoints) g-‘MICHELIIII
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Enivironment.

O Steel

2 Fabric

fillers

SMICHEUN FACI' BOOK 2003

O Synthetic
rubker
@ Natural rubber

a0 Chemiy

reinforcements

reinforcements

* O Reinforcing

Raw material production

The components of a tire

® A tire is made up of more than 200
components. These materials come
from a range of different sources:

e plants (natural rubber and rayon),
which are renewable

e minerals (silica, metal reinforcements)

e petroleum (synthetic elastomers,
carbon black, chemicals)

® With the studies carried out by our
researchers and consultations with our
suppliers, we take action to reduce the
environmental impact of these products’
elaboration
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Raw material production

Rubber tree growing

Latex can be obtained for about 30 years from an adult
tree, after an initial growing period of six or seven years.

‘buys naturalrubber,  ® This long unproductive period may encourage small

_the group is now independent producers to replace rubber trees with other
responsible for

- around 1.million crops that have shorter cycles.

“hectares of rubber Now the rubber tree is a high-quality species for

plantations .., reforestation. Furthermore, its wood can be used for

' heating purposes and to manufactuure furniture and

' flooring, instead of trees from the primary forest.
Michelin has been involved in the rubber growing sector
since the 1920s. As well as covering a small proportion of
our natural rubber requirements (3%), the purpose of our
rubber growing activity is to develop innovative research
and thus contribute to technical and economic progress in
the sector.

%MI‘"E’LIM
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Environmental control
of our industrial sites

® The Environmental Management System (EMS)
eset up by Michelin in 1998

-Production of tires e a program designed to control and reduce the

/ on150/14001- impact of our industrial sites on the

e 'Cerfiﬁed_b‘ifesl environment. Each site signs an environmental

" ('?{»?tg,-‘,’.;;e’,')"”a commitment charter.

ST e At the end of 2003, around 70,000 employees
had been made aware of environment, within
the EMS framework.

® Our ISO 14001 certification policy
e EMS is a prerequisite for obtaining ISO 14001
certification
e /n the first half of 2003, 80% of the Group’s
production in tonnage terms was produced in
1SO 14001-certified factories.
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.An analysisof
. the life cycle

.of.a tife shows
-that.thé/major

environment is
“at-usage level
and not,.as- .

" often thought,
elimination of
\the worri tire® -

The impact of tire use
on the environment

Rolling resistance

® With each revolution of a wheel, the tire deforms to
absorb road surface irregularities. it is because it can
change shape that a tire provides grip and comfort

® As the rubber compounds are being deformed,
they heat up and dissipate part of the energy
transmitted by the engine: this phenomenom is
known as rolling resistance

® Today, one full tank in five is used to overcome
rolling resistance, the rest of the fuel consumed
serves to counter air resistance (aerodynamics),
acceleration (inertia) and to climb slopes (gravity)

Y

- . - \g“ ... .
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""# Reductiofin

on Michelin

T, _(mzkg‘lt)
“30- First Gt
- %~ "pnguimatic tiré.

25

" rolling resistance

7 Bt -
“passenger car tires

The impact of tire use
on the environment

Rolling resistance:
our technical progress

® Low rolling resistance has now acquired a
performance status in its own right, thanks to
innovations by the Michelin Group:

e invention of the radial tire in 1946
e invention of the green tire in 1992, for passenger car
(Energy) and truck (A2 Energy or X One) ranges

® The green tire revolutionized the field of rolling

resistance:

® saving an appreciable amount of energy
(the first generation of green tires enabled the fuel
consumption of vehicles to be reduced by around 4%)

e further improving user safety

-

“MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

(notably by better grip on wet road surface)

e without compromising tire service life
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resistance, redu:

) a‘dva‘n?ggésrl W r"olling

The impact of tire use
on the environment

Rolling resistance:
awareness of our customers

‘@ The awareness of the general public still needs to be
developped... '
e In replacement, rolling resistance is rarely the main
purchasing criterion
e However, in original equipment, an increasing number of
vehicle manufacturers prefer tires with low rolling
resistance, which allow them to comply more easily with
vehicle poliution regulations and fuel efficiency standards
® ... whereas professionals are gradually becoming
convinced
® the use of green tires leads to a reduction in fuel
consumption of around 5%
e the economic advantage and protection of the
environment combine

\%‘MICHELIM
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: End-of-life.tire
'/ Fécycling rate
i, in2001-

. (;a_s’a percentage)

t

. Europe - spar | North Brazil around one million kilometers (621,504 miles)
) ‘E_rie?é}" U Rétreading e development of end-of-life-tire recycling programs, which
. recgvery _, _—"Within zone enable the material or energy contained in the tire to be
*Material Others/ recovered
a

Recycling end-of-life tires

@ More than one billion tires are sold each year throughout
the world. Today, around one-third of these tires are
disposed of in landfills or just thrown out

® We have several levers allowing us to globally reduce the
impact of end-of-life tires:
e extending tire life, thus reducing the volume of end-of-life
tires and the need for raw materials, while improving customer
satisfaction

® suitability for regrooving and retreading:
a Michelin truck tire can be regrooved twice and retreaded
once, offering four lives in all, and a total distance traveled of

e dialogue with the industry and the public authorities, to help
gradually recycle all end-of-life tires

g"MICHELIM
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‘Environment’  Recycling end-of-life tires

Energy recovery by tire incineration

4

® |n 2002, incineration of our end-of-life
products produced:

T, .
“Incinerating.".
-an average . "~
-passenger car

tire provides e total energy of 22,000 terajoules, or the equivalent

enough ¥ . of the energy consumption of a European town of
| energyto . 135,000 inhabitants for one year

- power a6 W, : o e

~light bulb for - - egross emissions of 2 million tons of CO,

:more than ~ %
- 40 days’ :}‘S‘.“ :

£ e

Tty @ If the same energy had to be produced from

fossil fuels, an additional 500,000 tons of CO,
would have been generated

/
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Michelin Performance and
Responsibility Report

By Y ah -3 . .

i T?, "” More detailed information about the

Respectforthe  Environment is available in the Michelin

Environment is "T

partof the . Performance and Responsibility Report,

peitormanze ana  Which exposes the first results of the

Responsibility implementation of our five values:

- approach:.: .

2 eRespect for Customers

, eRespect for People

Ty eRespect for Shareholders
eRespect for the Environment

eRespect for Facts

[
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Part IX

Share and shareholders

Stock market data
Share price history

- Shareholders

- Financial ratings
Corporate governance

- Financial calendar
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Stock market data
olders
o The Michelin share

@® Parvalue: 2 euros
® Market of quotation: Premier Marché of Euronext Paris
® Transaction unit: 1
® Form of the shares: 100% registered
® |SIN code: FR 0000 12126 1
® Symbols/ Tickers: Reuters: MICP.PA
Bloomberg: ML
® MONEP: Continuous trading segment
® Indices: CACA40

Euronext 100

ASP! Eurozone®

Dow Jones Sustainability Index STOXX
. ® Weight within indices:  CAC 40: 0.87% (as of 12/31/2003)
Euronext 100: 0.40% (as of 12/31/2003)

) 3g‘lwuwsum
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N Y I
- “Share and~. Sh ice hi
- ~Share and- are price history
-Shareholders
LN T, \2 tasttrading[ Average Net incame | Dividend per
> 4 . v day of year ange . daily volume|Number of shares| after taxes, | share (tax
ear . year-on- High / Low "
> {tlosing of V)] Group share | credit not
LT ) rice) {2) year transactions er share inctuded
1998 34.07€ |-26.2%| 62.34€-2851€ | 561,933 137,715,893 3.89¢ 064¢

1999 39.00€ [+14.5%| 49.49€-30.30€ | 561,436 134,715,873 2.10¢€* 0.71¢*

2000 38.55€ | -1.2% | 41.90€-30.10€ | 514,485 134,715,873 2.96€ 080€

2001 37.05€¢ | -3.9% | 43.50€-23.84€ | 578,980 134,715,873 2.20¢€ 0.85€

2002 3286€ |-11.3%| 45.05€-24.50€ 760,143 | 141,792,730** 4.28€ 093€

2003 36.38€ |+10.7%| 38.11€-25.02€ | 797,844 | 143,387,025** NA NA
* Pro Forma

** 1,292,143 shares were issued in 2002 in the first phase of the employee share ownership plan.
5,784,714 shares were issued in 2002 as compensation for 444,978 Compagnie Financiére Michelin
bearer shares affected by the public offer of exchange on 458,593 shares.
. The 14,615 shares not presented for exchange were subject to a "squeeze-out " procedure, after

* which 189,995 shares of Cie Générale des Etabli Michelin were issued in 2003.
* 1,404,300 shares were issued in 2003 in the second phase of the employee share ownership plan.

(1) Total consists of A capital, A {jouissance) shares and B shares grouped into
a single category on June 15, 1999, henceforth called Michelin shares

‘f = (2} Bshare up to, and including, June 14, 1999

{MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003
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- -Sharé.and Share price history
fSharehoIders

B “, Comparative performance of the Michelin share

- ) - and the CAC 40 index (1990-2003)

Lt ’ ‘"7.—' 350 4
‘ /T’he: Michejilqr 01
j;hare fell 250 cacao
.against-the
ACAC 40: mdex 200 1
- i summer 98 178
“but the gap 1501 142
-has.narrowéd 1004
.sincé m:d-ggoz Michelin

: ol
0 v T T T T T + T T T T T T
1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 200C 2001 2002 2003
Michelin share and CAC 40 index closing prices (as of 12/31/2003)
The relevant Michelin share was called “B share” up to,

R - and including, June 14, 1999. \é
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waare and Sh i i
are price histor
vSha ‘eholders P y
’ =" Comparative performance of the Michelin share, the World
Automotive Index and the World Tire Index (1990-2003)

250

Thls faIl agamst
. GAC 40. was “not \ i:heun

épec:f:c to - e
Mlchehn, whose
performance
since 1990 |
compares ‘very J
Vfavor ab’y to .- Sy World Automotive
the | Wor Id’ .T:re Index World Tire Index
“index and .
" fa vor“fably to v

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1935 1936 1997 1998 1939 2000 2001 2002 2003
'nde Michelin share closing price {(as of 12/31/2003)

World Automonve index cal:ulated fram lhe Morgan Stanley Capital
------ | World index A

World Tire index calculated from the Ml:helm Bndgestone Corp.,
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., Pirelli Spa and Continental AG share
closing prices (as of 12/31/2003)
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Share and
JSha ,feholders

‘Smce 1998 the
Mlchelm ‘share
out-performed
.its mam R

competltars,

Share price history

Comparative performance of Michelin,
Bridgestone and Goodyear shares (1998-2003)
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20

Michelin, Bridgestone Corp., Goodyear Tire &
Rubber Co. share closing prices (as of 12/31/2003)
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'Shareholders

el

;vévéh‘zoo‘33'

"MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

CAC40 +16‘ m .

‘e
Mlchelm '+107% %0
20 -

Share price history

Comparative performance of the Michelin share
and the CAC 40 index (2003)

CAC40

2002
Results H12003

3 2003
Resuits a

Sales

NN

2nd half 2003

Q12003

1st half 2003

FEEPSLELS

Michelin share and CAC 40 index closing prices (as of 12/31/2003)
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Share price history

Comparative performance of the Michelin share, the World
Automotive Index and the World Tire Index (2003)

World Autornotive
180 index

122
120 118
m

0 W

-
World Tire Index [Vichelin]

60 4

40 4

20 4 1st half 2003 2nd half 2603

Michelin share closing price (as of 12/31/2003)

World index cal: d from the gan Stanley Capital
1 World Index A iles & C
World Tire index calculated from the Micheli Corp.,
Goodyear Tire & Rubfier Co., Pirelli Spa and Contmental AG share
closing prices (as of 12/31/2003) ’é
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Share and
Shareholders

140
120

100

Share price history

Comparative performance of Michelin,
Bridgestone and Goodyear shares (2003)

Michelin
115

m

Goodyear

1st half 2003 2nd half 2003
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- ‘Share and Share price history
-Shareholders
MRS NING Share price and daily

) . trading volumes in 2003

- \ , S L | 5:000,000

ot ok “% Letrag >
. Substantial' : 3053.91] \-35%300'
~increase of the  J00. [N P, - 3,500,000
" average.daily 80 - Michelin | 3:000.000
' trading yolume - 2,500,000
B e 60 . 2,000,000
578,980in.2001 a0 - wansactons |, | 1500000
'760,143 in 2002 1,000,000
- (+31%.1 2001). 20 | :
- 797:844:in 2003 I . Il j| 2000
(+5%1:2002), . (')b‘ b D D D DD DD P DD °
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h

Shareholders

HimieteSes Number of shareholders Number of shares
12/31/2001 153,918 134,715,873
12/31/2002 199,703 141,792,730
12/31/2003 227,762* 143,387,025
* of which 70,117 employees

§ Number of shares
12/31/2001 4,140,457 3.07%
12/31/2002 1,263,202 0.89%
12/31/2003 155,312 0.11%
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Shareholder Ownership Structure
: As of 12/31/2003
R
e individual
_Stfong_PfES?nte Other shareholders
“of forelgn 4 foreign 19.5%
mvestors * o institutions Employees
kL - 34.4% 22%
‘o )
Treasury
stock Voting rights
0.1% lindividual shareholders 26.2%
Employees 1.9%
Kli Treasury stock -
Franklin French French institutions 32.8%
Mlchelm shares Te““"f‘”‘ institutions Franklin Templeton 5.5%
fOI' mofe-th 67% 37.2% Other foreign institutions 33.7%
As a % of total number of shares held All shareholders
S Shares held for less than 1 year 38.7%
B Shares hetd for more than 1 year and less than 3 29.5%
e L Shares held for more than 3 years 318%
"MICHELIN FACT-BOOK 2003

Page IX - 6

Financial Ratings
As of 12/31/2003

CGEM (1) CFM (2) MFPM (3)

Short-term  Standard & Poor's A2 A2 A2
Moody'’s P2 P2 P2

Long-term  Standard & Poor’s BBB+ BBB+ BBB+
Moody's Baa2 Baa1l Baal

Outlook Standard & Poor's  Negative Negative Negative
Moody'’s Stable Stable Stable

(1) Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin
{2) Compagnie Financiére Michelin
(3) Manufacture Francaise des Pneumatiques Michelin
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Corporate Governance
in the Michelin Group

® For over 140 years, Michelin has operated as
T a specific legal entity called a Partnership by
shares (Société en Commandite par actions)

® This corporate structure fully meets the
requirements of corporate governance for it
promotes long-term strategies

e on the part of a stable base of highly commited
managers

e supervised by an independent Supervisory Board

e \
MicheLNACTBOOK 2000 N
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; f-S afe a"d Corporate Governance
«Shareholders in the Michelin Group

Partnership by shares

Two categories of partners
e Limited partners (shareholders), or sleeping partners:

* hold only registered shares

¢ liable for the Company’s debt only to the extent of their capital contributions
approve the accounts and reports presented by the Managing Partners, and
recommend the appropriation of profit/loss
where necessary, appoint the Managing Partners (subject to unanimous approval of
the General Partners), the members of the Supervisory Board {selected fram among
the Shareholders), and the Statutory Auditors at Annual Shareholders Meeting

-

e General Partners
« jointly, severally and personally liable for Michelin’s debt
* may not relinquish their duties and responsibilities by resigning
» if they hold company shares, General Parters may not vote on the appointment or
dismissal of Supervisary Board members
* 3 General Partners: Edouard Michelin, René Zingraff, and Société Auxiliaire de Gestion
(Sarl SAGES), whose sole mission is to ensure interim management and convene an

Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting in the event of the Managing Partners’
simultaneous demise
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Share and~ A Partnership Limited by Shares |
Shar eholder S (Société en commandite par actions)

Active partners <

] Sleeping
Edouard Michelin Appoint, subject to partners
René Zingraff approval of Active partners
engAgl‘EgS a (Shareholders)
v - >
S l Report on their

v management to the .
- Approve proposals of General Meeting of — Appoint

. _resolutions to Shareholders and dismiss
Extraordmary General
Meetlng of | Shareholders

LT sy
'. . Ongoing Jy
ot Managmg supervision of
: Partners management Supervisory Auditors
- e

Edouard Michelin b d
René Zingraff oar

Management body Supervisory body

EMICHELIN FACI' BOOK 2003
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-Sharg and Corporate Governance
'Shareholders . . -
S in the Michelin Group
o e Clear separation of management
P and supervisory functions

® Michelin is run by the Managing Partners, who
must be natural persons and General Partners

e they report to the Supervisory Board and the
Annual Shareholders Meeting

e they prepare the Company accounts

e they recommend the appropriation of profit/loss
for the financial year

.. ®The Supervisory Board is responsible

== for ongoing supervision of the Company’s

management on behalf of the Shareholders
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Corporate Governance
in the Michelin Group

Unlimited liability of the
Managing Partners

® The Managing Partners are jointly, severally and personally
liable in their capacity as General Partners
® They do not receive a salary or non-cash benefits as
consideration for exercise of their responsibilities
® In their capacity as Managing Partners, the latter receive
statutory payments on the basis of Company net income
e their interests are the same as the shareholders, as they only
receive payment if the Company is profit-making
e the decisions they make involve long-term commitment on
their part since they have several and unlimited liability for
the Company’s debts against their personal assets
® A legal structure of this nature can only reinforce the
basic will for vigilance when taking risks

MICHELIN FACI' BOOK 2003 gl‘lwlcusl."v
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Corporate Governance
in the Michelin Group

Independent Supervisory Board

® Michelin’s Supervisory Board currently comprises 6 members,
4 of whom are independent within the meaning of the Bouton
report, meaning “they are not bound by any ties whatsoever
to the Company, the Group or its management, in a way that
might alter their free judgment”. The corresponding criteria
are defined in the Board Code of conduct.
Members are appointed by the Shareholders. At a functional
level, Board independence is guaranteed as follows:
e The Managing Partners may not be Supervisory Board members
® CGEM has not stake in non Group entities in which Board members
hold posts or director mandates
e Neither the Managing partners nor any Group managers sit on
the management bodies in such non Group entities
e Supervisory Board reviews and controls cover overall Group
business, results and prospects.
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- :Share.and- Financial Calendar
-Shareholders

. \, : ® 2003 Annual Genera! Meeting
T of Shareholders May 14, 2004
o ® Expected date of
VRS dividend distribution May 18, 2004
T ey ® Net sales at March 31, 2004 April 26, 2004
- .74 @ First half 2004 results July 30, 2004
® Net sales at September 30, 2004 October 25, 2004
® 2004 net sales February 2005

® 2004 annual results February 2005

* * These dates are provisional ones
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Agenda
Summary presentation
Preamble

Resolutions

Company results
for the last five years

g% Conditions of entry
to the Meeting

Every stockholder who is entered in the Company's register of
stockholders no later than five days in advance of the date of
the meeting will, regardless of the number of shares they
hold, be entitled to attend the meeting or to be represented
at the meeting, either by ancther stockholder or their spouse
as proxy, or by the stockholders who are not French residents,
through the outside person registered by them with the
Company and who has fulfilled all the statutory requirements.

Please let us know BEFORE APRIL 30, 2004

if you intend to be present. !f not, please return to us as soon
as possible the enclosed envelope enclosing a proxy form
together with a postal vate form indicating your preferences.

v OLEU PHC #04-20209

@@ Mixed General Meeting

of Stockholders

to be held at 9:00 a.m. on

Friday, May 14, 2004

at the Polydéme, place du 1-Mai,
Clermont-Ferrand (Puy-de-Déme), France -

April 5, 2004

Dear Stockholder,
This year, Michelin is holding its Mixed General Assembly (ordinary and extraordinary).

At this meeting you will be asked to approve the accounts for the year 2003 and
the allocation of profits. You will be asked also to renew the term of office of
members of the Supervisory Board and to appoint the company Auditors.

The Annual Meeting is for us, as always, a privileged moment to come together
at Clermont-Ferrand, and talk over specific aspects of the running of your company.
It is a time when we can meet you in person - you number 228,000 throughout
the world, 70,000 of which members of the Michelin teams, a time for building upon
the dialogue we have been constantly striving throughout the year to deepen,
by letter, stockholder meetings, meetings with your representatives on the
Stockholders’ Consulting Committee, and, of course, by internet. i

We very much look forward to your accepting our invitation to Clermont-Ferrand
this year.

Yours sincerely,

Edouard Michelin

¢ (L'M"“‘
-

René Zingraff




+ Reading of the Managing Partners’ report;

4+ Reading of the report of the Supervisory Board.

<} Items within the competence of the Ordinary General Meeting

4 Reading of the Auditors' reports on the consolidated and
corporate accounts for 2003 and the special Auditors’ report on
the conventions described in Article L 226-10 of the French
Commercial Code;

+ Approval of the corporate accounts for 2003 and the operations
described;

<+ Allocation of profits for 2003;

4+ Approval of the consolidated accounts for 2003;

+ Renewal of the term of office of two members of the Supervisory
Board;

+ Appointment of additional Auditors at the proposal of the
Supervisory Board in conformity with new legal provisions;

4+ Authorisation for the company to trade its own shares on the
French Stock Exchange.

e Items within the competence of the Extraordinary General Meeting

+ Reading of the special Auditors’ Reports;

4+ Authorisation for an increase in capital to a maximum nominal
amount of four million Euros by way of issue of shares to senior
and executive management of the Company and of Group
member companies in France and abroad (”stock options”);

+ Authorisation for an increase in capital to a maximum nominal
amount of two million eight hundred and sixty-seven thousand
Euros, representing 1% of the current capital, by way issue of
shares reserved for employees of the Company and of Group
member companies.




Overview

After three years of stagnation, the global economy at last in 2003
registered an upturn, though varying considerably from region to
region whether in industrialized or developing countries.

The tyre markets have developed in a contrasting way. A slight
global growth has been recorded, but on the whole this has not
exceeded the level attained in 2000. In Europe, significant progress
was made in Car and Van replacement and heavy goods vehicles
(HGV).

Michelin on the markets

In 2003, the Car and Van market benefited from continued efforts at
improving the product-category mix. In the European replacement
market, the increase in sales volumes by the Group, although by
5.1% as compared with 2002, remains slower than the market. In
North America, 2002 sales were down by 0.9%. This drop can be

* attributable to the Group loss of the market share in the “mass
market” segments and 1o the H speed index over the first nine
months of the year, as well as to a deficiency in production capacity
in the SUV segment in the second year-half. As for the fourth quarter,
the mix of Group brands improved notably to the benefit of the
“flag” brands and to the detriment of the private brands. As for the
original equipment market, Michelin is gradually stabilizing its share
of the European market, even showing a progression in the fourth
quarter. In North America, Michelin is improving its sales mix, and
substantial gains in the market are being registered on the SUV and
High Performance markets. This has resulted in net sales of Euros 7.46
billion, down by 6.2%, but up by 3.6% on 2002, at constant exchange
rates.

Turnover in the HGV sector has increased by 0.6% to Euros 3.97
billion, despite the impact of varying exchange rates. The increase in
sales volumes by 4.2% associated with an improvement in the mix

In North America the Car and Van replacement market has
remained stable, whereas the HGV market is increasing thanks to
the recovery started in 2002. [n Asia, progress is mainly due to a
buoyant development in the Car and Van and HGV markets in
China, though most of the other segments are stagnating, with
Japan suffering a setback. Brazil and Argentina are experiencing a
slight upturn, whilst Venezuela, the third most important market in
South America, is in rapid decline. By contrast, the HGV market is
growing in that zone. As for the Middle East, the markets in Turkey
and the Gulf countries are enjoying an improvement, whereas the
African markets remain difficult.

original equipment/replacement market and the rise in unit selling
prices, has led to a marked growth in this sector of activity.

In the replacement market, sales have risen sharply in Europe and
North America, though the Group has not yet managed to regain the
same share in the market it enjoyed in 2000. As regards the original
equipment market in Europe, the weakness in the trailer market
explains the noticeable slow-down in sales. in North America, the
Group's share in the market has suffered a light setback. Michelin is
less present in the trailer segment, a segment which gave a greater
boost to the market in 2003 than that of tractors, which is a more
technical segment.

At Euros 4.86 billion, the turnover in other activities is up by 4.8% in
2003. Growth is essentially linked to the acquisition of the Viborg
distribution activities by Euromaster. At constant scope, sales have
gone down by 3.5%. The depreciation of the American Dollar
reaching 16.5% as regards the Euro has materially affected sales in
other activities. This is particularly sensitive issue as regards the TCl
turnover, as with activities in the Civil engineering and aircraft tyres
sectors where the American Dollar is the currency of reference for
nearly all commercial operations.




= ’ Summary presentation

(} Results and balance sheet

Turnover totalled Euros 15.37 billion in 2003, a dip of 1.8% on 2002.
At constant scope and exchange rates, turnover rose by 5%.

Profits, recorded at Euros 1.14 billion, are down by 6.7% on 2002,
with a margin of 7.4%. However, excluding the impact caused by the
consolidation of the Viborg distribution activities, the margin is
virtually stable at 7.7%.

One of the main reasons for the dip in profits is extra costs of
Euros 320 million, compared with 2002, owing to the rise in cost
of raw materials. The rise in the Euro compared with other currencies
and in particular, the American Dollar, had a strong negative impact
on the margin {(down by 0.4 points).

These set-backs have however been partly relieved by the
operational solidity of Michelin, thanks to:

4 an improvement for the third year running, in the price mix, by
1.6% in 2003 at constant exchange rates and sales;

4+ an increased productivity which takes account of the following
factors:

@ an increase of 3.7% of sales volumes,

¢ 3 decrease in stocks of finished products, though less than that
of 2002,

» efficient cost-control compensating for certain costs (i.e. energy,
transport, insurance and employee pensions and benefits).

To conclude, the Euros 15 million corresponding to the operating loss
realised over the nine months during the Viborg consolidation have
reduced the margin.

Profits for the Car and Van sector, at Euros 664 million, went down
by 13.2% and the margin by 0.7 points to 8.9%. This decline was
mainly due to North America. Profits for the HGV sector are recorded
at Euros 521.5 million, an improvement of 7.6%.

After a severe set-back in profitability in 2001 owing to the collapse
of the market in North America, this segment showed a marked
improvement in profits for the second year running. At 13.1%, the
margin was widened by 0.8 points. Profits for the ‘other activities’
were down by Euros 42 million, a setback of Euros 18 million
compared with 2002, corresponding to a reduction in the margin of
0.9%, a drop of 0.4 points. The main reasons for this setback are the
increased costs of raw materials and currency regarding special
purpose tyres, the disappointing Euromaster profits despite
improved sales, and the consolidation of a profit loss of Euros 15
million corresponding to the nine-month Viborg consolidation.

At 68.7% of turnover, the manufacturing cost of sales continues to
drop, generating an improvement in the gross margin at 31.3%. By
cantrast, commercial, administrative and general costs went up from
22.3% to 23.9%. Apart from an increase in external costs, this trend
is, on the whole, essentially owing to the Viborg consolidation and to
exchange rate fluctuations, the Group paying its general costs mostly
in Euros.

In 2003, Michelin devoted Euros 710 million to research and
development, some 4.6% of turnover. Michelin ranks as one of the
most important investors in this sector.

The financial results come to Euros 225 million, as compared with
Euros 260 million in 2002. The exceptional profit of Euros 19 million,
when compared with the profit for 2002 of Euros 75 million, is due
to restructuring provisions totalling Euros 192 million and the
positive impact (Euros 307 million) of measures taken following the
in-depth review of employee pension funds, particularly in the
United States and Japan. At Euros 261 million, the Group tax burden
is down though the apparent average tax rate has risen {44% against
38.4% in 2002). Viborg goodwill amounted to Euros 306.5 million.
This amount was fully amortized over the financial year.

The net profit is Euros 328.9 million, against 614.5 million in 2002.
The Group net profit share stands at Euros 317.5 million.




Gross tangible and intangible investments, excluding the fixed assets
of newly-acquired businesses, come to Euros 1.1 billion and represent
7.3% of turnover, an increase of 1.1 points compared with 2002.
Net financial investments went up to Euros 229 mitlion, compared
with Euros 62 million in 2002. Net stocks continued to be monitored
and represent 18% of turnover compared with 18.3% a year before.
This_development, when taken together with the decrease in
customer receivables (19.4% of the 2003 turnover, as against 20.6%
in 2002), has paved the way for an improved self-financing capacity
of Euros 380 million. Taking all these factors into account,
the situation on available cash flow is positive, at Euros 299 million.
Auto-financing capacity, at over Euros 1.4 billion, some 9.2%
of the turnover, is determined after accounting for contributions

25
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CFM'’s turnover is down by 1.7% year-on-year to Euros 15.6 billion. At
constant exchange rates, consolidated sales advanced 5%. At Euros
1.10 billion, operating profits dipped by 4.3%. The net profit comes
to Euros 285.6 million.

= Compagnie Financiére Michelin (CFM)

to employee pension funds and payments to retirees under
unfunded defined benefit plans. Net financial liabilities as at
December 31, 2003 stood at Euros 3.44 billion, representing 78% of
Stockholders’ equity including minority interests, compared with
85% in 2002. The Group further improved its financial structure in
November through a Euros 500 million last ranking, 30-year
subordinated note issue.

In 2003, Michelin’s employee pension funds continued to meet
the minimum funding levels set in local regulations. In line with
previous years, payments into employee pension funds totalled
Euros 133 million.

Given that CFM's sales scope is practically identical to that of
Compagnie Générale des Michelin  (CGEM),
observations relative to CGEM in this report likewise apply to CFM.

Etablissements

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin (CGEM)

The accounts of the company record a profit of Euros 178,237,815.34
as against a profit of Euros 332,387,387.56, some Euros 154.1 million
less.

Profits are recorded at Euros 52.6 million, down from Euros 29.5
miltion.

The amount of fees and royalties charged has dropped by Euros 15.2
million. This drop is due largely to varying exchange rates (US Dollar,
Canadian Dollar, Pound sterling, Polish zloty, etc.).

Operating costs increased by Euros 21.2 miflion due to research,
re-invoicing services, and the contract signed with TRW for the
marketing of tyre pressure monitoring systems.

Financial income slipped by Euros 99.8 million owing to the following
factors:

4 the non-distribution of the Pardevi dividend and a reduction of
Euros 30 million in the dividend paid out by Compagnie Financiere
Michelin;




’ Summary presentation

4+ the creation of depreciation reserves for Pardevi shares worth
Euros 16.3 million and the transfer from depreciation reserves for
Manufacture Francaise des Pneumatiques Michelin shares worth
Euros 26 million.

These different factors go to explain the present income of Euros
182.6 million as against Euros 311.8 million for 2002.

The exceptional profit has been balanced. It no longer takes account
of the transfer from depreciation reserves for Manufacture Francaise
des Pneumatiques Michelin shares, which is henceforth to be
recorded under the item ‘financial results’.

Lastly, income tax payable by the company will be Euros 4.3 million.
The structure of the balance sheet can be explained as follows:

4 On November 3, 2003 the Company acquired 3,899,437 registered
shares and 391,666 bearer shares in Compagnie Financiére Michelin
following an increase in capital. The shares (fully paid up) were
acquired in payment for loans receivable worth Euros
1,054,338,477.34;

4+ Capital and bonuses have increased by Euros 36 million. This
variation is owing to Euros 31 million from the employee share

(’ Prospects for 2004

For 2004, Michelin intends to continue making progress, in line with
its objectives for growth, profitability and sustainability.

The Group remains, more than ever, totally committed to improving
its performance and global competitiveness, and continuing its
geographic expansion.

The company remains vigilant, however. Actually, even though it may
be expected that the tyre markets will continue to grow, albeit in
contrasting fashion depending on the geographical zone buoyant in
North America, slightly positive in Europe, sluggish in Japan, very
promising in China, in the long term, however, their global

ownership plan authorised by the Mixed General Meeting held on
May 18, 2001, and Euros 5 million from the public exchange offer for
Compagnie Financiére Michelin bearer shares launched by
Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin on October 17,
2002;

4+ On December 3, 2003, the Group made a 500 million Euros last
ranking subordinated issue (TSDR). For a 30-year term, the note will
be callable from December 3, 2013 at the Group's sole discretion, at
par and in cash, and thereafter in quarterly payments on the due
date of payment of interest until December 3, 2033, the due date for
the loan repayment. CGEM reserves the right to effect early
amortization at any moment, without any limitation as to price or
quantity, either by way of purchase of stock on or off the Stock
Exchange, including by public tender offer to repurchase or
exchange. The stock will bear interest at a fixed annual rate of
6.375% for the period December 3, 2003 — December 3, 2013. They
will be calculated from December 3, 2013, on 3-months variable
Euribor plus 2.95%. Details of the other conditions of this issue of
stock are contained in a specific note in the annex to the Company
accounts.

progression it is not expected to exceed + 1% to + 2% on average per
year. Moreover, a number of external inflationary pressures,
affecting in particular the cost of raw materials, will continue to bear
on activity but less heavily than in 2003. The Euro should remain
stronger than the Dollar.

Building on the improvements already made within its corporate
structure and on its capacity to take up opportunities for market
growth, Michelin looks forward to 2004 with optimism, seeing it as a
chance to improve its performances significantly, in particular, its
operating margin.




é& Resolutions within the competence of the Ordinary General Meeting

4 The first two resolutions relate to the approval of the corporate

accounts and the allocation of profits for 2003. It is proposed to
distribute a dividend at €0.93 per share for 2003. Taken together
with a tax credit of €0.465, this will generate overall earnings for
stockholders to €1.395 per share. This dividend will be paid on
May 18, 2004.

4 The third resolution relates to the approval of the consolidated

accounts for 2003.

+ The fourth resolution concerns the special Auditors’ report on

regulated conventions.

4 The fifth and sixth resolutions concern the renewal for a further

five years of the term of office on the Supervisory Board of
Mr. Eric Bourdais de Charbonniére and Mr. Francois Grappotte,
who have already been members of the Board since June 11, 1999.

Mr. Bourdais de Charbonniére was previously with J.P. Morgan for
twenty-five years, where he was president of the Bank in France.
He was subsequently appointed Financial Director of Michelin for
ten years, before taking over his current position as Chairman of
the Supervisory Board in 2000.

Mr. Grappotte was Director General of Legrand for twenty years
and became non-executive Chairman of Legrand in 2004.

Additional information on the members of the Supervisory Board
can be found in the annual report under ‘Additional Information’.

4 The seventh and eighth resolutions concern the appointment of

the new Auditors, replacing the current Auditors whose
appointment will expire after the General Meeting. In compliance
with local regulations, the Supervisory Board makes proposals as to
the appointment of the Auditors on the basis of advice from the
Accounts Committee.

[t is proposed to appoint PricewaterhouseCocpers Audit and
Corevise as the company Auditors. The reason for appointing
those accountancy companies to replace Mr. Dominique Paul and
Mr. Stéphane Marie (partners at PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
and Corevise, respectively) is that this will allow for the rotation of
the partners in those accountancy corporations in accordance with
the terms of the Law on Financial Security of August 1, 2003.

4 The ninth and tenth resolutions deal with the appointment of an

Auditor of the company in addition to each of the current
appointees, regardless of the fact that the current appointees may
be corporations. We propose Mr. Pierre Coll (partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit) and Mr. Jacques Zaks (partner at
Corevise) as the additional Auditors.

Additional information on Auditors fees and responsibilities for
2003 can be found in the annual report under ‘Additional
Information’.

4 The eleventh resolution concerns the authorisation of the

company to transact its own shares in accordance with the
procedures previously approved, namely for a maximum purchase
price of Euros 60 and a minimum selling price of Euros 30.




{, Resolutions within the competence of the Extraordinary General Meeting

4 The twelfth resolution concerns the renewal of the authorisation
permitting the allocation of options to senior and executive
management in the Company and Group member companies in
France and abroad, to subscribe for or purchase shares in the
company ('stock options’). The aim of this authorisation is to
permit the continuance of the policy adopted in 2002 and 2003 of
allocating stock options on a reasonable and careful basis. It is
recalled that the number of shares that can be issued in any one
financial year is limited to 2,000,000, some 1.40% of the equity
capital.

It is also recalled that the mixed General Meeting held on May 18,
2001 authorised the company to grant stock options, and limited
the number of shares for issue in that regard to 2,300,000 for any
one financial year, some 1.70% of the equity capital.

By virtue of that authorisation, which expires on July 17, 2004,
some 1,185,800 shares were allocated under three separate stock
option plans, the details of which are set out in the following
table:

4 The thirteenth resolution concerns the authorisation required by

law on employee save-as-you-earn-schemes to undertake increases
in capital in favour of employees of the Company and of Group
member companies in France and abroad. This is just a matter of
simply renewing the same terms and object of the authorisation
previously passed by the Mixed General Meeting on May 16, 2003.
That authorisation was never actually implemented and will be
superseded by this new authorisation. It is recalled that there are
no plans as yet to introduce any such scheme.

Date Number of options Euro
call
Date allocation Year Expiry Allocated Called Cancelled Balance price
May 2002 May 2006 May 2011 716,600 (1) 0 10,800 705,800 44.00
May 2003 May 2007 May 2012 243,000 (2) 0 3,000 240,000 32.25
Nov. 2003 Nov. 2007 Nov. 2012 226,200 0 0 226,200 34.00
1,185,800 0 13,800 1,172,000

(1) of which 15,000 to Management and 8,000 to each of the 10 members of the Group Executive Board.
(2) of which 15,000 to Management and 10,000 to each of the 10 members of the Group Executive Board.

Allocation of stock options to the Senior Management is made once annually, after the General Meeting.




Approval of the corporate accounts for 2003

The General Meeting, having heard the Managing Partners’ report,
the Auditors’ report, and the report of the Supervisory Board, hereby
approves the company accounts for 2003 and the profit recorded
therein of €178,237,815.34.

The General Meeting hereby approves the operations described in
the above accounts and indicated in the above reports, specifically,
and in so far as is necessary, those affecting the various reserve
accounts.

Allocation of profits for 2003

At the proposal of the Managing Partners and with the approval of
the Supervisory Board,

The General meeting,

In consideration of a profit for the year of £178,237,815.34

In consideration of the transfer to the statutory
reserve such that the latter shall represent

one-tenth of the equity capital, namely . €318,859.00

In consideration of the statutory share

of the general partners to the amount of €3,288,621.83

And whereas the resulting balance of €174,630,334.51

Subject to the addition of profits brought

Hereby rules as follows:

I - To undertake the distribution of a total sum of €170,048,683.25
Which, after .the allocation of €36,698,750 for property tax,
represents a dividend of €0.93 per share with a tax credit of
£0.465, thereby generating total earnings per share of €1.395 for
those stockholders who benefit from the tax credits.

The date of expiry for dividend entitiements shall be May 18, 2004,
upon which date shares shall be quoted net of their dividend
entitlement for 2003.

Since shares held by the Company upon the date of settlement of
the dividend shall
corresponding to the dividend in respect of these shares and to the
associated tax alflocation shall be entered under the item "Profits
carried forward".

not be dividend-bearing, the amount

Dividends paid out in the previous on shares, together with the
corresponding tax credits, are summarized in the following table:

i - To transfer the balance of €57,425,367.35 to the item 'Other
reserves’.

forward of €52,843,716.09
Represents a distributable sum of £€227,474,050.60
Year Dividends
distributed TOTAL EARNINGS PER SHARE
(ineurcs) Dividend Tax credit Total earnings
2000 107,772,698.40 0.80 0.40 1.20
2001 114,508,482.05 0.85 0.43 1.28
2002 131,867,238.90 0.93 0.465 1.395




’ Resolutions

Third resolution

Approval of the consolidated accounts for 2003

The General Meeting, having heard the Management Partners’
report, the Auditors’ report, and the report of the Supervisory
Board, hereby approves the consolidated accounts for 2003 and the
profit of €328,862,182.56 recorded therein.

Fourth Resolution

Regulated agreements

The General Meeting having heard the special Auditors’ report on
the agreements described in Article L 226-10 of the French
Commercial Code, hereby approves the said report and duly records
that there are no agreements of this type to be submitted for
approval.

Fifth resolution

Renewal of the term of office of a member
of the Supervisory Board

The General Meeting, having heard the Managing Partners’
report and the report of the Supervisory Board, hereby re-elects
Mr. Eric BOURDAIS de CHARBONNIERE to the Supervisory Board
for a term of five years, the said term to expire at the General
Meeting of 2009 for the adoption of the accounts for 2008.

-Sixth resolution

Renewal of the term of office of a member
of the Supervisory Board

The General Meeting, having heard the Managing Partners’ report
and the report of the Supervisory Board, hereby re-elects
Mr. Frangois GRAPPOTTE to the Supervisory Board for a term of five
years, the said term to expire at the General Meeting of 2009 for
the adoption of the accounts for 2008.

Seventh resolution

Appointment of an Auditor

The General Meeting, having heard the report of the Supervisory
Board and noting that the term of appointment of the Auditor
Mr. Dominique PAUL hereby appoints
PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit, of 32, rue Guersant — 75017 Paris,
to replace him for a term of 6 years to terminate at the closing of
the General Meeting convened in 2010 to vote on the accounts for
year 2009.

is nearing expiry,

Eighth resolution |

Appointment of an additional Auditor

The General Meeting, having the report of the Supervisory
Board hereby appoints, for a term of 6 years to terminate after the
closing of the General Meeting convened in 2010 to vote on
the accounts for year 2009, to audit the accounts for the year 2009,
Mr. Pierre COLL, 32, rue Guersant — 75017 Paris, as Auditor in
addition to PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit.

Ninth resolution ‘r

Appointment of an Auditor

The General Meeting, having heard the report of the Supervisory
Board and noting that the term of appointment of the Auditor
Mr. Stéphane MARIE is nearing expiry, hereby appoints Corevise,
20 B, rue Boissiére - 75116 Paris to replace him for a term of 6 years
to terminate after the closing of the General Meeting convened in
2010 to vote on the accounts for year 2009.



Appointment of an additional Auditor

The General Meeting, having the report of the Supervisory Board
hereby appoints, for a term of 6 years to terminate after the
closing of the General Meeting convened in 2010 to vote on the
accounts for year 2009, to audit the accounts for the year 2009,
Mr. Jacques ZAKS, 20 B, rue Boissiére - 75116 Paris, as Auditor in
addition to Corevise.

Authorisation permitting the company to transact its
own shares on the Stock Market

The General Meeting, having heard the Managing Partners’ report,
the report of the Supervisory Board,

Hereby authorises the Company to transact in its own shares, in
accordance with Article L 225-209 of the French Commercial Code
and subject to the following conditions:

4 the maximum purchase price shall be at Euros 60,
4+ the minimum selling price shall be at Euros 30,

+ the number of shares purchased shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of equity shares,

4 the term of this authorisation shall be 18 months with effect
from the present date.

In case of an increase in capital by way of the incorporation of
reserves and the allotment of free shares, or in case of the division
or amalgamation of shares, the prices indicated above shall be
adjusted by the application of a multiplier coefficient which shall
be equal to the ratio between the number of equity shares before
and after the operation concerned.

Shares may be acquired at any time, on a single occasion or on a
number of occasions, whether on the market, by private contract or
by any other arrangement, by any applicable means and specifically
by way of the transfer of blocks of shares, the purchase of options
or the utilisation of products derived therefrom, for the following
purposes:

4 the stabilisation of the Stock Market share price by means of
systematic intervention to counter market trends,

4 the retention, sale, remittance by way of exchange or transfer
of shares in lieu of payment, specifically for the purposes of
financial operations such as expansion or on the occasion of the
issue of stocks conferring direct or indirect access to capital,

4 remuneration in respect of shares acquired by way of a public
exchange offer,

4 sale to persons at senior and executive management in the
Company or Group member companies, and in connection with
stock option purchases,

4 arbitration associated with the payment of dividends,

4 cancellation, whether in whole or in part, for the purposes of the
optimum management of the capital and reserves of the
Company and for the optimisation of net earnings per share.

For the purposes indicated above, the General Meeting hereby
assigns to the Managing Partners, or to one of the Managing
Partners, full of contracts,
the completion of declarations and formalities and, in general,
the conduct of such measures as shall be necessary and appropriate
to the implementation of decisions adopted under the present

authority for the conclusion
authorisation.

This authorisation supersedes the resolution with the same object
adopted by the Ordinary General Meeting held on May 16, 2003.

-oft-Meeting 2004 \ H ¥




= ’ Resolutions

{} Extraordinary resolutions

“Twelfth resolution

The allocation of stock options to senior and executive
management in the Company and Group member

The General Meeting,

Having heard the Managing Partners’ report, the special Auditors’
report and the report of Supervisory Board,

Having taken due note of the consent of each of the General
Partners,

And ruling in accordance with the quorum and applicable conditions
for a majority decision by an Extraordinary General Meeting,

Hereby authorises the Managing Partner, or any one of them, under
the terms of Article L 225-177 and following of the French
Commercial Code, and the applicable legislative provisions, to
consent, on one or more occasions, to the allocation to senior and
executive management within the Company or the Group member
companies in France and abroad within the meaning of Article
L 225-180 of the French Commercial Code, of stock options giving a
right of subscription for shares in the Company to be issued by way
of an increase in capital, or for stock options giving a right to
purchase existing shares already held by the Company.

And Rules:

+ that the time limit for this authorisation is fixed at thirty-eight
months commencing on the date of this General Meeting,

+ that the total number of stock options for subscription to be
allocated shall be limited to 2,000,000, representing 1.40% of the
equity capital, this authorisation fixing the amount of equity
capital to be increased at Euros 4,000,000,

4 that the subscription price of the shares to be issued or the
purchase price of existing shares is to be determined by the
Managing Partners in accordance with current legal requirements
in force on the date of said consent to the said stock options, it
being understood that the said prices cannot be lower than the
average of the first stock market prices quoted in the twenty Stock
Exchange sessions prior to the relevant date of consent to the said
stock options and rounded up to the nearest Euro, and that
moreover, where share purchase options are so allocated,

of May 14, 2004

the relevant purchase price cannot be below 80% of the average
stock market price of the shares held by the company,

+ that the said prices fixed by the Managing Partners for
subscription for shares to be issued or purchased cannot be
adjusted during the time limit for the stock options, except where
under current applicable iegal provisions adjustment is permitted
as to subscription or sale prices or the number of shares in
connection with any stock option to enable account to be taken of
any negative impact any financial operations may have on the
value of the shares consented to,

+ that the period for exercising stock option rights is limited to ten
years commencing on the date of allocation.

Stockholders are reminded that under the terms of Article L 225-178
of the French Commercial Code, the present authorisation shall
entail the explicit waiver on their part, in favour of the stock
optionees, of their preferential rights in respect of shares which shall
be issued to the stock optionees in the exercise of their stock option
rights,

Hereby assigns to the Managing Partners, or to one of the Managing
Partners, full authority for the issue of the said stock options, the
definition of procedures for the issue thereof and for the specific
determination of the following:

+ the procedures for consenting to the grant of stock options,

+ the definition of a list of stock optionees consented to and the
number of stock options granted to each of them,

+ the fixing of the purchase price of the shares for subscription or
purchase by way of stock option, in accordance with the above
terms,

+ the procedures for adjusting the price and/or number of shares for
subscription or purchase by way of stock option to take account of
any financial operations having an impact on the value of the
stock options consented to,

4 the setting of the procedures and time limits for exercising the
stock options,

+ the power to suspend temporarily the exercise of stock options up
to a maximum of three months to enable the financial operations
in question to be carried out,



+ the fixing, where necessary, of a time limit in which the immediate
resale of some or all of the shares acquired by way of stock option
is prohibited, and which time limit shall not exceed three years
from the date of the exercise of the stock options,

4 and, in general, the implementation of such measures as shall be
necessary and appropriate to the implementation of the above
authorisations and, in particular, to the definitive completion of
the increase or successive increases in capital, specifically by way of
the associated amendment of the Articles of Association.

Increase in capital reserved for employees

of the Company and of group member companies under
the terms of Law n0.2001-152 of February 19, 2001

on save-as-you-earn schemes

The General Meeting, having heard the Managing Partners’ report,
the special Auditors’ report and the report of the Supervisory Board,

Having taken due note of the consent of each of the general
partners,

And ruling in accordance with the quorum and applicable conditions
for a majority decision by an Extraordinary General Meeting,

Hereby authorises the Managing Partners, or one of the Managing
Partners, in accordance with the provisions of Articles L 443-1 and
following of the Code of Labour and of Articles L 225-129 VI para. 2
and L 225-138 IV of the French Commercial Code, to undertake an
increase in capital, in one or more stages, by way of the issue of new
shares which sha!l be reserved for the employees of the Company
and of undertakings, whether French or foreign, which are
associated with the Company within the meaning of the provisions
of Article L 225-180 of the French Commercial Code and who, in the
case of employees in France, are members of a Group savings
scheme.

Hereby rules that:

+ the preferential subscription rights of stockholders to any shares
which shall be issued under the terms of the present authorisation
shall be cancelled in favour of the said employees,

4 the term of the present authorisation shall be fixed at five years
with effect from the date of this General Meeting,

<4 the maximum nominal amount of increases in capital to be
undertaken under the terms of the present authorisation shall
be fixed at Euros 2,867,000, or 1% of the current capital.

And hereby assigns to the Managing Partners, or to one of the
Managing Partners, full authority for the implementation of the
present authorisation, specifically with regard to the following:

4 the definition of the list of French or foreign undertakings
referred to above, whose employees are members of a savings
scheme and who shall be entitled to participate in the increase in
capital adopted by the present resolution,

4+ the definition, within the limits for which the law provides, of
conditions to be fulfilled by the said employees in order to qualify
for participation in the said increase in capitai,

4 the definition of the number of shares to be issued, which shall
immediately be treated in the same way as other shares, and the
definition of the issue price in accordance with the provisions of
Article L 443-5 para 2 of the Code of Labour,

4 the definition of time limits and procedures for the subscription
and paying-up of the new shares,

4 and, in general, the implementation of such measures as shall be
necessary and appropriate to the definitive completion of the
increase or successive increases in capital, specifically by way of the
associated amendment of the Articles of Association.

The present authorisation shall supersede the resolution having the
same object and adopted by the Mixed General Meeting of
stockholders of May 16, 2003.
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[ 7680 A0 [ 2001 2002 2003 |

Q} End-of-year capital
a) Equity capital 269,431,746 269,431,746 269,431,746 283,585,460 286,774,050
b) Existing number of ordinary shares 134,715,873 134,715,873 134,715,873 141,792,730 143,387,025
c) Existing number of priority dividend shares

{(non-voting) - - - - ~
d} Maximum number of future shares to be created - - - - -
a Operations and results for the year
a) Turnover net of taxes 296,709,451.18 | 335,562,960.73 | 364,240,518.88 | 364,877,827.54 |349,657,871.00 )

b) Result before tax and net calculated charges

(depreciation and reserves) 252,473,518.63 | 257,749,796.33 | 457,408,251.36 | 306,269,486.48 | 171,879,396.33
¢) Tax on profits 32,037,388.53 | 26,366,015.41 415,485.00 | 13,188,696.00 4,304,116.00
d) Employee profit-sharing for the year - - - - -
e) Result after tax and calculated charges

(depreciation and reserves) 247,399,260.17 | 263,620,238.61 | 452,871,105.91 | 332,387,387.56 |178,237,815.34
" Earnings per share
a) Result after tax, but before calculated charges

(depreciation and reserves) 1.64 1.72 3.39 2.07 117
b) Result after tax and calculated charges o

(depreciation and reserves) 1.84 1.96 3.36 234 1.24
¢) Dividend per share:

- Class A capital shares - - - - -

- Class A entitlement shares and Class B shares - - ~ - -

- Shares 0.71 0.80 0.85 0.93 093
{} Personnel
a) Average number of employees during the year 32 33 33 34 36
b) Total emoluments for the year 1,136,874.59 1,147,039.19 1,110,087.78 1,409,510.18 1,224,689:86
¢) Total amounts paid by way of welfare benefits

{Social Security payments, welfare schemes, etc.) 444,061.94 459,331.75 435,795.99 462,332.27 498,850.08




This document is a translation. Please note that only original French is legally binding.
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Assets
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S . -2003- - 2002
Cost Doprecdiation, et Net
. smortization,
provisions

FIXED ASSETS L
Intanqible assets e L
Parems, liserses 2nd ather rights 11,025342.22 ... 1102634222 . - -
Ciper ipfeniible assats £1.25€.27 -7 148,453,361 12,536.55 14,120,532
Prepaymants L : ST : -

11087 620.02 11,074,201.52 .. 1283685" 14,120.53
Freperty and equipment e
Lang 102,463.01 : 102;469.01 102,465.01
Erstdings 1,300422.5% "1,723.51023 21.903.:28 105.424.42
Other 38210822 373 55718 $,%41.10 13,374.35
Agsrte LndRf 20mtruchion - .- L= -
Frepayments - - - -

2293,599.83 2,100,086.42 R TP 7 221,267.79

Investments ¥ . - B R
Shares 10 sutsigiaries anG aff fiates 3.841006,225.22 L 32TESCASE05 T 3;514,358,086.17 1,449, 581,782 83
Lrzns and advances tn subsidizries o S :
i afiiiates - 1,430,553,625.82 1,833,123,687.45

Dthar squity ntorssts

3,783,198.35.

3.788.198.35

Leans - - - - L= 21449
Jther rvestments §81.45 - - 83135 £81.45
5275.356,101.84° 32165015805 . - 4,953,705342.79 4.286,501,271.77
0 5.208737.740.15.. . JMBS04705 - 49539 12,693.11 4286.736,660.03
CUPRENT ASSETS .
acinirts aca vable 191,527 550.92 . 19132735042 275,396.510.28
Cash equivalents . o ‘
Owen shares 4.860.740.41 N AA60.730.41- . 41,508,217.72
hbar mzrketzble cac,rities -63E,03. 1578 649,30 24030
4,361,396.49 " 1578 425138071, 41,500,458.02
r.ah 3574711 - 95,747.11° 114,292 55
ACCRUALS
Frapaid expences @ 150-’,629;"-2 - ‘ ;160,679.42 262,260 12
D) 197.008,673.44 1518 | 197,045,657.66.. 21£.233,021.05
Defrred charges (i §.243352m - £36233282 928,43852
Eand ¢all aremiums {iv) 2,835 000,00 19,347.00 2,418,832:00.. - -
Zamers on losses 4] T - - -
TOTAL ASSETS (+ll+ 41V +V) | 5,494,561,766.02  334;804.408.83. 5,159,717,356.59.. | 4,605,948,116.06

(1} of which due in less thar on2 vear

{2} of which dhie in mere tan ane year

1,42:,412,055.79:
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Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock

Pajg-in zapital in exeess of par
Favoiuchon rezerve

Otner raservas

Retyined 2anings

1.276,252.167:67

53.843.7

© 53130300163

03 =,

. 2003 2002
296:774050,00 253,555.460.00
i:i2ai640,17277 1,806,785 032,84

£21.142,162.63
117,660,232 27
A TRESIET

[

Hot ecome Ceamaisn $31,307,387.56
Untaxed rasavar B15976720L §1587.677.21
{l} L 42673461071 4,177,768,536.2%
PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES
Prowisions i conlingendies - -
Previsions far ¢hargas - -
0] - -
LIABILITIES™
Comsartiblz tonds 9,087.46 10,104 32
Subordinated laens $02,532,534.25° -
(Jther bong issues - 322.612,162.87. 2261242183
Rz ok borrenings 2 oL - -
Other lang and shor-iaem dant @ 28,367, 790,88 32,080,922,€0
2ezrued t2xes and payrnll costs 5:279644 43 4,732,544 32
Ju2 13 suogliors of tiend asets S R -
Dthar Nabilives 7412081243 6787157560
9ITIIAI8E 428,177,971.73
ACCRUALS
Deferrad Incorie M 20822 1,608.04
un 932,922,745.8%" 428,179.578.77
Jopnion giing [\ - -
Totai liabifities and shareholders’ equity geusmany | 5,159,712,356.59 4,605,948,116.06
b of which due inomae thar ong yasr " 504,89£.034.00 304,238 842.04
123.272.837.73

e i 1835 an one yedr
shorl-tarm bark icans end overdrafts

(2} of whiz

128,02¢,701.88




Statement of l’ncome

for the.ycar ended: December 31; 2003
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Operating revanue

Revaltias (pCuding expon ravenues: 2568 311,564 50; ) _349,657,.37 122 364,877.327.54
Cther revenes - 110,069.85 153,522,23
Total sperating revenues [{)] S '_356 767.941.06 365,071,645,77
Operating expenses 2 o . i

Edtornal engryes . 29‘ 77 0533 7g o 172,852,244 61
Taxes other ‘ran on inwme D323 550.0Y 2,203,104 .25
Wages znd s3lanas ) 1.221,689.86 1,402,510.12
Pavral taxes 493,850.08 462.332.27
Daprecietior 2n3 emrertzation:

* Fived assets 1.204 328,23 1,124,232.0;

« Dafarred crargss L=

Other avpances - 2893 672.45 4,979.150.8?
Tatal operating expenses ({11} + . 308,105,645.72;. 282,942,710,18
OPERATING INCOME - ’5255625,»29'553@: g 82,128,939.59
Intercst and other investment income E

Oividanes from sybeidiaries and afihates & 141,229, 91942

latast incerne 4,394,577

Reversals of allovances for srpaimment in valie - 28, F7A SOE.AF (22,41
Erchange sains - U BIEESE (13285800
Mat n3ins 0N saies 9f marcatable securnitie: B 1,187 242,29 #3202,250.85
Total interest and other invastment income [ I 171,760,627_.30 e 255,001,451.51
Interest and ather investment expense i

Charges 10 310w anzes far inpaiment in vaue - 16,207,843 295.257.38
Intarest avpense ! . 23.577.0 21,561,497.60
Exchange lossas 1:220.378.82: % 782,758,04
Mzt Insses 09 seles of markatabin saguritias S 186.8Q1.72 ¢ 285285276
Total interest and other investment expenses vy - 4%;791;887:90 ; 25.293,371.78
NET INTEREST AND OTKER INVESTMENT INCOME - 1294 : 229,708,079.73
INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES g-l+i-n 182;631:03a74- 1| 311,837,019.32
Non-recurring income ~ S

From resenue onsactions 15,000:0C ¢ 747603
From capital t-3rsacmons R 2,258,280.47
fleversals of alimwaness - - 32,600,000.0)
Total nen-recurring Income V) . 15,0000 ", 34,275,736,47
Hon-racurring expenses .

Dr raven, b 1ransactions 103,520.00 -
Or capral ransactions 513,40 S3E,672.23
Charmes 10 alowances = -
Total non-tecurring expenses ) 10416320 . ; 535,672.23
NET NON-RECURRING INCOME V- 0} 33,739,064.24
INCOME TAX (i) -4;304,116.00.". 13,186,636.00
TOTAL REVENUES t+m+v) | .528:543,568:36. - 654,348,837.75
TOTAL EXPENSES i+ evieviy }: 350,305753,02 321,961,450.19
NET INCOME 178,737,81534° 332.387.387.56
1] Of Which revenuss reiating i nnor vears ) - -
(2, o which expensas r2loting 10 prior vears -
(2} of whizh revenies fom refated ponty tran, 237,544 .875.
2} 0f whizh relzred gany ¥ 126,455
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Notes to the Financial Statements -

Tre Company's twotal assess at Decamber 31, 2003,
smounted 1o €5,159,717,355.52

Ingeme stetemant waals for the year are as follows, in
2UFOS:

~ Total revenues 523,543,568.3¢6
- Total expenses 3%0,30%,783,02
MNet income for the year 178,237,815.24

Thes Ccmpzny's firanclal year covars the 12 months from
January ! to Dacember 31.

The follewing notas Sorm an integral part of the Financial
Stataments,

Significant events
of the year

Sionificant events of the year are discusse? in the Manzaing
Partners’ report 13 the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to oe
zallzd to zpgrove the 2002 Financial Statements,

Summary of significant :
accounting policies

The Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,
20032 have beep prepared in 2ccordance with generally
accepted accounting prinoples. Note thar allewances for
impairmeant in value of shares in subsidiaries will row be
accounted tor under incomelnss frem investment and not
UNg2r Non recurning income.

Cormpany 2ezaunts Tor the financial yezr 1o December 21,
2003, have been prepares and presepted pursuant to
2pplicable accounting standzrds, and in keaping with the
principles of prudence, discretensss of accourting periods
3nd going cengam.

The main accounting policies applied by the Company are
33 follows:

a)} Intangible assets

“Patants. licenses anc other rights” correspend primarily to
purchzsed software, Purchezsed seoftware is amartizes aver
periads ranging fram 12 ronths ta 3 years, depending on
the meterizlity of the amounts invalves.

"Cther intangible assets” consist of vehicle parking rights,
which are amortized over 40 vears.

h} Property and equipment

Cost

Property and equipment are siated at historica! cost or at
v2luztion, in the <ase of zssets held 2t the ume of the
1978/1872 legal ravaiuzlien,

Depreciation

Property end equipment are deareciatad by the straight-ine
methad over the fallowing estimated usaful lives:

- Buildings: 20 years

- Equipment: 10 years. except f2r computer sgquipment,
which is depreciaied over five years,

¢} Investments

Shares in subsidiaries and affiliates

Sharss in subsiciaries and zffifiates are stated at histerical
cost or 2t valuation, in the ¢ase of assets held at the ime
of the 1976/1973 legal revaluation.

Met bock values generally da not exceed the Company's
equity in the underlying ne? assats or revelued net assets of
the company or group toncerned.

Cther equity interests

Other equity interests correspond *6 shareholdings thzt the
Company intends 1¢ retain but which are not held for
purnezes relatad directly 1o the Comaany’s business.

Qther equity intzrests are valued by the method described
above.

d) Accounts receivable

Acenunts reczhvablz are stated at nominal value.

e) Paid-in capital in excess of par

This itern corresgends W prerniums on shares iisued far
czsh 2nd on conversion af honds, aftar deducting related
net costs. -

f) Untaxed reserves

Substzntizlly 3l amounts reportes under this caption cor-
respond 1o reinvestad capital gains set off against writz
downs of cacurities in application of the former Article 40
of the General Tax Code, which wera reclzssified undsr
"uptexed amortization” prier to the 1875/1972 legal
ravaluations.

g) Conversion of foreign currencies

Revenuas 2nd exgenses in foreign currendies zre corverted
2t the axchange rate ruling on the transacticn date or at
the hedging rate

Recaivablas and payables in foreign currencies are convert-
ed 3t the year-end erchange rate or at tre hadging rate.
Contracts for the fenward ourchase or sale ot foreign cur-
rencies thet are outstanding as the balznzz sheet dzte 2re
recorded in the balznca sheet.
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h) Deferrad charges i} Debt repayment premium
Tnese charges relate to issuance <ost of the 2002 subord- The cebt repayment premium for the 2003 suberdinated
inat2gd dabt as well as thase in relation to the halance of issue will b2 amortized nver 10 yaars.
¥

costs for the issue of 1236 amoertized over 10 years.

Fixed assets, depreciation and amortization

imtangible assets and propenty and eguipment representing ron-material emounts that are <lose to beirqg fully depreciates
or emartizerd 2re not included in the following ables

FIXED ASSETS Cost 3t Additions, sccrued Dizpasals, Cost at
Ianuary 1, 2003 Interest decraases in Dacember 31. 2003
for the yeor arerued intorest
Intzngible assets 9812 416 1.275,222 - 11,087,628
Praperty and equioment 2,293,337 322 2,672 2,224,000
12102112 1.226.204 2679 13.381.622
Investments
Sharas in subsidiaries and atfiliates 2.781,046,491 1,059.961,735 - 3,341 008,226
Loans ano edvences o subsidiaries
and affiliates 1,833,129,638 112,488,206 516.022 497 1.430,558,827
Dther egulty Interests 3,788,188 - - 3,788,153
Leans 215 - 915 -
Other investments G631 - - £21
2,517,965,273 1,173.420,541 516,050,412 5.275.255,102
Total 4,630.074,086 1,174,696,745 516,033,091 5,288,727,740

On Movember 3, 2003, Compaanie Générale des Etablissemants Michelin also proceeded <2 a capital increase operation,
conducted oy Campagnie Financigre Michelin in 2r 3mount of 3,859,437 reqistered shares and 321,666 hearer shares,
il fully paid up, through recewahls compensation in an smount of €1,054,222 477,

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION AtJanuary 1, Incroaznz Docresses At December 31,
2003 2003

inrtangile assets 9,793,255 1,276,506 - 11,074,802
Froceny and enuipmant 2,074.429 27,822 2,165 2,100,086
11,872,725 1.304,328 2,168 12,174,288

Dafarred charges 2,024,138 2413397 - 2.376,135
Dzbt zoum repayment prémium - 18,347 - 19,247
Total 13,906,863 1,665,672 2,185 15,570,270
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Allowances and provisions

HATURE OF PROVISIONS At Japuary 1, - Incraszes Dacraazes At December 31,
2003 2003
Untaxed resenes 61,587,67 - - 61,597,677
Provisions for contingencies and charges:
Frerastons for «nntirgencies - - - -
Frovisions for charges - - = -
Allowsances for impairment in value " 334,125,224 16,245,200 28,835,349 - 321,650,175
Tatal 385,736,901 16,346,300 28,835,349 383,247,852

Including movements <hargas/iredited

—Operating expense/insome - -
~IveRstmant 2nd other exgenseincome 16,246,300 28.674.307
- Man-relurring expensesincomz - -
- Revaluztion reserye - 160,342

(1} Movaments in eliowancss fer impairmant in value can be analyzed a5 Tallows;

- Allowvances:  PARDEVI Shares 16,348,300
- Oecregsas:  MIFELE shares 26,000,000
Other imarkenable securities 160342
Qwn shares 2,674 506

Items relating to several balance sheet items

BALANCE SHEET MEMS . Trapsactions involving Payahles
. ralated - other entltes In which or raceivablc:

companies the Company helds an reprazanted by

eguity intarozt trads nates

3horos in sLbsiciadies end affdiates fnet book vaize) 32,519.353.08¢ - -
Loans and asvandes 1o sunsidianies and offifiztes 1.430,552.987 - -
Oiher equity interasts - 3,782,193 -
Othar recevab o3 103,810,516 - -
her lang and short-term cebt 28,367,701 - -
Olher fiablhties 72,518,484 : - -

Shareholder funds

At Decemper 21, 2003, Compagnie Genérale des Etablissernents Michelin hald 155 322 shares of fts cwn capitzl, for 3
el cost of €4,831 thousand. Their market velue amounts 1o €3,632 theusand. For firancial year 2003, the number of
shares held by Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin was reducesd by 1,107 810
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Maturities of loans and receivables,
payables and long and short-terrm debt

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - Tart Dug within one year Due In mora than one yoar
Fixed assets

Loans and asvencas 2 subsidiaries and 2ffiliates  1,430,558,297 1,421 412,056 3,146,341
Loang - -

Other investments ’ 681 - 881
Currant assets

Mher reseivebles 121,927,951 158.371.8156 33.556.03%
Total 1,622,487,529 1,579,782,272 42,703,657

PAYABLES Total Due within Dug in one Due in more than
AND LONG AND SHORT-TERM DEBT one year - 1o flve years five yesrz
Convartiale bonds 8023 3,083 - -
Suberdicated laan 302,532,524 2,822,534 SON 000050
Cthar bonds 322,613,"€3 17,714,122 304,895,03412 -
Ban< borrowings - - - -
QCther Iong anad short-term dabt 22,267 701 28,387,701 - -
Bccrued taxes ang payrol ¢ists s 275644 5.279,644 - -
Due to sappliers of fixeo 285815 - - - -
Other | akil ties 74120312 74120812 ~ -
Total 932,921,942 128,023,308 304,898,024 500,000,0C0
L ]

(1) Fixed-rate 2003 ioan at 5.275% uptil 2013, and vzriablz rem from 2014 10 2033,

Subordinated loan

Campagniz Gépdrafe des Etablissements iMichelin (CGEM) iszired on December 3, 2003 5 deeply subordinated laan iesve repayable in
zosh (TXDR] n an amount of €300 mitlian with & 30-yedr term, CGEM will, 3t its sole discretion, dacide 1o make an earfy rapayment
in ¢cash at par wajue of ajl shares cutstanding from December 2, 2G13. and heraattar, quarterly 2pon &3z intarest payment 4ata until
Cerember2 2033, the leans' maturity ozte CGEM reserves tha dight 1G Carvy ~ut a1 aff timas an @arly repiyrnert of the notes, without
fitetion 25 10 price er numbers, ond sither through Suy-backs on the stack nmarkets or owver the counter, incuding thmugh epurchase
ar exchange tender offers. The nolas wil camy @ 5 375% apnual fixed interest for the period through Cecember 3, 2003, 1o
Dacamber 2. 2013 From then on, the rotes will baar intarast at 3 variable rate equas to Jemonth Euriber plus 2.95%. The TZDR provides
for 3 Ciffemes intersst payment aption orovided CGEIM sharmholders 3nd management make no dividend diswribution znd no dhwdend
Prep3YMENT Wt made ot the mansgers’ request. Eoth the princinal and nterest irom the notes form dasply subardinated, direcr ano
unconditional, cammitments, free of any CGEM pletige and ropk junior to ary squity imerest issued by or grented to CGEM,

{2) 386 €.7% hongs due Februay 19. 2006, at par.
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Accrued charges

ACCRUED CHARGES INCLUDED IN THE FOLLOWING BALANCE SHEET CAPTIONS

Subarainzted lazn ’ 2.532.534
Qther bands 17.704.205
Other long end shor-term debt 137.318
Azirued taxes and payroll costs 267234
Othar ftabilities 1.420,364
Total 22,071,857

)
Prepaid expenses and deferred income -

Prapaid expenses correspard exclusively o operating axpersas.
Prapaid expensas at December 31. 2003: €160.579

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation resenve at Qecamber 31, 2003 €531.302,012

32,091 relzted to .and,
521,270,521 relared to shares in subsidisries and affitiates

-

af which: < €
<

Reserves

Reserves 2t Oecember 31, 2003 hreak down as follows;

-Lagal reserve correspending in full ts lona-tarm rapital gains taved at the reduced rate 18,358,548
-3pecial long-tarm apaa| gains resere 1.081.419,039
- Cther resarvas 166,620 583

1,276,293,168

Commeon stock

. Number of zhares Par value

=1, Commen stack ot January §; 2003 141.792.730 ‘ €2
2. Commen stack issuzg during the year 1,594,29% €2
I Commaen stock canceled during the year S= -
4 Compian stock 3t Decemper 31, 2002 143 387 035 €2




Common stock issued during the year
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1594 255 common shares were issued during the yeer, breaking down 3s fallows: 1,404,300 shares issued in connection
with phase tlo. 2 of the Employee Shareholder Plan approved by the Annual Shareholders Meeting of May 18, 2001, and
199,995 shares issued in conrection with the l2st phass of the stock-for-stock public tender offer for Compagnie Financigra
Michelin bezrar shares launched by Compannie Générale des Etablissements Michelin on Qctober 17, 2002.

Status of shore subscription option plans:

Date Number of optiens Calt Price
aifncation cail axpiry allocatind called canzelied balanze in 2ures
May 2002 tMay 2096 May 2011 716,600 o} 1C.800 705,200 4400
fMay 2003 tay 2007 My 2012 243,000 Q 3.000 240,000 3225
Mow, 2003 New. 2C07 Mav, 2012 226200 0 o] 228,200 34.00

1,185,800 0 13,800 1,172,000

Operating revenue

evenue Tor the year, corsisting entirely of royalties, totaled
€249,657,871, This amount breaks down as follows;

France 51 3453907

Quuide France 282,311,384

£349,657,871

Income tax

Compagnie Genérale: des Etablissements Michelin makes
up, together wilh its seven Franch subsidiaries airectly er
indirectly owned at ne less than 35%, a tax aniity of which
1715 the l2ad company. .

The tax consolidation agreement provides that all seven.
zonsolidated subsidiaries continue t Eear their own tax
burden regarsless of such consclidation, e resulting
2lance being recognized by the lead company.

Tax due by the seven sutsidiary comeanies rzgardless of
consolidation would amaunt 1o €3,130,912,

Income 131 for 2003 amounzed ‘0 €4.304,116.

Market risks

a) Interest rata risk
The Company does not have any interest-rate instrumerts.

b) Currency risk

At December 21, 2003, the Company nad recaivables with
2 retbook value of €55 million correspording to rovaities
bifled to subsidizries. These receivables, which are derom-
irated in the Group's rmain wading currancies, have haen
converted inta eurps at the year-end exchange rate or at
the hedging rate.

<) Equity risk

Tha Company holds:

- Shares in subsidiznies and affiiates and other equity
interests, which are valued taking into account their fair
value 18 the Cornpany snd their probable reajjzable value,

- Markstable securities carried in tne balance sheet, whaose
nst bonk value - €5 milhon — represents a market vajue
of €6 millien.

Management compensation

The Company s administered by Managing Partners
("Gérants™y who are also General Partners {"Associés
commandités”) of the Company. As such, they are entitled
12 3 sh2re of the income distributed emaong all the General
Parrers in zccordance with the provisions of the
Zampany's bylaws, The Manzging Fariners do not raceive
2ny compansation or other benefits,




Average number of employees

Employaes on the
Company's payrall

Employees
spconded

15 the Company

Mznagemant 10 -

Supsrasorytechmeal salf - -

Administratice employess 25 -

Service employees - 1
26

Post-retirement benefit
obligations ‘

The Compzny is liatle for the ayment of long-service awards
1o employees on retitement, in accordance with the @rms
of the applicable <ollective bargaining agreement.
The discountad prasent value af the related ooligation at
Deramber 31 2003, was around €0.2 million. No provision

has been racorded far this amount.

SEC File #82-3354

Unrecognized deferred tax
assets and liabilities

Page 11 of 47

COMIREIE GTREEAIF DTE FTAT RN

TS BT

Dascription of temperary differancas

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

Unrecognized doferred tax assets

"ORGANIC™ 122 pramsion 587

Svergragn ax Insees
Ordinary tax insses
Lang-term capital losses taxed at reducer rate

Unracognized deferred tax assets

Reduced tax rats {19%) 1711.643
2% surtdx 3,348
2.3% surtax 3,634
Total 118,576

Investment portfolio at becember 31, 2003

Number of shares Realizable walue
Shares in subsidia ries and affiliates and cther equity interests
with a realizable value in excess of £152,449:
Zompagnie Financidre tichelin 17,003,616 sharas 2,723,230 855,90
ianufecliare Frandaise des Pneumatiques Michelin ' 3,198,583 sheras 613,834.4712.35
Parizipation et Dévelaprement Industrials - Parievi 1,183,392 thares 122,021 265
3nciEtg de Technoiegie Michalin 100,300 shares 15.244.901.72
Spika 200,200 shares 25.314.722.7¢
Siparax Crossanee 121,987 shares 1,908 293,66
Siparex Asscciés 115,152 shares 1.542.311.87
Societa fFinanclire ¢inpovation du Sud-Est " Sudinnova” 1,788 thares 335,3¢2.72
Zociatd J'Exparztion Michelin 20,000 shares 3.011 872,14
Other shares in subsidiaries and aftiliates (total) 0.46
Marketable securities:
O shares 155,292 sharss 4,830,740

" 5anz0

Other marketable secunties

L ]
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List of subsidiaries and affiliates |
. - - - . . . . B Lot " - v DAY [ e

Subsidiaries and affiliates Comman Retalned Percent Book valuc of thares
stock™) earningsi? interest
Cost et

A - Detailed information about subsldiaries and affiliates
(carrying value in excess of 1% of the Company’s common stock): -

1 - Subsidiaries {over 50%-owmed)

sactste J’Exportation Michelin

Fiara deos Carmes-Céchaur, .

23000 Clarmont-Ferrznad (France) * €G.000 2,291,202 100 4,182,057 2.011.572
815105 e.10s

fanicipation et Céveloppement
industeiels - Pardeyi
72 rue Breschet,
3000 Clermert-Farrand {france) 13,000,000 56,566,851 99.99 153,728,034 128,021,285
euros euros )

Zomnzanie Financieee Michaiin
Route Loviz-Braje 10 2t 12,

1763 Crangas-Pacint (Swizerand) 1,273.108,100 4,107.823,142 98.£6  1,733,230335  2,733.230,8%5
swiss franes saiss frangs

Socié1e de Technalogie Nilchetin

23 rue Eresthet,

83020 Clerment-ferrand (France) 18,200,200 219,459 100 06 15,244 302 15,244,202
eUfOS e1s7as

Spika

23, rue Braschet,

63000 Clerment-fFerrand (France) 3,900,060 39.231,425 102.00 25214720 28.814.728
eures ouros

2 - Aftiliates (10% to 5Q%-owned)

rAanufacturs Francaise

c3s Preumatiquas Michelin

Place des Carmes-Céshauy, -

63000 Clerragnt-Ferrand (Frarce) 304,000.000 487 063,553 359.59 902,524,145 612,234 412
euros euras

B - Aggregate information about other subsidiaries and affiliates

1 - Subsidiories not listed under A:

~French ompanes = =

—-Foremsn compzniac 21,833 -

2 - Affilistes not listed under A:

-Frznzh camnanias 432 -

= Foreign Campan:es 91.228 -

e S

1) inlocal curensy.
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Qutstanding Guarantees Last Last Dividends recaiven
loans given by the published published by the Company

3nd aduances Campany nat sales netincomelioss during the year
- - 3.460,296 ? t25.004 400,000

- - - L 21,037,290 -
500,594,223 - - 4 223,710,503 33,218,310
- - 170,768,492 |4 2,458 362 5.000.000

36 576,663 - - L 3547773 -
$87.505.642 - 4,120.204.612 4 17,286,242 -
- - 32,622




Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

{before appropriation of net income, Company only)
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2002 2003
Net income for the year (in thouzands of suras and curos per share)
Net income :
Totalnet incoms 232,287 178,238
Earnings per sharz 2.24 134
Recommended dividend )
Total 131.857 122,248
Par share 0.533 ooz
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (in thouzands of eurcs)
Ly 1 —=Sharahclders' equity 2t December 21, 2002 4,177,758
2-2002 divicans 166,587

3 -3karsholders’ equity at Jaruary 1. 20032
g) Canital contributions credited 1o cpening shareholders' eauiny
1-Zhanga in common stock
2~Chanqga wn other (ams
2} Sharsholeers’ eouity 3t lanuary V. 2003, induding capital coruiputors (A3 + b)
D) Pthovements for the vear
I =ingrease «n camrnon stock
A-'ngresse in paid-n capital in excess of par
2- nerease in revajuatian rasenve
4=Chinge in other resermies
S-Change in untaxed reserves
& ~lncreass in rAlaines e3amings
7~ Met incame for the year ended Cacember 21. 2002
B} Shareholders’ eguity at Secambe- 31, 23062 befora dividands {C + D)

4,071,182

F} Change in chareholders’ equity (E- Q) 215613 .
G} Ofwrlch tharges rue to structural changss -
H) Change in tharchelders’ equity excluding effact of structural changes (F - G) 215,613
Motes - .
mmums tansterred to the revaluation ressore quring the year RIS
D& Cividends en own snares dediteg » retained earnings 175 .

Appropriation of 2003 net income

Amounts to be appropriated
Retained earnings brought forward fram prior year

52,842.216.03

Nt lncome

73237 81524

Recommended approprations
Leca teserve 312.859.92

Spedizl long-tarm zzpilal 533 r2sape

Cradend 123.343.933.25

Statwtory share of incoma attributed @ the General Fartna+s

in azcordanzé st the Bylaws 3232.621.33

Tax or dsuibuted 2armngs 38.313,241.00

thar razeryes -

Retalned earnings 53.310876.35 :

Totz! 231,081.521.43 231,081.531.43



Five-year financial summary

1998

2000

[t AR

2001
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2002 2003

1~ Capital at year-end
a} Common 51k
bl Humber of cammon
sharas cutstanding
<y Humber af noa-vsting
preterree shares cutstanding -
dyiazimurr numbaer of shares
13 be createc -

263,431,748

134,715,873

262.431.746

134,715,873

283,585,460 256.774:050 -

141732730 | 143327028

It - Results of operations

2 et raveruzs
b Incene balorn ax,

335,582,360.72

w

54,240.512.38

364,877.827.54 | 349:557.871.00

30¢,260,486.48 | 171,273.396.33 SN

Aepreciation, 2mortization 252,473,518.83  257,745,786.22 457.409.251.36
5 Ineorme Ui 32037383 53 25.366 215,41 41343500 13,188.696.00 4,304,11€.00
dj Employee profit-sha‘ing - - ~ - . -
& Net incoms 242,393,260.07  263,520,232.6)  452,371,105.2y  332,337,387.56 | 173,237.815.34
lit—Per share data
2} farrings per share before tex,

aer depreciation,

IMIAZUAN 2N Drovision expense 3 A4 1.72 329 297 1.17
by Barmnas per share 184 1.36 3.38 232 124
Q! Dwvidend per share

~Series A& rapity thares -~ - - - -

~Series A beraficial-cwnership

shasras ane Serizs B shares - - - -1 - -

-Cemmaen shaies 0.7 0.80 0385 Q.53 s 092"
IV ~-Employee data
ay Average numuar of emplovees 32 33 z3 34 . 38
b Tatal payroll 1 136,874 33 114703319 1,110.087,78 1.403.510.18 224689786
=) Total beneiits 444 051 91 153.321.75 435.755.89 452,222.27 432,350.03

T




Consolidated Balance Sheet

at December 31, 2003
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Assets in thousands of eures
2003 2002
Issued, uncalled capital - -
Fixed assets
Goodwill 303,595 307,360
Intangible assets 163,184 135,395
Property, plant and equipment 5,663,431 5,772,157
Investments 412,348 456,907
Investments at equity 58,805 58,340
6,601,423 6,730,159
Current assets
Inventories 2,769,136 2,860,284
Trade receivables 2,984,501 3,145,496
Other receivables, prepaid expenses and accrued income - 2,038,187 2,366,111
Cash equivalents 539,488 418,563
Cash 1,234,768 790,505
9,565,480 9,580,959
Total assets 16,166,903 16,311,118
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Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . oo oo

2003 2002
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock {7/ 286,774 283,585
Paid-in capital in excess of par (%) 1,839,640 1,806,789
Retained earnings @ 2,200,946 2,238,462
4,327,360 4,328,336
Minority interests 81,703 173,431
Stockholders’ equity including minority interests 4,409,063 4,502,267
Provisions for contingencies and charges . 3,006,360 3,443,844
Liabilities
.. Subordinateddebt IR | 500,000 -
Long and short-term debt 4,713,518 5,026,998
Trade payables 1,552,745 1,424,855
Other payables, deferred income and accrued expenses 1,985,217 1,913,154
8,751,480 8,365,007
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 16,166,903 16,311,118

- - |
(1) Parent company ) )
(2} Including net income for the year 317,532 580,803
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Consolidated Statement of Income

for the year ended December 31, 2003

In thousands of euros

2003 2002
Operating revenue
" Net sales 15,369,820 15,645,074

Reversals of allowances 28,208 10,982
Other operating revenues 576,621 455,099

15,974,649 16,111,155
Operating expenses
Purchases used in production 5,372,669 5,290,864
Payroll costs 4,996,925 5,152,143
Other operating expenses 3,360,310 3,255,493
Taxes other than on income 244,355 . 231,713
Depreciation and amortization 818,526 891,383
Charges to allowances and provisions 38,792 64,360

(14,831,577) (14,885,956)
Operating income 1,143,072 1,225,199
Net interest expense (224,887) (260.257)
Operating income from ordinary activities 918,185 964,942
Net non-recurring income and expense 18,679 75,209
Income taxes (261,435) (382,455)
Net income of fully-consolidated companies - 675,429 657,696
Income (losses) from companies accounted for by the equity method {8,750) (11,570}
Amortization of goodwill (337,817} (31,641}
Net income before minority interests 328,862 614,485
Net income 317,532 580,803
Minority interests 11,330 33,682
Basic earnings per share {in euros) 2.23 428
Diluted earnings per share (in euros) 2.23 4.28
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

In thousands of euros

e

2003 2002

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income before minority interests 328,862 614,485
Adjustments to reconcile net income before minority interests to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,162,520 843,113

Allowances, provisions and deferred taxes (87,145) (256,956)
Net gains on disposals of assets 8,371 (69,130)
Other (5,240) {6,109)
Cash flow 1,407,368 1,225,403
Change in inventories (43,059) 142,632

Change in receivables 14,081 (39,302)
Change in payables 44,420 65,295
Other changes in working capital 119,342 140,346
Net change in working capital 134,784 308,971

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,542,152 1,534,374

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,117,798) (966,959)
Additions to investments (305,199) (219,697)
Total (1,422,997) (1,186,656)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 100,586 157,470
Proceeds from disposals of investments 76,333 158,005
Total 176,919 315,475
Net investment for the period (1,246,078} (871,181)
lm;;act of c‘hﬂanges> in Gropr structure o 14,884 140
Net change in working capital (11,469) (26,140)
Net cash (used) by investing activities (1,242,663) (897,181)

Cash flows from financing activities

Employee stock ownership plan . 20,739 27,389
Expenses related to the stock-for-stock offer (645) (1,494)
Dividends paid to parent company shareholders (130,692) (113,435)
Other dividends paid (49,669) {54,216)
Total (160,267) (141,756)
Change in long and short-term debt 513,936 (201,533)
Net change in working capital (46,811) (5,845)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 306,858 {349,1349)
Effect of exchange rate ¢changes on cash and cash equivalents (41,759) (18,005)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 564,588 270,054
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,209,068 939,014
Cash and cash equivalents at the period-end : 1,773,656 1,209,068
Including - Cash 1,234,168 790,505
- Cash equivalents - 539,488 418,563
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

at December 31, 2003

Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with French generally accepted
accounting principles, including standard CRC 99-02
published by Comité de la Réglementation Comptable
dealing with consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

» Manufacturing, sales and finance companies, special pur-
pose entities and other entities that are 100% controlled
by Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin
under paragraph 1002 of CRC 99-02 mentioned above,
are fully consclidated.

* Companies over which Compagnie Générale des
Etablissements Michelin exercises considerable influence
are consolidated by the equity method.

e Pyrsuant to Article L.233-19 of the French Cede de
Commerce, certain companies are not consolidated,
either because they are nct material in relation to the
Group as a whole or because of substantial and lasting
restrictions on fund transfers to other Group companies.

Accounting policies

1. All consalidated companies have a December 31 year-end.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared from the

Summary of significant
accounting policies

The financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2003 have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and with due regard to the
principles of prudence, separation of accounting years and
continuity of trading.

The main accounting policies applied are as foliows:

a) Goodwill

" Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of
shares in consclidated companies and the Group's equity

financial statements of the individual Group companies sub-
mitted for approval at their respective Annual Shareholders’
Meetings, as adjusted to comply with Group accounting
policies and presentation rules.

2. Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries outside the
euro zone are translated into euros as follows:

* Balance sheet items are translated at year-end exchange
rates.

s Income statement items are translated at the average rate
for the year.

The financial statements of subsidiaries operating in
countries with hyperinflationary economies are:

» Either translated into the relevant functional currency for
their economic environment.

¢ Or translated at the year-end rate, after revaluation of
non-monetary assets and liabilities based on published
local indices. :

Differences arising from the translation of opening balance
sheet items and year-end rate net income are recorded in
stockholders’ equity under “Retained earnings”, with
minority interests shown separately.

in the underlying net assets after fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets and liabilities.

The goodwill amortization period is determined according
to constant Group findings:

» Goodwill arising on acguisition of manufacturing compa-
nies is amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

* Goodwill arising on acquisition of non-manufacturing
companies is amortized in full in the year of acquisition.

Amortization may be accelerated foliowing a yearly review

of industrial company goodwill inventory value.
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Negative goodwill is written back to the income statement
to reflect changes in the risk associated with the acquired
companies.

) Ihténgible assets

Intangible assets consist mainly of purchased or internally-
developed software, amortized over three years, and a
number of purchased googdwill, amortized in full in the
year of acquisition. No research and development costs are
recognized under this heading.

c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at purchase or
production cost.

Effective January 1, 1999, assets acquired under finance
leases are recorded under assets and an obligation in the
same amount is recorded under liabilities.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
average useful life of the assets. The main useful lives
applied are as follows:

* Buildings 25 years
» Plant and equipment 12 years
-e Other 2 10 12 years

If the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
exceeds their net realizable value, an impairment charge is
recorded.

d) Investments

Investments in non-consolidated companies are stated at
acquisition cost. Market value corresponds to the stock
market price in the case of quoted investments and the
Group’s equity in the underlying net assets in all other
cases. An impairment charge is recorded when market
value is less than the net book value.

‘Other investments are also stated at cost and an impair-

ment charge is recorded where necessary.

e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at purchase or production cost,
determined by the weighted average cost method.

Where necessary, finished product inventories are written
down to net realizable value and corresponding deprecia-
tion provisions made.

f) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at nominal value, inciuding
receivables sold to special purpose entities in connection
with securitizations. Allowances for doubtful accounts are
determined on a case by case basis or according to the age
of the receivables.

The methods used to convert foreign cutrency receivables
into euros are described in note k.

g) Other receivableé, prepaid expenses
and accrued income

Prepaid expenses and accrued income include:

* Post-retirement commitments: the excess of the fair value
of plan assets, adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses and past service costs, over the present value
of defined benefit obligations.

» Deferred taxes: deferred tax assets arising from deductible
time differences and tax loss carry-forwards, determined
separately for each individual company.

The accounting treatment of post-retirement commitments
and deferred taxes is described in notes | and m respect-
ively.

h) Provisions for contingencies and charges

A provision is booked when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, where
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation
can be reliably estimated.

The main provisions cover:

¢ Post-retirement and other employee benefit commit-
ments: the excess of the present value of defined benefit
obligations over the fair value of the plan assets, adjusted




for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and prior serv-
ice costs,

» Deferred taxes: deferred taxes arising from taxable time
differences, determined separately for each individual
company.

» Reorganization: estimated amounts corresponding 1o
measures adopted by the Group and announced before
the year-end.

The accounting treatment of post-retirement commitments
and deferred taxes is described in notes | and m respect-
ively.

Provisions for contingencies and charges recorded in the
accounts of individual Group companies for the sole pur-
pose of complying with local tax laws are reclassified under
stockholders' equity, net of deferred taxes.

i} Financial instruments
Currency risks

Group policy consists of hedging exposures to currency risks
using various market instruments, including forward
contracts and options.

Foreign currency receivables and payables of the same type
and with similar maturity are netted off and only the net
exposure is hedged. Hedging contracts are recognized in
the balance sheet at the date of inception.

Profits and losses resulting from currency translations
recarded at closing exchange rates are booked in the state-
ment of income.

Premiums.and discounts are recognized under assets for the
term of the contracts, except for forward transactions,
which are deferred until recognition of such transactions.
Premiums paid on options contracts are immediately
written in the consolidated statement of income.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management polides are coordinated and
monitored at Group level with a view to protecting future
cash flows and reducing interest-rate volatility.

Short term positions are managed at the level of the indi-
vidual countries,
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The Group uses several instruments available on the market,
and in particular interest rate swap or forward interest rate
contracts.

Firm contracts are recorded in the balance sheet upon incep-
tion. They are not revalued at market value.

Premiums paid on options contracts are immediately written
in the consolidated statement of income.

j) Investment grants

investment grants are recorded in liabilities under "Other
payables, deferred income and accrued expenses” and are
written back to the income statement over periods not
exceeding the depreciation pericd of the assets financed by
the grants.

k) Foreign currency receivables and payables

Foreign currency receivables and payables are converted
into euros at the exchange rate ruling on the transaction
date. Their value is adjusted at year-end based on the then
ruling exchange rate and the resulting exchange difference
is recorded in the income statement.

1) Post-retirement and other employee
benefit obligations

A summary of related significant accounting policies is pro-
vided in note 13.
m) Income taxes

The income tax charge includes both current and deferred
taxes. Deferred taxes are calculated by the liability method,
on a company-by-company basis, on:

» Temporary differences between the book value of assets
and liabilities and their tax basis.

+ Tax loss carry-forwards, to the extent that their future uti-
lization is considered probable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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n) Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed in the year in
which they are incurred.

o) Net non-recurring income and expenses

Non-recurring items correspond to income and expenses
net arising in connection with the Group's ordinary activi-
ties, including reorganization costs and gains and losses on
disposals of fixed assets.

p) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net
income Group share by the weighted average number of

q) List of consolidated companies

shares outstanding during the year, including Compagnie
Générale des Etablissements Michelin shares carried on the
assets side of the balance sheet under “Short-term invest-
ments”, less any shares canceled during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting net
income and the weighted average number of shares for the
effects of dilutive potential shares. Where the proceeds from
exercise. of dilutive potential shares are received when the
related rights are exercised, the proceeds are assumed to be
used to purchase shares at the average market price for the
period, in accordance with the treasury stock method.

Registered office Country % stake
1. Parent company
* Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin Clermont-Ferrand France
2. Fully-consolidated companies
Manufacturing companies
» Manufacture Frangaise des

Pneumatiques Michelin Clermont-Ferrand France 99.99
¢ Michelin Roues France La Chapelle Saint Luc France 99.99
* Pneu Laurent Avallon France 99.99
* Pneumatiques Kléber Toul France 99.99
* Simorep et Cie - Société du

Caoutchouc Synthétique Michelin Bassens France 99.99
» Société de Développement Mécanique Wattignies France 99.99
¢S.0.D.G. Clermont-Ferrand France 99.99
* Michelin Algérie SPA Algiers Algeria 70.00
* Michelin Kronprinz Werke GmbH Solingen Germany 100.00
» Michelin Reifenwerke KGaA Karlsruhe Germany 100.00
 Sociedade Michelin de ParticipacGes,

Industria e Comércio Lida. Rio de Janeire Brazil 100.00
* Michelin North America (Canada) Inc. Laval Canada 100.00
» Michelin Shenyang Tire Co., Ltd. Liaoning Province China 100.00
¢ Shanghai Michelin Warrior Tire Co., Ltd. Shanghai China 70.00
» industria Colombiana de Lantas S A Cali Colombia 99.91
* Michelin Espana Portugal, S.A. Tres Cantos Spain 99.65
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Registered office Country % stake
» American Synthetic Rubber Company, LLC Wilmington United States 100.00
» Michelin Aircraft Tire Corporation Wilmington United States 100.00
* Michelin North America, Inc. New York United States 100.00
« Michelin Hungaria Tyre Manufacture Ltd. Nyfregyhaza Hungary 100.00
e Sccieta per Azioni Michelin Italiana Turin taly 100.00
e Nihon Michelin Tire Co., Ltd. Tokyo Japan 100.00
¢ Industrias Michelin, S.A. de C.V. Mexico City Mexico 100.00
* Michelin (Nigeria) Limited " Nigeria Nigeria 80.00
* Stomil-Olsztyn S.A. Olsztyn - Potand 99.50
¢ Michelin Romania Retreading S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100.00
e Silvania S.A. Zalau Romania 99.49
* Victoria S.A. Floresti Romania 95.55
« Michelin Tyre Public Limited Company England and Wales United Kingdom 100.00
¢ LLC “Michelin Russian Tyre

Manufacturing Company” Davydovo vilage Russia 100.00%@
¢ Treadmaster Taiwan Ltd. Mia-Li County Taiwan 100.00
* Michelin Siam Co., Ltd. Chonburi Thailand 60.00
* Siam Stee} Cord Co., Ltd. Rayong Thailand 60.00
« Siam Tyre industry Co., Lid. Saraburi Thailand 60.00
e Siam Tyre Phra Pradaeng Co., Ltd. Samutprakarn Thailand 60.00
» Thai Recamic Co., Ltd. Bangkok Thailand 60.00
*» Thai Tyre Mould Co., Ltd. Chonburi Thailand 60.00

Distribution companies
¢ Euromaster France Grenoble France 86.65
¢ Michelin Aircraft Tyre Clermont-Ferrand France 99.99
¢ Recamic Services Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
» Société d'Exportation Michelin Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
* Transityre France Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
* Michelin Tyre Company

South Africa (Proprietary) Limited Johannesburg South Africa 100.00
* Laurent Reifen-Vertriebs-GmbH Homburg Germany 99.99
«Viborg Gruppen GmbH Kaiserslautern Germany 99.96
* Michelin Argentina Sociedad Andnima, ‘

Industrial, Comercial y Financiera Buenos Aires Argentina 100.00
* Michelin Reifenverkaufsgesellschaft m.b.H. Vienna Austria 99.99
® Michelin Australia Pty Ltd Melbourne Australia © 100.00
« Michelin Belux S.A. Zellik Belgium 100.00
* Michelin Espirito Santo —Comércio,

Importagdes e Exportagdes Lida. Espirito Santo Brazil 100.00
* Société Moderne du Pneumatique Camerounais © Douala Cameroon 100.00
» Michelin Retread Technclogies (Canada) Inc. New Glasgow Canada 100.00
* Michelin Chile Ltda. Santiago Chile 100.00
» Michelin (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. Shanghai China 100.00
» Michelin Korea Co., Ltd. Seoul South Korea 100.00
* Société Moderne du Pneumatique Ivoirien Abidjan Ivory Coast 99.90
» Michelin Gummi Compagni A/S Brendby Denmark 100.00

(a) The stake held by European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) in LLC “Michelin Russian Tyre Manufacturing Company”
(48.83%) and Michelin Romania S.A. (14.76%) has been exceptionally treated as a funding source.
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Registered office Country % stake
s Scanrub Holding A/S Viborg Denmark 99.90
s Prollantas S.A. Quito Ecuador 100.00
¢ Michelin Rehvide AS Tallinn Estonia 100.00
» Michelin Retread Technologies, Inc. Wilmington United States 100.00
» Tire Centers, LLC Wilmingten United States 100.00
» Oy Suomen Michelin Ab Espoo Finland 100.00
o-Elastika- Michelin A.E. . Halandri Greece 100.00
- & Michelin-Asia (Hong-Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00.
» Michelin Central Europe Commercial
Company Limited by Shares Budapest Hungary 99.98
 Taurus Carbonpack Commercial and Supplying Ltd. Tuzser Hungary 100.00
* Michelin India Private Limited New Deihi India 100.00
* Michelin Riepas SIA Riga Latvia 100.00
* UAB Michelin Padangos Vilnius Lithuania 100.00
* Michelin Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Malaysia 100.00
* Société Moderne du Pneumatique Malien Bamako Mali 100.00
» Michelin Tyre Services Company Ltd. Nigeria Nigeria 60.28
« Norsk Michelin Gummi AS Larenskog Norway 100.00
* M. Michelin & Company Limited New Zealand New Zealand 100.00
* Eurodrive Services and Distribution N.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 99.90
¢ Michelin Nederland N.V. Drunen Netherlands 100.00
¢ Transityre B.V. Breda Netherlands 100.00
* Michelin del Peru S.A. Lima Peru 100.00
* Michelin Poiska Sp. z c.0. Warsaw Poland 100.00
» Michelin-Companhia Luso-Pneu, timitada Loures Portugal 100.00
* Michelin Ceska republika s.r.o. Prague Czech Republic 100.00
e Michelin Romania S.A. Bucharest Romania 100.00%
*» Associated Tyre Specialists Limited England and Wales United Kingdom 99.90
» Michelin Lifestyle Limited England and Wales United Kingdom 100.00
* Michelin Tyres Russian General Agency ZAO Moscow Russia 100.00
« Société Commerdale Michelin Sénégal (SCMS) Dakar Senegal 100.00
e Michelin Asia (Singapore) Co. Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapaore 100.00
* Michelin Slovensko, s.r.o. Bratislava Slovak Republic 100.00
* Michelin Slovenija, pnevmatike, d.o.c. Ljubljana Slovenia 100.00
» Michelin Nordic AB Stockholm Sweden 100.00
* Société Anonyme des Pneumatiques Michelin Givisiez Switzerland 100.00
» Michelin Chun Shin Ltd. Taipei Taiwan 97.97
» Michelin Aircraft Tire Asia Limited Bangkok Thailand 100.00
--» Michelin Siam Marketing & Sales Co:, Ltd. Bangkok Thailand 60.00
* Michelin Lastikleri Ticaret A.S. Istanbul Turkey 100.00
« Michelin Venezuela, S.A. Valencia Venezuela 100.00
» Miscellaneous distribution companies in Europe and other regions.
Finance companies and other
* MCSyncro France Onnaing France 50.00
* Michelin Développement Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
* Michelin Middle East Clermont-Ferrand France 70.00

(a) The stake held by European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) in LLC “Michelin Russian Tyre Manufacturing Company”
(48.83%) and Michelin Romania S.A. (14.76%) has been exceptionally treated as a funding source.
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Registered office Country . % stake

* Participation et Développement industriels - PARDEVI Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
* Société Civile Immobiliere Michelin Clermont-Ferrand “France 99.99
¢ Société Civile Immobiliére Michelin Breteuil Paris France 99.99
*» Société de Collecte et de Valorisation

de Pneumatiques Usagés — C.V.P.U. Clermont-Ferrand France 99.99
» Société de Montage de Pneumatiques Guichen France 99.99
* Société de Technologie Michelin Clermont-Ferrand France 100.00
 Société des Procédés Industriels Modernes Clermont-Ferrand France 99.99
* Spika Clerment-Ferrand France 100.00
« ViaMichelin Beulogne-Billancourt France 100.00
* MC Syncro Supply GmbH : Hannover Germany 50.00
¢ Radsystem GmbH Zwickau Germany 50.00
* ViaMichelin Deutschiand GmbH Griesheim Germany 100.00
* Euro-Fitting Management N.V. Desteldonk Belgium 49.95
» MCSyncro N.V. Gent Beigium 49.95
» Publicité Internationale Intermedia S.A. Brussels Belgium 50.03
 Société pour le Traitement

de I'Information TRINFOVER Zellik Belgium 100.00
* Michelin Investment Holding Company Limited Bermuda Bermuda 100.00
 Plantagtes E. Michelin Ltda. Rio de Janeiro Brazil 100.00
¢ Plantag@es Michelin da Bahia Ltda. Rio de Janeiro Brazil 100.00
« Michelin Canada, Inc. Halifax Canada 100.00
» Michelin (China) Investment Co., Ltd. Shanghai China 100.00
* Michelin Tire Research and Development

Center (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Shanghai China 100.00
s Albar Recuperaciones y Recidlajes, S.L. Tres Cantos Spain 99.65
» Ensamblaje y Logistica de Conjuntos, S.A. Figueruelas Spain 50.00
* MCSyncro Vigo, S.A. Vigo Spain 50.00
¢ ViaMichelin Espana, S.L. Tres Cantos Spain 100.00
* AmFIT, LLC Wilmington United States 100.00
* CR Funding Corporation Wilmington United States 100.00
* Michelin Americas Research

& Development Corporation Wilmington United States 100.00
* Michelin Corporation New York United States 100.00
* Michelin Asia-Pacific Export (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00
* Michelin Asia-Pacific Import (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00
* Michelin’Asia-Pacific Import-Export (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100.00
s Mireis Limited Dublin Ireland 100.00
* Miripro Insurance Company Limited Dublin Ireland 100.00
¢ Oboken Limited Dublin Ireland 100.00
» Tayar Receivables Company Dublin Ireland 0.13
* SMP Melifi S.r.l. Melite di Napoli italy 50.00
* ViaMichelin Italia S.r.l. Milan taly 100.00
» Michelin Research Asia Co., Ltd. Tokyo Japan 100.00
* Michelin Luxembourg SCS Luxembourg Luxembourg 100.00
« Michelin Mexico Holding, S.A. de C.V. Mexico City Mexico 100.00

¢ Araromi Rubber Estates Limited Nigeria Nigeria 56.39
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Registered office Country % stake
* Michelin Development Company Limited Nigeria Nigeria 100.00
¢ Osse River Rubber Estates Limited Nigeria Nigeria 69.80
¢ Utagba Uno Rubber Estates Limited Nigeria Nigeria 69.80
* Waterside Rubber Estates timited Nigeria Nigeria 80.00
e Fitlog B.V. ‘s-Hertcgenbosch Netherlands 100.00
* MC Projects B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 50.00
* Michelin Finance (Pays-Bas) B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100.00
» Michelin Holding (Pays-Bas) B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100.00
* Michelin Purchasing B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100.00
* Michelin Europe (EEIG) England and Wales United Kingdom 99,94
. Michelin Services Ltd England and Wales United Kingdom 100.00
* ViaMichelin UK Limited England and Wales United Kingdom 100.00
» Michelin Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 100.00
* Société des Matieres Premiéres Tropicales Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore 100.00
 MCSyncro Bratislava, s.r.o. Bratislava Slovak Republic 50.00
* Hjulsysterm MCP AB Kungalv Sweden 50.00
* Compagnie Financiére Michelin Granges-Paccot Switzerland 100.00
* Presta-Service Michelin S.A. Granges-Paccot Switzerland 100.00
* Michelin Participations S.A. Granges-Paccot Switzeriand 99.91
¢ Michelin Recherche et Technique S.A. Granges-Paccot Switzerland 100.00
¢ Sesapro S.A. Granges-Paccot Switzerland 100.60
* M.S. Enterprises Holding Co., Ltd. Bangkok Thailand 50.50
* Michelin Research Asia (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Bangkok Thailand 100.00
* Michelin Siam Group Co., Ltd. Bangkok Thailand 60.00
. Companies accounted for by the equity method
* ALIAPUR Lyen France 28.57
= Innovations in Safety Systems Drancy France 50.00
* RubberNetwork.com, LLC Wilmington United States 27.75
* Michelin Tire Chiba HBKK Chiba Japan 37.50
» Michelin Tire Fukushima HBKK Fukushima Japan 38.17
¢ Michelin Tire Shizuoka HBKK Shizuoka Japan 35.00
* Michelin Tire Yamanashi HBKK Yamanashi Japan 35.00
«TIGAR MH, d.o.0., Pirot Pirot Serbia-
Montenegro 25.00
» Global Run-Flat Systems Research,

Development and Technology B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 50.00
* Woco Michelin AVS B.V. Amsterdam Netherfands 49.00
» Sapphire Energy Recovery Limited England and Wales United Kingdom 25.00
® Tekersan Jant Sanayi A.S. Istanbul Turkey 20.10

4. Non-consolidated companies

¢ Pursuant to Article 1.223-19 of the French Code de Commerce various companies that are not material in relation to the
Group as a whole have not been consolidated under governing consolidated financial statements.

The above list of the main consolidated companies and companies accounted for by the equify method complies with the
requirements of Article 248-12 of decree No. 67-236 of March 23, 1967, concerning the consolidated financial statements
of trading companies.
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Acquisitions and partnership agreements entered into in 2003

1.Viborg

On March 31, 2003, after approval of the European
Competition Authorities dated March 7, 2003, Michelin
group acquired Viborg group.
The latter Group was essentially focused on tire distribution
through a network of 465 sales points, mainly in Germany
and Denmark.
Since acquisition, the companies purchased recorded
turnover of €386.2 million and an operating loss of
€14.7 million.
In line with Group announcements upon publication of
earnings on June 30, 2003, goodwill in an amount of
€306.5 million is fully amortized in 2003, according to con-
stant policy developed by the Group in connection with
acquisition of non manufacturing businesses.
Thorough due diligence undertaken by Michelin group
since April 1, 2003, aimed, in particular, at determining,
pursuant to the relevant agreements:
¢ Sums to be paid by seller under the net asset guarantee.
¢ The amount of receivables held by seller on Viborg
companies and transferred by the latter to Michelin group
to refund moneys granted by Michelin group to seller.
Owing to failure to reach an agreement on the findings of
said due diligence, Michelin group filed arbitration pro-
ceedings against seller on December 4, 2003.

Under its arbitration claim, Michelin group:

* Rejected the net asset worth claimed by seller, and there-
fore rejected the €37 million balance payment request-
ed by seller as balance due under the acquisition on
grounds of compensation with sums due by seller under
the asset net guarantee, and Michelin further claimed
compensation payments in respect of damages.

= Sued for reimbursement in an amount of €87.7 million
corresponding to the difference between funds lent by
Michelin group to seller and trade receivables held by
seller on Viborg companies and transferred by it to Michelin
group.

At this stage of proceedings:

» The scale of differences between guaranteed net assets
and net asset calculated pursuant to the due diligence
process led Michelin group to exclude the balance of the
purchase price for the purposes of determining goodwill.

* Parties disagree over the amount of debt burden of the
acquired companies used to calculate net asset and amor-
tized goodwill. Michelin group claims this tc be in an
amount of €40.2 million and seller disagrees.
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The main movements in 2003 concern software. ~

The breakdown by category is as follows: in thousands of euros
|
Cost Amortization Net book vatue
and allowances
Software 472,610 (312,753) 159,857
Other intangible assets 74,147 (70,820) 3,327
Total 546,757 (383,573) 163,184

3. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment can be analyzed as follows: in thousands of euros
. ______ ]
’ Cost Amortization Net book value
and aflowances
Property, plant and equipment at January 1, 2002 15,845,120 {(9,435,269) 6,409,851
Increases 872,157 (812,443) 59,714
Decreases (652,053) 579,846 (72,207)
Translation adjustments and other (1,438,782) 813,581 (625,201)
Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2002 14,626,442 (8,854,285) 5,772,157
Increases 1,025,808 (776,589) 249,219
Change in Group structure 214,688 (101,971) 112,717
Decreases (690,962) 606,560 (84,402)
Translation adjustments and other (903,640) 517,440 (386,200)
Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2003 (") 14,272,336 (8,608,845) 5,663,491

Capital expenditure for the year ended December 31, 2003 amounted to €1,025,808 thousand.

The breakdown by category is as follows: In thousands of euros
 __________________________________________________________________________________________________________]

Cost Amortization Net book value

and allowances

Land and buildings 3,333,849 : (1,650,103) 1,683,746
Plant and equipment 8,931,269 (5,531,665) . 3,399,604
Other 2,007,218 (1,427,077) 580,141
Total : 14,272,336 (8,608,845} 5,663,491

In thousands of euros
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Notes to the Consolidated
Balance Sheet

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with French generally accepted accounting
principles, including standard CRC 99-02 published by Comité de la Réglementation Comptable dealing with Consolidated
Financial Statements.

1. Goodwill
Goodwill can be analyzed as follows: ’ in thousands of euros
. ___________________________________________________________________________________ ]
Cost Amortization Net book value
and allowances
Goodwill at January 1, 2002 590,327 (270,919) 319,408
Increases 41,409 (29,863) 11,546
Decreases (694) 694 -
Translation adjustments and other {61,902) 38,308 (23,594)
Goodwill at December 31, 2002 569,140 (261,780) 307,360
Acquisition of Viborg group " 306,549 (306,549) -
Other increases 55,352 (29,373} 25,979
Decreases (1,395) 1,385 -
Translation adjustments and other (69,039) 39,285 (29,744)
Goodwill at December 31, 2003 860,607 (557.012) 303,595

The other increases concern, for the most part, buy out of nearly 100% of minority shares in Stomil-Olsztyn S.A. in Poland.

2. Intangible assets

Intangible assets can be analyzed as follows: In thousands of euros
. ___ |
’ Cost Amortization Net book value
and allowances
Intangible assets at January 1, 2002 450,934 (336,195) 114,739
Increases 94,802 (64,808) 29,954
Decreases (10,546) 11,090 544
Translation adjustments and other (45,713) 35,831 (9,882)
Intangible assets at December 31, 2002 489,477 (354,082) 135,395
increases 91,990 (52,389) 39,601
Decreases (27,357) 20,463 (6,894)
Translation adjustments and other {7,353) 2,435 (4,918}
Intangible assets at December 31, 2003 546,757 {383,573) : 163,184

Total 77,576 (19,236) 58340 465 58,805
including:

Equity in net income {loss) {11,570) (8,750)

v
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6. Inventories v In thousands of euros
. ______ |
Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Raw materials, semi-finished products and other supplies 885,222 961,858
Finished products 1,981,092 1,990,895
Allowances (97,178) (92,469)
Net book value 2,769,136 2,860,284

7. Trade receivables In thousands of euros
‘e
Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Trade receivables 3,110,766 3,261,483
Allowances ) (126,265) (115,987)

Net book value 2,984,501 3,145,496

Substantially all trade receivables are due within one year.
Transfer of trade receivables
The Group implemented a trade receivables transfer program allowing maximum external financing:

* 3 U.5.3500 million until 2005 for North-American operations,
* 3 €720 million until 2007 for European operations.

The trade receivables transferred and financing received by the consclidated companies (including the relevant ad hoc
entities) are still accounted for under Group assets and liabilities.

At December 31, 2003, this amounted to €849.6 million.

Non-Group financing amounts to €789.0 million. The subordinated tranche, repurchased by the Group, amounts to
€212.0 miilion with respect to which a €1.8 million provision was made.

8. Other receivables, prepaid expenses and accrued income ‘ In thousands of euros
Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Other receivables, net (7 549,105 591,679
Excess of pension plan assets over the related benefit obligations (note 13) 489,689 562,644
Deferred tax assets {note m) 912,973 1,128,576
Other accruals 86,420 83,212
Total 2,038,187 2,366,111

(1) including amounts due beyond one year.
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In thousands of euros

Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin shares 4,861 44,183
Less allowances for impairment in value - (2 674)
Other listed investments, net 486 611
Other cash eguivalents, net 534,141 376,443
Total 539,488 418,563

- As of December 31, 2003, Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin held 155,392 of its own shares with a market
value of €5,653 thousand. During 2003, the number of own shares held by the Company decreased by 1,107,810.

- As of December 31, 2003, the market value of other listed investments was €687 thousand. The cother securities
are mostly monetary instruments.

- The other cash equivalents are mostly monetary instruments.

10. Changes in stockholders’ equity and minority interests

In thousands of euros

Common Paid-in Retained Translation Net  Stockholders Minority Totai
stock capital in earnings adjustment income equity interests
excess of par -

At Dec. 31, 2001 269,432 1,609,476 2,415,827 (594,319) 295,967 3,996,383 329,540 4,325,923
Capital increase 11,569 158,107 168,676 - 169,676
Employee stock
ownership plan 2,584 39,206 (14,401) 27,389 - 27,389
Dividends paid (138,708) (138,708)  (28,943) (167,651)
Appropriation of
undistributed income 157,434 (175} (157,259} - - -
Net income
for the year 580,803 580,803 33,682 614,485
Translation
adjustment and other (20,700) (286,007) (306,707) (160,848)  (467,555)
At Dec. 31, 2002 283,585 1,806,789 2,538,160 (880,501) 580,803 4,328,836 173,431 4,502,267
Capital increase 380 4,598 4,978 - 4,978
Employee stock
ownership plan 2,809 28,253 (10,323) 20,739 - 20,739
Dividends paid (169,834) (169,834)  (10,527)  (180,361)
Appropriation of
undistributed income 398,816 12,153  (410,969) - - -
Net income
for the year 317,532 317,532 11,330 328,862
Translation
adjustment and other (11,590) (163,301) (174,891)  (92,531) {267,422)
[At Dec, 31, 2003 286,774 1,839,640 2,915,063  (1,031,649) 317,532 4,327,360 81,703 4,409,063
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11. Provisions for contingencies and charges in thousands of euros
L ________________________ |
Dec 31, 2002 Translation Movements Reversais Reversals Dec. 31, 2003
adjustments (utilized (non-utilized
and other atlowances) allowanices)
Post-retirement
and other employee
benefit obligations " 2,776,498 (178,123) 259,715 (242,691) {322,778) 2,292,621
Deferred taxes 50,497 701 2,761 (12,428) - 41,531
Restructuring @ 420,236 (3,830) 134,147 (128,880) - 421,673
Other 196,613 (7,199) 101,465 {40,344) - 250,535
Total 3,443,844 (188,451) 498,088 (424,343) (322,778) 3,006,360
L.~ -~ __|
Impact (net of incurred expenses) - in thousands of euros
]
Operating income 298,220 -
Interest income and expense 4,312 -
Net non-recurring income and expense 192,795 (322,778)@
Income tax 2,761 -
Total 498,088 (322,778)

(1) Post-retirement and other employee benefit obligations

A specific analysis of these obligations is provided in note 13.

{2) Restructuring provisions

The financiat year's provision (€134.1 million) is mainly in connection with the industrial reorganization plan announced
and introduced in Spain in 2003.

(3) Exceptional provision reversais

The reversal for the year (€322.7 million) is mainly in connection with the "Total Rewards” program in the United States,
referred to in the highlights of note 13: Post-retirement and other employee benefit obligations.




12. Income taxes

income taxes reported in the income statemnent can be analyzed as follows:
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in thousands of euros

Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Current taxes 143,540 246,289
Deferred taxes 99,627 . 114,044
Sub-total 243,167 360,333
Withholding taxes 18,268 22,122
Total 261,435 382,455

The following table presents a reconciliation of the theoretical tax charge to the actual tax charge:

In thousands of euros

Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Tax, excluding withholding taxes, on the contribution of Group companies
to consolidated income, at standard local tax rates 299,085 379,324
effect of permanent differences 7,578 44,476
Effect of unrecognized deferred taxes (47,590) (45,540)
Effect of changes in tax rates 2,800 1,065
Other effects (18,716) (18,992)
Income taxes reported in the income statement, excluding withholding taxes 243,167 360,333

In thousands of euros

Dec. 31, 2003

Dec. 31, 2002

Total unrecognized deferred tax assets

308,217

472,128

Deferred tax assets and liabilities break down as follows by category:

In thousands of euros

Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002
Deferred tax assets 912,973 1,128,576
Deferred tax liabilities (41,531 (50,497)
Net obligation 871,442 1,078,079
Breakdown:
- time differences 646,974 817,403
- tax loss carryforwards 221,837 274,049

- tax credits

2,631

(13,373
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13. Post-retirement and other employee benefit obligations
Highlight of 2003: “Total Rewards” program in the United States

In 2003, Michelin United States took a series of measures to reduce employment and post-retirement obligations in favor
of both active and existing retired personnel. The reorganization of healthcare cover plans will cap Group long-term
obligations in connection with both active and retired employees.

The exceptional gain of €281.9 million recognized in 2003 stems essentially from introduction and implementation of
ceilings for all employees concerning future reimbursements — and a reatlocation of medical costs between current retirees
and Michelin.

These reorganization measures will have a durable effect, extending beyond the gain recorded in 2003, first and foremost
owing to termination of the healthcare reimbursement scheme for some employees hired from January 2004 but also owing
t0 the decision which was made to switch from a " defined benefits pension plan” to a “defined contribution pension plan”.
Although a small portion only of savings made in 2003 stems from this change, it will have a significant positive long-term
effect on controlling Group future obligations. All employees hired from January 2004 will take part in the defined
contribution pension plan. Part of the active employees will have the option of switching to the new defined contribution
plan.

13.1. Current Plans

In some countries where the Group cperates, employees are entitled to certain short-term benefits (such as vacation pay and
annual bonuses), long-term pre-retirement benefits (seniority awards) and long-term post-retirement benefits (retirement
bonuses, pension benefits and coverage of heafth care costs). .

Short-term benefit obligations are recognized as a liability (accrued expense) in the balance sheets of the Group companies
concerned. Other benefit obligations are funded-or provided for as follows:

a) Under defined contribution plans, fixed contributions are made to an external fund which pays the benefits. The
company has no legal or constructive obligation to make further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all benefits due to employees. For the Michelin group, this generally concerns countries where there are govern-
ment-sponsored pay-as-you-go retirement schemes in place, such as in France. In some countries, specific defined
contribution plans have -been set up for Group employees (such as in Poland, Switzerland and the United States).

b) Under defined benefit plans, the company has a legal or constructive obligation towards its employees. Obligations
under these plans can be:

« Either funded over employees’ years of service by contributions to an external fund which pays the benefits
due to employees. For contributory plans, contributions are paid by the company and the employee; for non-contrib-
utory plans, contributions are paid only by the company.

* Or unfunded and paid directly by the company to eligible employees on the vesting date.
For the Michelin group, this primarily concerns:
e U.S, U.K. and Canadian pension pians.

* German, Spanish and ltalian supplementary pension schemes, retirement bonuses in France and the payment of
retirees’ healthcare costs in the U.S. and Canada. ’
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The projected benefit cbligation under these defined benetit plans is calculated by independent actuaries based on local practice
and the conditions of each plan. The projected benefit obligation changes each year based on the following factors:

* Recurring factors:

- service cost, corresponding te the value of benefits attributed to services rendered by employees during the year;
- interest cost, corresponding to the increase in the projected benefit obligation due to the passage of time;

- benefit payments.
* Non-recurring factors:

- changes in fong-term actuarial assumptions {concerning, for example, inflation rates and future salary fevels);

- changes in benefit formula.

Some countries have introduced legistation authorizing or stipulating that these obligations be funded by employer (and, for
contributory plans, employee) contributions to externat funds responsible for investing and administering the amounts received.
In this case, the employer nevertheless continues to have a legal and constructive obligation towards its empicyees. The way in
which the funds are run and their related investment procedures differ according to the country and, in some cases, from one

fund to another.

The value of plan assets held in external funds can also vary, depending on:

* The level of contributions received from the employer and employees;

* The level of benefits paid to eligible employees;
* The return on plan assets, induding unrealized gains and losses.
Plan assets are valued on a yearly basis, at October 31,

' 13.2. Actuarial assumptions

To calculate the projected benefit obligation, actuaries use a number of long-term assumptions provided by the company
(induding inflation rate, rate of salary increases and discount rate). These assumptions are reviewed annually.

Assumptions used at December 31, 2003 North America

Europe Other &

Rate of salary increases (7 3.25% 10 3.50%
Discount rate 6.25% 10 6.50%
Average remaining service lives 13.8 years
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% to 8.50%
Actual return on plan assets

for the year ended December 31, 2003 @ 12.90% to 13.90%

3.00% to 4.00% 2.59% to 10.00%
5.50% to 5.75% 2.00% to 11.00%

13.9 years 18.5 years
4.75% to 6.75% 2.00% to 9.20%

2.00% to 8.30% insignificant

Assumptions used at December 31, 2002 North America

Europe Other

Rate of salary increases (7
Discount rate

Average remaining service lives
Expected return on plan assets
Actual return on plan assets
for the year ended December 31, 2002 @ (3.50%)

3.75% t0 3.90%
6.75% t0 6.90%

11 to 18 years
8.00% to 8.50%

3.00% to 3.75%
5.50% to 6.00%

11 to 18 years
5.50% to 6.75%

1.90% to 10.00%
2.10% to 11.00%
17 to 20 years
2.10% to 9.20%

(12.63%) (5.50%)

1) Including all assumptions refating tc career development, promotions, senionty and ather, over the employee's entire service fife.

2) As of the measurement date.
" 3) Brazil, Japan and Nigeria.
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- 13.3 Summary of the financial situation of defined benefit plans as

at December 31, 2003 In thousands of euros

Pension Other Total 2003 Total 2002
plans post-retirement
benefit plans
(including
o . heaithcare)

Projected benefit obfigation 4,527,324 68 4,527,392 4,498,841

Fair value of plan assets (3,761,919} 41 {3,761,960) (3,815,298)

. Funded status 765,405 27 765,432 683,543
Unfunded projected benefit obligation 485,695 2,022,407 2,508,102 2,870,039
Prior service cost 2,277 137,494 139,771 22,712
Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses (1,117,071) (493,302) (1,610,373) (1,362,440)
Net amount recognized 136,306 1,666,626 1,802,932 2,213,854
L __________ ]
Amounts recognized in balance sheet:

Prepaid benefit cost (489,689) (562,644)
Accrued benefit cost 2,292,621 2,776,498

Unrecognized actuarial gains or losses (corresponding to changes in the value of the projected benefit obligation or the
value of plan assets) arise primarily from:

» differences between actuarial assumptions and actual experience,
» changes in long-term actuarial assumptions, such as inflation rate, discount rate and future salary levels,
¢ changes in the benefit formula.

Where actuarial spreads are in excess of 10% of the highest of the PBO and the amount of assets under management,
the portion beyond 10% is accounted as payroll costs and gives rise to an annual allocation over the average length
of beneficiaries’ remaining active life. )

At December 31, 2003, actuarial losses amounted to €1,610 million.
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in thousands of euros

Defined benefit pension plan Pensions Other benefit plans Aggregate
Other defined benefit pians
(including medical care
Present value of obligations
’Opening balance at lan. 01, 2003 4,923,981 2,444,899 7,368,880
Exchange rate variations (453,401) (270,736) (724,137)
Variation in scope of consolidation 21,075 2,305 23,380
Current service cost 97,108 46,972 144,080
Interest cost 278,406 136,244 414,650
Plan reorganization cost recognized in the year 12,553 (286,360) (274,307)
Benefits paid . (220,245) (207,155) (427,400}
Other items (6,255) 11,168 4913
(-Unrecognized actuarial gainvless generated during the year 358,656 267,015 626,671
Unrecognized plan reorganization costs 141 (121,377) (121,236)
At Dec. 31, 2003 A 5,013,019 2,022,475 7,035,494
Fair value of plan assets
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 3,809,036 6,262 3,815,298
Exchange rate variations (398,705) (472) {399,177)
Expected return on plan assets 258,448 92 258,540
Contributions 133,335 424 133,759
Administration costs (3,060) - (3,060)
Benefits paid (203,355) (6,250) {209,605)
Unrecognized actuarial gain/-Yoss
generated during the year 166,220 (15) 166,205
At Dec. 31, 2003 B 3,761,919 41 3,761,960
Benefit plan unrecognized actuarial gain/loss of the year
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 . 1,083,427 256,301 1,339,728
Exchange rate variations (118,227) {42,073) (160,300}
Amortization of unrecognized actuariai differences (43,278) (7,230 (50,508)
Amortization of unrecognized plan
reorganization costs (347) 3,069 2,722
Unrecognized actuarial differences
generated during the year 193,379 267,030 460,409
Unrecognized plan reorganization costs
generated during the year (160) (121,289) (121,449)
At Dec. 31, 2003 C 1,114,794 355,808 1,470,602
Net liability in balance sheet"
At Dec. 31, 2003 D=A-B-C 136,306 1,666,626 1,802,932
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13.4.1 Regional breakdown of the financial situation

of pension plans In thousands of euros
. _____________________________________________|
Defined Benefit pension plans

North Europe X Other Aggregate
America zones

Present value of obligations
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 2,519,976 2,372,523 31,482 4,923,981
Exchange rate variations {331,596) (121,680) (125) (453,401)
Variation in scope of consolidation - 21,075 - 21,075
Current service cost 51,321 44,925 862 97,108
Interest cost 150,148 127,423 835 278,406
Plan reorganization cost recognized in the year 13,702 - (1,149) 12,553
Benefits paid during the year (123,364) (95,476) (1,405) (220,245)
Other items (4,500) . 1,111 (2,866} (6,255)
(-)Unrecognized actuarial gain/loss
generated during the year ' 209,050 151,753 (1,147} 359,656
Unrecognized plan recrganization costs 141 - - 141
At Dec. 31, 2003 A 2,484,878 2,501,654 26,487 5,013,019
Fair value of plan assets
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 2,295,069 1,508,695 5,272 3,809,036
Exchange rate variations (299,871) (98,864) 30 (398,705)
Expected return on plan assets 165,889 92,119 440 258,448
Contributions 83,236 49,478 621 133,335
Administration costs - (3,060) - (3,060)
Benefits paid (123,316) (78,908) (1,131) (203,355)
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(-)loss
generated during the year 103,945 60,862 1,413 166,220
At Dec. 31, 2003 B 2,224,952 1,530,322 6,645 3,761,919

Benefit plan unrecognized actuarial gain/loss of the year

Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 630,523 450,793 2,111 1,083,427
Exchange rate variations (83,694) (34,447) (86). (118,227}
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences (24,166) (19,067) (45) (43,278)
Amortization of unrecognized plan
reorganization costs (19) (328) - (347)
Unrecognized actuarial differences
generated during the year 105,045 90,893 (2,559) 193,379
o ... Unrecognized plan reorganization costs
generated during the year, . (160) - - (160)

At Dec.’31,2003 ~—C° 627,529 1,114,794

Net liability in balance sheet

At Dec. 31, 2003 D=A-B-C (367,603) 483,488 20,421 136,306
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13.4.2 Regional breakdown of the financial situation

of other defined benefits plans In thousands of euros
]
Other defined benefit plans (including medical care)

North America Europe Other zones Aggregate
Present value of obligations
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 1,720,358 572,499 152,042 2,444,899
Exchange rate variations (262,128) (249) (8,359) (270,736)
Variation in scope of consolidation - 216 2,089 2,305
Current service cost 25,555 27,812 (6,395) 46,972
Interest cost 97,017 32,174 7,053 136,244
Plan reorganization cost recognized in the year (277,549) (2,523) (6,788) (286,860)
Benefits paid during the year (104,997) (52,041) (50,117) (207,155)
Other items {221) 837 10,552 11,168
(-)Unrecognized actuarial gainfloss
generated during the year 282,982 (15,345) (622) 267,015
Unrecognized plan reorganization costs (121,377) - - (121,377)
At Dec. 31, 2003 A 1,359,640 563,380 99,455 2,022,475
Fair value of plan assets
Opening balance at Jan. 01, 2003 - - 6,262 6,262
Exchange rate variations - - (472) (472)
Expected return on plan assets - - 92 92
Contributions - 45 379 424
Administration costs - - - -
Benefits paid - (3) (6,247) (6,250}
Unrecognized actuarial gainA-)loss
generated during the year - - (15) (15)
At Dec. 31, 2003 B - 4 4] 41
Unrecognized actuarial gains/losses
Opening balance at jan. 01, 2003 292,634 (39,019) 2,686 256,301
Exchange rate variations (41,617) 70 (526) (42,073)
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial differences (9,383) 2,205 (52) (7.230)
Amortization of unrecognized plan
reorganization costs 2,333 736 - 3,069
Unrecognized actuarial differences
generated during the year 282,981 {15,344) {607) 267,030
Unrecognized plan reorganization costs
generated during the year (121,289) - - (121,289)
At Dec. 31, 2003 C - 405,659 {(51,352) 1,501 355,808

Net liability in balance sheet

At Dec. 31, 2003 D=A-B-C 953,981 614,690 97,955 1,666,626
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13.5 Changes in Financial Statements
13.5.1 Balance Sheet

In thousands of euros

Defined Benefit Other Total Total
pension plans Defined Benefit 2003 2002

pension pians

{including medical care)
At January 1, 2003 32,846 2,181,008 2,213,854 2,637,664
Exchange rate variations 61,216 (227,842) (166,626) (225,108)
Charges recognized for the year 153,857 193,583 347,440 318,770
Contributions paid to fund managers {128,457) 45) {128,502} (325,235)
Benefits directly paid to beneficiaries (16,665) (192,948) (209,613) (179,717}
Variation of scope of cansolidation 19,170 4,180 23,350 -
Benefit plan changes recorded as exceptional gain 14,339 (291,310) (276,971} (13,520)
At December 31, 2003 136,306 1,666,626 1,802,932 2,213,854

Annual charges are determined by independent actuaries at the start of the financial year, as follows:

* charges corresponding to acquisition of an additional year of rights (" Cost of services rendered during the financial year”),

* charge corresponding to annual discount (*Financial cost”),

* income from estimated return on assets (“Expected return from plan assets”),

* gainfloss from changes in plan services ("Cost of passed services”),

« gainfloss from any reduction or liquidation of plan.

13.5.2 Consolidated Statement of income

in 2003, net charges recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income amounted to €61 million, breaking down as follows

(based on the average rate for the period):

in thousands of euros

Net charges recorded in the Consclidated Statement of Income 2003 2002
Cost of service 178,130 217,636
Interest Costs 440,462 484,982
Expected asset return (275,474) (345,456)
Actuarial gainfloss generated in the year 53,970 22,434
Cost of past services (2,269) (11,725)
Effect of reductions or fiquidations of benefit plans (27,032} . (13,723)
Sub-total recorded under payroll costs 367,787 354,148
Plan changes recognized as exceptional gain (306,570} (13,520)
Total 61,217 340,628
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13.6 Share Option Plans
Share Option Plan situation as at December 31, 2003:

Date Number of options Call price

Allocation Call Expiry Allocated Called Cancelled Balance in euros

May 2002 May 2006 May 2011 716,600° 0 10,800 705,800 44.00

May 2003 May 2007 May 2012 243,000 0 3,000 240,000 32.25

Nov. 2003 Nov. 2007 Nov. 2012 226,200 0 Q 226,200 34.00
1,185,800 Q 13,800 1,172,000

14. Subordinated debt and other iong and short-term debt In thousands of euros
b ]
: At Dec. 31, Due within Duein1to5 Due in more At Dec, 31,

2003 one year years than five years 2002
Subordinated debt 500,000 - - 500,000 -
Cther long and short-term debt:
- Convertible bonds ] 9 - - 10
- Other bonds 1,890,161 85,263 304,898 1,500,000 1,889,230
- Trade receivable securitizations 788,976 550,348 238,628 - 905,530
- Lease purchases 257,286 50,375 150,186 56,725 269,102
- Other long and short-term debt 1,777,086 1,287,500 475,561 14,025 1,963,126
Subtotal, other long and short-term debt | 4,713,518 1,973,495 1,169,273 1,570,750 5,026,998
Total 5,213,518 1,973,495 1,169,273 2,070,750 5,026,998
Debt secured by collateral at December 31, 2003
excluding lease purchases and trade receivable securitizations: 117,055

Subordinated debt

On December 3, 2003, the Group made a 30-year €500 million last-ranking subordinated issue (TSDR — Titres Subordonnés
de Dernier Rang), callable from December 3, 2013 at the Group’s sole discretion, at par and.in cash, in quarterly payments.

Initially fixed at 6.375%, the coupon will be calculated from December 3, 2013, based on 3-month Euribor plus 2.95%.

Where no Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin dividend distributions or prepayments are made, the TSDRs
provide for a differred coupon payment option.

Bond issue

in April 2002, the Group launched a bond issue in two tranches:

- €1 billion tranche with a 6.125% coupon, maturing in April 2009,

- €500 million tranche with a 6.5% coupon, maturing in April 2012.
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Net debt at December 31, 2003 breaks down as follows (in thousands of euros):

- Long and short-term debt 4,713,518
- Cash equivalents and other short-term investments (539,488)
- Cash (1,234,168)
- Subordinated debt 500,000
Total 3,439,862

tong and short-term debt breaks down as follows between fixed and floating rate debt and by currency, after taking into
account financial instruments:

tn thousands of euros

Currency Floating rate Fixed rate Average life of Total long and %

fixed rate debt short-term debt by currency
Euro and EMU currencies (778,354) 1,580,304 7.1 811,950 23.6
Swiss franc 199,126 6,418 4.7 205,544 6.0
Pound sterling 368,294 - - 368,294 10.7
Other non-eure-zone currencies 288,539 4,138 : 3.0 292,677 8.5
Total European currencies 77,605 1,600,860 7.1 1,678,465 48.8
U.S. dollar 699,874 465,551 33 1,165,425 339
Canadian dollar ) 115,307 - - 115,307 . 34
Total dollar zone 815,181 465,551 33 1,280,732 37.3
Other currencies 453,954 26,711 1.8 480,665 13.9
Total 1,346,740 2,093,122 6.2 3,439,862 100.0

15. Off-balance sheet commitments In thousands of euros
- |
Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2062
Commitments given:
Guarantees given 75,715 113,046
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases 646,709 614,715
Discounted biils 5,808 5,577
Total ' 728,232 733,338
Commitments received:
Guarantees received S 154,052 145,997

'
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The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with French generally accepted accounting
principles, including standard CRC 99-02 published by the Comité de la Réglementation Comptable dealing with
Consolidated Financial Statements.

16. Payroll costs and number of employees In thousands of euros
2003 2002

Payroll costs 4,996,925 5,152,143

Average number of employees of fully-consolidated companies 127,210 126,285

17. Research and development costs (in thousands of euros)
Research and development costs amount to:

-2003: 710,475

- 2002: 703,978

18. Impairment charges In thousands of euros

I 2003 I 2002

Net charges for impairment of:
- inventories
- receivables

(14,351)
23,489

Impairment charges related 1o inventories are included in “Purchases used in production” and charges related to receivables
are included in "Other cperating expenses” in the consolidated statement of income.

19. Interest income and expense In thousands of euros
b . ]
2003 2002
Interest income and expense (211,901) (209,052)
Exchange gains (losses) (1,880) (49,593)
Amortization and net movements in allowances for impairment of financial assets (4,501) (3,336)
Net change in provisions (6,605) 1,724
Total (224,887) (260,257)

Net exchange losses for 2002 resulted mainly from the fall in value of currencies in several South American countries
(Argentina, Venezuela, Chile).

20. Non-recurring income and expense In thousands of euros
U
2003 2002
Reorganization costs (192,365) (17,405)
Other non-recurring items 211,044 92,614
Total ) 18,679 75,209




Restructuring costs break down as follows:
- Europe

—North America

—Other regions

Other non-recurring items break down as follows:

~ Europe
—North America
—Other regions
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i millions of euros
(173.2)
(20.1)
1.0

in millions of euros
(74.9)
299.0 W
(13.1)

(1) The exceptional gain recorded in North America comes chiefly fror measures in connection with the “Total Rewards” program conducted
in the United States referred to in the highlights of note No.13 : Retirement obligations and other employee benefits.

21. Segment information tn thousands of euros

Business segments Passenger Truck Other busi Inter-segment Total
Car-Light Truck eliminations
2002
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,754,242 1,220,788 1,797,127 (0 5,772,157
Sales 7,947,946 3,944,034 4,637,293 {884,199) 15,645,074
~Operating income 764,803 484,757 (24,361) 1,225,199
2003
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,595,385 1,303,562 1,764,544 (1) 5,663,491
Sales 7,456,824 3,968,507 4,859,336 (914,847) 15,369,820
Operating income 664,002 521,490 (42,420) 1,143,072

(1) Including shared assets:
—2003: 674,921
—-2002: 736,613

in thousands of euros

Geographical regions Europe North America Other Total
and Mexico
2002
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,188,042 1,909,371 674,744 5,772,157
Sales 7,560,577 6,068,037 2,016,460 15,645,074
2003
Property, plant and equipment, net 3,375,356 1,622,487 665,648 5,663,491
Sales 8,035,569 5,311,034 2,023,217 15,369,820

22. Management compensation

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin is administered by Managing Partners (“Gérants”) who are also General
Partners (“associés commandités”) of the Company. As such, they are entitled to a share of the income distributed among
all the General Partners in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bylaws. The Managing Partners do not receive
any compensation or other benefits from Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates.
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COMPAGNIE GENERALE DES ETABLISSEMENTS MICHELIN

First quarter 2004 net sales:
3.8 billion euros, +3.9% compared to the 1™ quarter 2003
+9.5% at constant exchange rate
+7.6% in sales volumes®

Michelin posts strong sales growth in better than expected tire markets. However, 1*
qguarter market growth was driven by certain non-recurring factors:
< Advance purchases in anticipation of price increases. In France, in particular,
outstanding market conditions are related to the implementation of the End-of-Life
Tires (ELT) Disposal Legislation, effective since March 1™, 2004.
> Recovery of the North American market from the low base of a difficult first quarter

o

2003.

Although, on a full-year basis, tire markets could post somewhat better growth than
initially anticipated, 1™ quarter tire markets should not be extrapolated, because of the
above mentioned exceptional market conditions.

Good start to the year, but raw materials continuing upward trend calls for caution.
Michelin is confident in its ability to achieve visible improvements in its operational
performances in 2004.

First quarter 2003

(in millions of euros)
Consolidated net sales 3,654.7
Excluding the impact of

3,468.3

exchange rate variations

First quarter 2003

Total change
(Q1 2003 /Q1 2002)

In € million Accrued %
-187.6 -4.9%
Of which currencies: -384.2 - 10.0%
Volumes: +149.4 +43%
Price/mix: +47.1 +1.3%
Scope 0 +0.0%

2 Evolution of Group sales volumes {in tons) of tire products. Distribution, maps and guides and suspension systems

sales not included.
® Net sales for 2003 recalculated at 2004 exchange rates.
?sell-in’ sales : tire sales to dealers as opposed to ‘sell-out’ sales to end-users

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales

April 26, 2004
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1.

Sales change analysis

Sales volumes expressed in tons, are up +7.6% compared to the first quarter 2003. Excluding the impact
of currency fluctuations, net sales are up +9.5%. This is due to:

> A negative impact {-5.1%) of exchange rates. As had been recorded in the last few months of
2004, this is mostly related to the appreciation of the euro, in particular versus the US dollar.

» A positive impact (+6.3%) generated by higher sales volumes. This trend is the result of both
dealers anticipating increase announcements and of strong ‘sell-out’ “demand.

» A positive price / mix effect (+2.6%), calculated at constant exchange rates. This is the result of
strong replacement sales, an improved product-mix and price increases.

> A positive impact from the scope of activity.(+0.6%) mainly due to the acquisition of the tire
distribution activities of Viborg which was effective on April 1%, 2003. Viborg - which was, then,
being integrated into Euromaster - appeared in the 4" quarter consolidated accounts of the financial
year 2003 as of April 1%. On the opposite, jointly controlled operations in Eurofit (fitted assemblies)
are now accounted using the equity method.

2. Evolution of the world tire markets

In_the first quarter, tire markets were up more than expected and on the back of a supportive pricing
environment. Analysis should integrate the following factors:

As far as the North American market is concerned, the comparison basis is favorable when one
takes into account the negative impact of the lrag conflict in March 2003 and the consequences
of the Firestone recalls that had generated a difficult first quarter 2003.

In the 1st quarter 2004, some anticipated sales were triggered by price increases which were
announced by several tire makers in Europe as well as in North America.

In the light of the improving economic conditions, particularly in North America, demand appears
to be stronger.

However, the positive trend of the 1™ quarter should not be extrapolated to the rest of the year because
of the following negative factors:

In most markets, dealers have increased their inventories in anticipation of price increases.
Consequently, the gap between the 'sell-in’ & the ‘sell-out’ markets should narrow in the 2™ half
of the year.

As of end 2002, France complied with European End-of-Life Tires (ELTs) regulation that prohibits
dumping of used tires from 2006 onwards. Under a producer’s responsibility scheme, the tire
industry, through a joint company, Aliapur, has been made responsible for the collection and
disposal of ELTs. This results in additional costs for tire makers to finance the operations of
Aliapur. As a consequence, most tire manufacturers increased their French ‘sell-in’ prices as of
March 1%, 2004, to reflect this extra cost to them.

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
April 26, 2004
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Pass. Car & Light Truck Replacement market OE market®
(In units) d Q12004

4%
North America -1.0%
South America NA
Asia NA
NA: Not Available
Truck Replacement market OE market
%l’n units) Accrued. Q1 2004 Accrued Q1 2004

Ei}roped +6.9% +7.1%°
North America’ +5.9%° +32.9%
iSouth America NA NA
sia NA NA
O in Europe

The Passenger Car and Light Truck tire replacement market is up +5.3% in the first three
months of the year. A significant share of the ‘sell in’ market" growth comes from the exceptional
10% increase in the French market, caused by specific price increases passed by most tire
manufacturers on March 1" to cover ELT disposal costs. Another highlight of the 1% quarter is the
strong market growth (+17%) experienced in Eastern & Central Europe (accounting for 10% of the
total European market). Beside the 2 factors explained above, demand in the European replacement
remains at a high historical level and continues to grow (+2.6%).

The Passenger Car and Light Truck Original Equipment market remained flat compared with
the 1" quarter of 2003. The trend in favor of upper range and better-equipped vehicles is
unchanged.

in Truck replacement, the Western European market is up 6.9% year-on-year. The French market
was impacted by the implementation of the ELT disposal legislation. In anticipation of the price
increases passed on March 1%, dealers built up inventories, pushing the French market up 24%.
Excluding France, the Western European market shows a solid +4.5% growth, particularly noticeable
in Spain and Italy. However, the German market rémains flat.

The Truck Original Equipment market is up +7.1% in the power unit segment and some 8% in
the trailer segment compared to the 1" quarter 2003. After a depressed 2003, the trailer segment
seems to start recovering.

* Original Equipement: sales to vehicle manufacturers

* Western and Eastern Europe (including Russia and other European countries of CIS)
¢ United States, Canada and Mexico

d Western Europe {15 main markets)

¢ Power units OE market only

f United States, Canada and Mexico

¢ Radial + bias truck tire market

h ‘seli-in’ market: tire sales to dealers, as opposed to ‘sell-out’ sales to end-users.

Compagnie Générale des Ftablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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=

in North America,

in comparison with a difficult 1" quarter 2003 (down -5.4%), the Passenger Car and Light Truck
tire Replacement market is up +5.8%.

Market dynamics enjoy the continued growth of the performance segment (+15%) and the rebound
of the SUV segment (+22%) that has now more than absorbed the consequences of the Firestone
recalls. It is also worth mentioning that there were 2 extra working days in March 2004 compared
with March 2003, which accounts for most of this month specific market growth.

The Passenger Car and Light Truck Original Equipment market remains negatively oriented
(-1%) compared to a buoyant first quarter 2003. One should remember that, at the time, car
manufacturers were conducting strong incentive policies. No growth is anticipated in the market for
the full year 2004.

In Truck, the replacement market rebounds in line with the evolution of the NAFTA economy.
Growth is strong in the US, moderate in Canada, and negative in Mexico. Despite the overall decline
of the Mexican market, its radialization tends to accelerate. Yet, the North American market still
remains 11% below its 2000 level.

in Original Equipment, the market posts a 33% increase versus the 1" quarter of 2003. Demand is

strong due to the combination of 3 factors:

- As a consequence of a change in working hour rules in the US , loading & unloading time will be
included in the driving hours of truck drivers. In order to optimize the drivers’ working time,
freight companies tend to increase the number of their trailers.

After 1999 and 2000 which stood out as record years, the renewal of truck fleets had been very
limited in the 2 following years; power units and trailers are therefore ageing. The need to renew
the vehidles, particularly noticeable in the power units segment, has boosted the market.

- Truck operators took advantage of the low interest rates to finance their new vehicles.

In South America, the economic climate is showing evidence of improvement, notably in Brazil,
Argentina, and, to a lesser extent, in Chile on the back of higher copper prices. South American
currencies have stabilized versus the Euro, the Brazilian real even appreciating to the tune of 4%
compared to the first quarter 2003.

In Asia, dernand remains solid.

In China, the third largest Asian market by size, behind Japan and South Korea, the Passenger Car
and Light Truck tire replacement market continues to post strong growth. The Japanese Replacement
market, however, is still sluggish. Passenger Car and Light Truck Original Equipment markets are
evermore expanding in China and Thailand.

The Chinese radial Truck tire market is growing as strongly as in 2003, while the Japanese market is
recovering after years of stagnation.

QO The Middle-East and African region benefited from a further improvement in the economic

environment and from the ensuing pick up in sales.

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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3. Michelin Sales Changes by business segment

Change in sales reporting policy

In light of the competitive environment, Michelin has decided to adopt a new presentation for its sales
reporting. The Group believes that it is in the best interests of its shareholders to be consistent with
industry wide reporting standards.

Accordingly, Group sales variations compared to the market will be expressed in qualitative terms as
follows:

Assumption of Michelin’s New presentation
sales volumes performance
vs market

A>2.5% +4
0.5%<A<2.5% +
-0.5%< A <0.5% = In line with market
-2.5%< A<-05%

A<-2.5% --

Market share gain

Market share loss

For the sake of clarity, the full-year net sales for 2003 compared to 2002 have been reformatted
according to the new reporting practice, in the annex.

Michelin remains fully committed to providing its shareholders with a regular flow of rich and meaningfu!
information on its business drivers and economic conditions on a regular basis.

Net sales A Q1 2004/ Q12003 (in %)
Group +3.9%
Passenger Car & Light truck +0.6%
Truck +9.0%
Other businesses +9.1%
Inter-sector eliminations +26.1%
Evolution of sales volumes
(change in %, Q1 2004/ Q1 2003)
Total Original Equipm

Group (In‘tons®) 7 ix3
Passenger Car & Light Truck {in units®) +3.8%
Truck (in units®) +8,9%
Other tire activities *(in fons) +9,0%

a Original equipment: sales to vehicle manufacturers

b Refers to the sale of tire products. Distribution, maps and guides and suspension systems sales not included.
¢ Number of new passenger car / light truck tires

d Number of new truck tires

e Qther tire activities : earthmover, agricultural, two wheels and aircraft tires

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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3.1 Passenger Car & Light Truck

This segment benefited from a supportive pricing environment, the continuing improvement of the
product-mix as well as from higher sales volumes.
Excluding the impact of currency fluctuations, the segment’s net sales are up 7.9% year-on-year.

eplacement Replacement Original Original
Market Equipment Equipment
Market
J/A

Passenger Car/ Light Truck
(in units)
Accrued Q12004

Europe’ +0.4%
North America® -1.0%
Other regions® N/A

Q In European replacement, the increase in sales volumes is in line with that of the market. However,
group Michelin flag brands significantly outperform the market The Group’'s product and category
mix, improves further, with, in particular, 3 strong progression in VZ and in 4x4 tire sales. Sales in
Nordic countries and central Europe showed a solid growth.

in North America, the Group gains market shares compared to the first quarter of 2003. Its brand
mix improves significantly through a strong growth of flag brands sales volumes (Michelin, BF
Goodrich and Uniroyal). The price increase (up to 5%), effective since February 1%, 2004 is sticking.
In South America, price increases were passed and contributed in limiting the net sales decline.
In Asia, the Group continues to experience very sustained growth momentum. In China, Japan and
Thailand, the Group performance in the replacement market outperforms the market with double
digit growth. In China, sales volumes of Michelin and of Warrior branded tires are up by more than
30%.

U In Original Equipment in Europe, the group sales decline slightly.
Similarly, in North America, in a declining market, Michelin sales fell back in light of capacity
constraints in some segments which led to focusing production capacity on priority segments.

3.2 Truck

Net sales were up 9.0% compared to the 1" quarter of 2003. This strong increase is due to a highly
favorable volume impact (+8.9% in tonnage) and to higher prices.

Truck eplacement” Replacement  Original Original
(in units) Market Equipment Equipment
Accrued Q12004 Markgt

A
Europe +7.1%¢®
North America ++ +5.9% - +32.9%
Other geographical areas® N/A N/A N/A N/A

® Western and Eastern Europe including Russia and other CIS European countries
d United States, Canada and Mexico

e Asia, South America, Africa and Middle East

C New tires

d Western Europe

e Power units market

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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0 In European Replacement, Group new tire sales posted strong growth in buoyant markets. A set of
new price increases was announced throughout Europe. They will average between 3.5% and 4.5%
and will become effective in the course of the 2™ quarter 2004,

In North America, the Group enjoyed a very strong first quarter 2004 in a supportive environment.
The Group is now back to its 2000 market share level. February 1* price increases are sticking.

In South America, Group sales of Michelin branded truck tires show strong increase in Brazil,
Argentina and Chile. Price increases which have been implemented in 2003 and early 2004 are
holding up.

In Asia, Michelin’s radial tire sales were up again in the first quarter, especially in China, in line with
the performance recorded in 2003.

O In European Original equipment, Michelin’s growth is lower than the market: faced with a strong
demand for its products, it endeavored to manage the OE/RT balance in order to better cater to
demand on the more profitable replacement market. This explains why Group sales are progressing
slower than the market.

in North America, the Group continues to post good performances.

3.3 Other businesses
At 1.19 billion euros, the segment’s net sales are up +9.1% compared to the first quarter 2003.

As far as distribution activities are concerned, Euromaster further improved its operational performances
and TCI experiences a strong growth of its sales volumes and net sales.

In Earthmover tires, markets enjoy strong growth both in the replacement and original equipment
market. Sales volumes are up (+12%) year-on-year, which is the best historical performance ever. Sales
are sustained by price increases aimed at compensating for raw materials hike.

In growing markets specially OE, Agricultural tires sales have increased by more than 6% in volume.
Thanks to the price increases at the end of 2003 and at the beginning of 2004, sales, in value terms, are
also up +6%.

Despite an increase in sales volumes in a recovering market, the Aircraft tire business was not able to
offset the sharp depreciation of the US dollar versus the euro.

As far as Two wheel tires are concerned, net sales are up +9% due to the successful launch of the Pilot
Power range, a new motorbike radial product range.

Compagnie Financiére Michelin

For the quarter ended March 31, 2004, Compagnie Financiére Michelin (CFM) ’s net sales were 3.863
billions of euros, up 3.7% compared to the prior year. At constant exchange rates, net sales are up 9.2%
when stated in Euros. Because Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin has almost the same
scope of sales as the Compagnie Financiére Michelin, the qualitative comments made on net sales apply
to the latter as well.

Compagnie Générale des Ftablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin will hold its Joint Shareholders Meeting on
May 14%, at 9:00am in Clermont-Ferrand (France). The convening notice, together with the 2003
annual report, has been mailed to each shareholder. These documents, and the updated
"document de référence” can be downloaded from the website at www.michelin.com.

A net dividend of EUR 0.93 per share before tax credit will be submitted to the vote of the
Annual Shareholders Meeting. It will be paid on May 18", 2004.

First half 2004 earnings will be published on Friday july 30", 2004, before the Paris Bourse
opens (8:00 am Paris time).

Questions / answers
1 - Could you give an update about the evolution of raw materials prices ?

As end of February 2004, Michelin’s assumptions concerning raw materials prices, were a 10% to 15%
hike for natural rubber and a mid-single digit overall increase for the total raw materials costs expressed
in US doliar.

As of April 26" , the price of natural rubber is in line with the Group’s assumptions but other raw
materials, such as oil derivatives and steel, tend to be at the top end of the expected bracket.

2 -How is Viborg integration into Euromaster proceeding?

Viborg is now fully integrated in Euromaster. Operational performances are in line with the group’s
objectives. In the UK, ATS Euromaster improves its performances following an ambitious restructuring
plan.

it has to be mentioned that due to the strong seasonal pattern of tire distribution in Europe, the first
quarter is traditionally a small quarter in terms of sales volume. As a consequence, it is difficult to
extrapolate this trend to the rest of the year.

3.- Could you comment the performance of Michelin in the Passenger car and light truck
replacement market in North America ?

In a buoyant market, Michelin outperforms the industry. The market share gains were achieved in flag
brands including the Michelin brand whereas the market share of private and associate brands declined
slightly. it is worth mentioning that private and associate brands account for less than 20% of Michelin
sales volumes. This good performance was achieved while prices were increased during the first quarter.

Recent events

O March 29, 2004: Michelin announces price increase on the passenger car and light truck
replacement market in Europe

Michelin is raising the prices of its passenger car and light truck tires due to the sharp increase in raw
materials prices. The new prices will be applied across all brands between April 1 and July 1, 2004.

Compagnie Générale des Etablissements Michelin First quarter 2004 net sales
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The prices will increase by 3.5% in average. However, the amount of the adjustment will vary according
to the country and tire type and may be as much as 5%. The higher prices also reflect the advanced
technology and enhanced performance offered by the Michelin Group to each of its customers, while
also adhering to sound environmental principles.

O April 23, 2004: Michelin announces price increase on the passenger car and light truck
replacement market in the United States

Michelin will increase its prices by an average of 3 percent on Michelin®, BFGoodrich®, Uniroyal® and
Private and Associate brand passenger and light truck tires sold in the U.S. passenger car/ light truck
replacement market. The increase will be effective july 5, 2004.

Q April 20, 2004: Michelin Apollo Tyres Pvt Ltd shares business plans

Michelin Apollo Tyres Pvt Ltd, the new joint venture company set up between Michelin Group and Apollo
Tyres Ltd, unveiled its new truck and bus radial tire offer for the Indian market. The new truck and bus
tire has been developed using leading Michelin technology and will be distributed through Apollo’s
strong dealer network. The truck tire will feature both the Michelin and Apollo trademarks on its side-wall
to demonstrate the strong contribution of each partner to the joint venture. The new truck tires will
initially be imported, but the company expects the tires to be produced in India by 2005.

New Product Launches

Michelin Pilot Exalto

Michelin launches Pilot Exalto on the Passenger car Replacement market in April.

This new range, specially developed for sporty vehicles, complements Michelin’s Pilot Sport and Pilot
Primacy ranges and strengthens its leadership on this segment.

Michelin Pilot Power
Michelin’s new hypersport tire, developed in motorbike racing, features an extremely low grooving rate
and targets a public of connoisseurs.

Kleber launch of Dynaxer HP2
Available from February 2004, Dynaxer HP2 is specially designed to afford maximum safety on wet roads.

BFGoodrich launches passenger car tire g-Force Profiler
Available from February 2004, g-Force Profiler achieves very high performance on dry roads. Based on
ICG {improved Grip Components) technology, it features superfluid directional sculpture.

Contacts

Eric Le Corre: +33(0)1 4566 1004/ +33(0)473 3277 92
eric.le-corre@fr.michelin.com
Laurent Cavard: +33 (0)4 73 3218 02/+33 (0)1 4566 16 15
laurent.cavard@fr.michelin.com

* * %

For more information,
visit the « Investor relations » section at www.michelin.com
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TRANSLATION OF THE FRENCH TEXT OF CONSOLIDATED SALES

COMPAGNIE GENERALE DES ETABLISSEMENTS
MICHELIN

(Michelin et Cie.)
Partnership limited by shares with capital of 286,774,050 Euros

Registered Office: 12, cours Sablon, 63000 Clermont-Ferrand
855 200 887 R.C.S. Clermont-Ferrand

CONSOLIDATED SALES (NET OF TAXES)
(in millions of Euros)

2004 2003

From January 1 to March 31 3,799 3,655



